
 

 
Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Stephen Loach Tel: 01609 532216 
or e-mail stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk 
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk 

OFFICIAL 

 
Agenda 

 
Meeting Standards and Governance Committee 

Venue: The Brierley Room, County Hall, Northallerton, DL7 8AD 

Date: Wednesday, 13 December 2023 

Time: 2.00 pm 

County Councillors: Nick Brown, Sam Cross, Melanie Davis, 
Clive Pearson (Chairman), Heather Phillips, Monika Slater, 
David Ireton, Nigel Knapton, Andy Solloway and Peter Wilkinson. 

Independent Persons for Standards: Gillian Baker (Independent 
Member), Richinda Taylor (Independent Member), Roy Martin 
(Independent Member), James Nelson (Independent Member), 
Hilary Gilbertson (Independent Member) and Louise Holroyd 
(Independent Member). 

 

 
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting as observers for all those items taken in 
open session. Please contact the Democratic Services Officer whose details are at the foot of the 
first page of the agenda if you would like to find out more. 
 
Recording is allowed at North Yorkshire Council, committee and sub-committee meetings which 
are open to the public, please give due regard to the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording 
and photography at public meetings, a copy of which is available from Democratic Services. 
Anyone wishing to record is asked to contact, prior to the start of the meeting, the Democratic 
Services Officer whose details are at the foot of the first page of the Agenda.  We ask that any 
recording is clearly visible to anyone at the meeting and that it is non-disruptive. 
 

Business 
 
1.   Chair's welcome, introductions and apologies 

 
 

2.   Minutes of the Meeting held on 15th September 2023 
 

(Pages 3 - 12) 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.northyorks.gov.uk/


 

 
OFFICIAL 

 
 
 
 

4.   Public Questions or Statements  
  

Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they 
have given notice (including the text of the question/statement) to Steve Loach of  
Democratic Services (contact details at the foot of the agenda sheet) by  
midday on Friday 8th December 2023. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3 
minutes on any item. Members of the public who have given notice will be invited to  
speak:- 
 
at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which are not 
otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes); 
 
when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a matter  
which is on the Agenda for this meeting. 
 

5.   North Yorkshire Polling District and Polling Place review - Final 
proposals - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and 
Democratic Services) 
 

(Pages 13 - 90) 

6.   Schedule of Election Fees for Elections and By-elections in North 
Yorkshire - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and 
Democratic Services) 
 

(Pages 91 - 
108) 

7.   Temporary Appointments - Aldbrough St John Parish Council - 
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic 
Services) 
 

(Pages 109 - 
114) 

8.   Temporary Appointments - Irton Parish Council - Report of the 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 
 

(Pages 115 - 
120) 

9.   Decision on whether to proceed with a Community Governance 
Review - Dishforth Parish Council - Report of the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 
 

(Pages 121 - 
134) 

10.   Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman should, 
by reason of special circumstances, be considered as a matter of 
urgency 
 

 

 
For all enquiries relating to this agenda or to register to speak at the meeting, please contact  
Steve Loach, Democratic Services Officer on Tel: 01609 532216 or by e-mail at:  
stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk  
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive 
(Legal and Democratic Services) 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
5th December 2023 

Page 2

mailto:stephen.loach@northyorks.gov.uk


 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

 

North Yorkshire Council  
  

Standards and Governance Committee  
  

Minutes of the meeting held on 15th September 2023 commencing at 2.00 pm.  

  
Councillor Clive Pearson (Chair), Councillors Nick Brown, Sam Cross, George Jabbour (as 

substitute for Nigel Knapton), Heather Phillips, Monika Slater and Peter Wilkinson; together with 

Gillian Baker, Louise Holroyd, James (Jamie) Nelson and Richinda Taylor (Independent Persons 

for Standards).  

 

Attending remotely – Councillors Sam Cross and Andy Solloway; together with Roy Martin 

(Independent Persons for Standards). 

  

Officers present: Steve Loach (Democratic Services); Elizabeth Jackson (Democratic Services 

Manager); Barry Khan, (Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) and Monitoring 

Officer); Jennifer Norton, (Assistant Director Legal) and Moira Beighton (Governance Lawyer). 

  

Apologies: Councillors Melanie Davis and David Ireton; together with Hilary Gilbertson 

(Independent Person for Standards) 

  

 

  

Copies of all documents considered are in the Minute Book  

  

 
  

14.  Minutes of the Meeting held on 5th July 2023  
  

Resolved -   
  

The minutes of the meeting held on 5th July 2023 were confirmed and signed as an 

accurate record.  
  

15.    Declarations of Interest  

  

Councillor Nick Brown declared a registered interest in relation to him being a member of the 

Grand Lodge of England, in relation to an issue to be considered later in the meeting. 

  

16.    Public Questions or Statements  

  

There were no public questions or statements. 

 

17.    Appointment of further Independent Persons for North Yorkshire Council 

  

Considered – 

 

The report of the Monitoring Officer updating the Committee regarding the appointment of further 
Independent Persons for Standards for North Yorkshire Council.  
 
The term of office of the two Independent Persons for the predecessor authority North 
Yorkshire County Council continued post Vesting Day as a continuing authority model of 
local government re-organsiation. The Committee previously agreed that the Monitoring 
Officer should look to recruit further Independent Persons to assist North Yorkshire Council 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

in promoting and maintaining the high standards of conduct amongst its elected and co-
opted members as well as members of the town and parish councils in the area for which 
North Yorkshire Council assumed responsibility from Vesting Day. 
 
As a result of the Committee’s decision a recruitment process was undertaken for additional 
Independent Persons, shortlisting of applicants was undertaken by the Monitoring Officer and 
the Chair of the Committee and interviews with the shortlisted applicants were undertaken by 
a panel of Members from the Committee. 
 
The following were identified as the preferred Independent Persons, following that process:- 
 
• Gillian Baker – Gillian was an independent person for standards for Ryedale District Council 

from 2007 to 2023. 
 
• Roy Martin – Roy was an independent person for standards for Hambleton District Council 

from 2019 to 2023.  
 
• James Nelson – James was an independent person for standards for Hambleton District 

Council’s Standards Hearing Panel from 2019 to 2023.  
 
• Richinda Taylor – Richinda was an independent person for standards for Scarborough 

Borough Council since 2013. 
 

These Independent Persons were recommended to Full Council to join the existing 

Independent Persons, Louise Holroyd and Hilary Gilbertson, on the Standards and 

Governance Committee. Full Council approved the appointments in July 2023. 

 

Resolved – 

  

That the report be noted. 

 

18.    Dispensation Request - Councillor Stephanie Duckett  
  

Considered –   

  

A report of the Monitoring Officer concerning a dispensation request from Councillor 

Stephanie Duckett. This request was for the four years until the end of his term and would 

allow for her to speak and vote at meetings regarding council housing. A copy of Councillor 

Duckett’s application was attached to the report. She believed the application would satisfy 

the appropriate criteria, namely that the granting of the dispensation would be in the interests 

of persons living in the authority’s area. 

 

Councillor Duckett was a tenant of predecessor council Selby District Council for 47 years 

and is now a tenant of North Yorkshire Council. She was seeking a dispensation from the 

Committee to enable her to participate in meetings involving council housing tenants’ rights 

and rents. She informed the Monitoring Officer that she has previously received dispensations 

from her former authority in relation to this matter. 

  

Members discussed the request, and the following issues were raised:  

  

• It was clarified that Members were required to declare at meetings that they had 

been given a dispensation when an issue arose relating to that matter. 

• Members welcomed the early submission of the dispensation request. 

• Following discussions at an earlier meeting it was stated that it was appropriate for 

the dispensation to be granted for the full term of the Councillors period of office, as 

this avoided the possibility of Members forgetting to renew their dispensation and 

breaching the Code. 

Page 4



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

 

Resolved-   
  

That the dispensation request for Councillor Stephanie Duckett be approved, as set out in the 

report.   

  

Voting Record   

  

Unanimous 

  

 

19.  Dispensation Request - Councillor Cliff Lunn  

  

Considered –   

 

A report of the Monitoring Officer concerning dispensation request from Councillor Cliff Lunn. 

Councillor Lunn emailed the Monitoring Officer on 29 August 2023 to request a dispensation 

from the Standards and Governance Committee, to enable him to speak and vote on a 

planning application  

 
 The circumstances of the request related to an application for proposed residential 

development on land at Leeds Road for 140 houses. Councillor Lunn lives within 250 yards 
of the proposed development. He informed the Monitoring Officer that he had attended 
meetings set up by the developer for the people of the village and was aware of the 
unpopular nature of the development but had not put in any objection nor made any negative 
comments about the development. He had given advice to his neighbours as to planning 
considerations and what was a valid objection. He did not feel he had done anything which 
would indicate pre-determination. 

 
 It was noted that dispensation request related only to this specific planning application and, 

if granted, would allow him to take part, fully, in the meeting and vote on the application. 
 

  Members discussed the request, and the following issues were raised:  

 

• Members referred to his statement relating to him having an open mind on the 

application. 

• It was considered that local Planning ACCs may lead to a large number of such 

dispensation requests as the Members on the Committee were local to that area and 

were likely to be involved with applications within their electoral division and near to 

their properties. 

• It was felt important that Members had an opportunity to represent local residents on 

Planning issues, but it was unclear as to whether the Member should be fully involved 

if their own property was considered to be affected by the application, and that other 

local residents could put pressure on the Member to vote in a certain way, particularly 

if they the neighbours of the Councillor. In relation to this it was stated that a public 

perception test would need to be undertaken to determine whether there was 

predetermination or bias on the part of the Member. This was done on a case by case 

basis and it was for the Member to show that they had not shown or declared any 

prejudice in respect of the issue concerned. 

• Members were unsure as to whether this specific request should warrant a 

dispensation as they considered it was for the Member to determine whether they had 

an interest or not. If predetermination was found, through the public perception test, 

then the Member would not be able to consider the application whether or not a 

dispensation was in place. In terms of declarable interests these were determined by 

public law and had different criteria to those relating to predetermination. 

• Members noted that Councillor Lunn’s property was not immediately adjacent to the 

application site and suggested it was for him to determine whether he considered he 

had a declarable interest or not when the item was discussed at the meeting. There 

Page 5



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

was also some concern regarding the number of applications for dispensations that 

may arise in respect of local Planning Committees, should this be granted. 

 

Resolved –   

  

That the application for a dispensation submitted by Councillor Cliff Lunn be refused.   

  

Voting Record  

 

Unanimous  

  

20.  Local Ethical Framework Developments 

  

Considered –   

  

The Report of the Monitoring Officer updating Members on the development of the national 
ethical framework under the Localism Act 2011. The following issues were highlighted:- 
 

• LGA Local Leadership Framework for Councillors 

• Online Safety Bill 

• LGA: “Debate not Hate – Ending abuse in public life for Councillors” 

• CSPL Annual Report 2022/23 

• CSPL – Upholding standards in public life recommendation tracker 

• LGA survey re Model Code of Conduct for Members 
 

  

Links to the details on each item were provided in the report.   

  

Resolved –   

  

That the report be noted. 

  

21.  Declarations of Interest 

  

Considered –   

  

Report of the Monitoring Officer in response to a question raised by the Standards and 

Governance Committee as to whether membership of a masonic lodge would need to be 

registered under the Code of Conduct and declared at meetings. 

 

Under the Council’s Code of Conduct, councillors are required to register membership of a 

Masonic Lodge if it is a body that has “charitable purposes.” Details pertaining to why that is 

necessary and included in the Code were outlined in the report. It was noted that simply being 

a Member of a Masonic Lodge was not a declarable interest unless the charitable concerns 

were the subject of a report to a Committee. Guidance from the Standards Board for England 

provided further details and were included within the report, alongside case-law on this matter. 

 

It was noted that Freemasons were not precluded from taking part in discussions at a meeting 

to discuss a specific but should declare an interest if they are a member of that Lodge. The 

public test for predetermination would be undertaken to consider whether they had an open 

mind on a decision to be taken in such a case. 

  

Resolved –   

  

That the Committee notes the guidance relating to registration and declaration of interests. 

 

22.    Protocol re Unreasonably Persistent/Vexatious Complainants 

Page 6



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

 

          Considered –  

 

The report of the Monitoring Officer for Members to consider an updated Protocol for the 

Committee re Unreasonably Persistent/Vexatious Complainants. 

 

An opportunity had been taken to update the Protocol following Vesting Day on 1 April 2023 

and an updated Protocol was attached at Appendix 1 to the report for Members’ comments.  

 

Should Members be minded to agree the draft Protocol, then consequential amendments 

would be required to the standards complaints procedure. Draft consequential amendments 

were set out in Appendix 2 for Members’ comments.  

 

Members discussed the draft protocol and the following issues were highlighted:- 

 

• If a local elected Member was the subject of unreasonably persistent/vexatious 

complaints, appropriate updates would be provided directly to the Member. The 

Committee emphasised that it was not just local Members involved and the protocol 

should be altered to refer to the affected Councillor. 

• Clarification was provided as to how unreasonably persistent/vexatious complaints 

were determined, with this being based on the complaint, rather than the 

complainant. In a number of cases the same complaint is submitted into different 

parts of the authority with a scattergun approach. The protocol aims to prevent that 

from leading to a large amount of resources being devoted to the same issue. When 

a complaint is determined as being unreasonably persistent/vexatious then a single 

point of contact is given to the complainant who handles any issues arising from the 

complainant, subsequently. That position is reviewed every 6 months. Should the 

complainant disagree with the Council’s position on this they are advised to refer the 

matter to the Ombudsman. 

  

 Resolved – 

 

(i) That, subject to changing the reference to affected Members from local Members, 

the updated Protocol re Unreasonably Persistent/Vexatious Standards 

Complainants at Appendix 1 be approved. 

 

(ii)          That, following the amendment highlighted in (i) above, the draft consequential  

amendments to the standards complaint procedure at Appendix 2 be approved. 

 

23.  Complaints Update  

  

Considered – 

 

The report of the Monitoring Officer regarding complaint activity under the ethical framework 

that would be brought to scheduled meetings of the Standards and Governance Committee. 

 

Since 1 April 2023, to the date of the report, the Council had received eighty-six complaints 
that members may have breached the relevant authority’s code of conduct for members: 
 
Nine of those complaints were complaints about Members of North Yorkshire Council, five 
of which were connected complaints against the same Councillor raised by connected 
complainants. 

 
Seventy-seven complaints related to complaints about members of parish and town 
councils in the North Yorkshire area. Of those four were connected complaints against 
parish councillors raised by connected complainants and forty-seven were connected 
complaints, brought by the same complainant. 

Page 7



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

 
Twenty-five of the eighty-six cases had been assessed by the Monitoring Officer in 
consultation with the Independent Person for Standards resulting in:- 
 
Twelve cases not meriting any further action; 
One case been resolved informally; 
Twelve cases to be investigated -eleven of those cases were connected with only one 
allegation within the complaints is to be investigated  
 
The remainder of the complaints were in preparatory stages or awaiting assessment by the 
Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person for Standards and a further 
update would be given to the Committee by the Monitoring Officer subsequently. 
 
A more detailed breakdown of the complaints was attached as an appendix to the report. 
 
Members discussed the update and the following issues were highlighted:- 
 

• A Member suggested that it was difficult to comment on the complaints as there 
was little detail provided. In response it was stated that the subject matter could not 
be provided in a public forum, however, Members would be provided with full details 
outside of the meeting. 

• It was stated that the new Code of Conduct was a large document that could create 
difficulties for some Parish Councils in terms of their meeting its requirements in full 
and it was suggested that working alongside them, to fully understand what was 
required may be beneficial in terms of reducing the number of complaints. It was 
stated that officers had met with the YLCA to discuss the development of training 
on the Code of Conduct, as many of the issues for local Councils are monitored by 
them, and it was suggested that a number of workshops would be developed with 
them, providing helpful examples. An executive summary would also be developed 
to assist with understanding the Code. A Member suggested that it would be useful 
for executive summaries to be produced for each section, eg Planning. 

• It was suggested that for Members to be able to determine developing trends in 
complaints it may be appropriate for the documents to be provided as confidential 
items, eliminating them from the public view. A Member agreed with this as it was 
important that the Committee were able to have full details to provide assistance 
with complaints.  

• It was emphasised that documents such as the Code of Conduct should be 
produced in an understandable format, avoiding abbreviations and jargon, to assist 
other bodies that were expected to abide by them, thereby promoting the 
sentiments of the Parish Charter. It was suggested that Parish and Town Councils 
required resources to assist them with their understanding of the process involved. 

 
Resolved – 
 
That the Committee notes the current position on complaints received. 

 
 
24. Registration of Officers’ Interests 
 

  Considered – 

 

The report of the Monitoring Officer updating Members on the review of the process for the 
registration of officers’ interests.  
 
Members had previously requested an update be brought to the Committee regarding the 
process for the registration of officers’ interests in respect of the process for this.  
 
Following the Vesting Day of North Yorkshire Council, as a continuing authority form of local 
government reorganisation, the current paper-based process continued but was under 

Page 8



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

review, with an electronic system being considered. The initial focus was on budget 
managers (600) in phase 1, with the aim, in the longer term, to extend to all staff in phase 2.  
 
Details of the proposed system were outlined in the report.  
 
The officers scheme differed from that of the Members scheme, despite having similar 
categories, in that there was no requirement for the officers interests to be published on a 
publicly accessible platform. 
 
Resolved -   
 
That the Committee notes the contents of the report. 

 
25. Requests for Community Governance Reviews 
 
  Considered – 
 

The report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) seeking the 
Committee’s approval to adopt a protocol setting out how the council will respond to requests 
for Community Governance Reviews (CGRs). 
 
The report detailed the legislation in relation to CGRs, the opportunity for North Yorkshire 
Council to review and make changes to community governance within those areas, the 
process involved in undertaking a CGR and how the Council’s constitution devolved the 
function to this Committee of making recommendations to Council in relation to CGRs.  
 
 A draft protocol setting out how the council would respond to requests for CGRs was 

appended to the report detailing what CGRs could be used for, how they could be initiated 

and outlined the process for carrying out a review.  The protocol covered the period up to 

the scheduled May 2027 elections and set out the current context in which requests for CGRs 

would be considered.   

 

Issues relating to the Local Government Boundary Commission for England’s (LGBCE) and 

its impact on reviews were outlined in the protocol as was how the requirement for an urgent 

review was determined. 

 

Members discussed the report and the following issues were highlighted:- 
 

• It was asked whether the timetable for a total review could be met given that the 
LGBCE would need to be in place before this could be undertaken. In response it 
was stated that it was expected that the review could be implemented in the time 
between the LGBCE and the Council election in 2027. 

• It was clarified that the need for GCRs was relatively infrequent. 

• A Member suggested that local Members should be informed of GCRs taking place 
for Parish Councils in their respective Electoral Division. It was stated that this 
would be added into the protocol. 

Resolved –  
 
(i) That the Standards and Governance Committee adopt the Community Governance 

Reviews – protocol for consideration of requests, attached as an appendix to the 
report.  

 
(ii) That authority be delegated to the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic 

Services), in consultation with the Executive Member for Corporate Services, to 
determine if requests for Community Governance Reviews should be treated as 
urgent and brought forward to the Standards and Governance Committee to 
recommend approval of terms of reference to the Council. 

 
26. Broadcasting and recording of public committee meetings 
 

Page 9



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

  Considered –  
 

The report of the Monitoring Officer advising Members on the broadcasting and recording of 
public committee meetings. 

 
Currently North Yorkshire Council broadcasts and records meetings of Full Council, the 
Executive, the Police Fire and Crime Panel, Planning Committees and some Area 
Constituency Committee meetings.  In addition, a number of meetings are 
recorded/broadcast where there is significant public interest. 
 
A report would shortly be taken to Management Board and then Cabinet regarding the 
provision of the necessary technology at key sites in the county to enable some or all of 
the Council’s public committee meetings to be recorded, broadcast and have hybrid 
access. The report would propose a range of costed options from carrying on as now to 
recording/broadcasting all public committee meetings of the Council. 
 
Further details would be provided to the Committee as this progressed. 
 
Resolved – 
 
That the Committee notes the contents of the report. 

 
27. Standards Bulletin 

 
 Considered - 
 
 The report of the Monitoring Officer presenting for the Committee’s consideration, a draft of 

the latest Standards Bulletin, a copy of which was appended to the report.  
 
 It was asked to whom the Bulletin was circulated. In response it was stated that it was sent 

to all Councillors, some officers and some Parish Councils. It was suggested that all Parish 
Councils would benefit from receipt of the Bulletin as it would assist with their engagement 
with the Standards process. 

 
 Resolved – 
 
 That the Bulletin be approved for circulation and that Parish Councils be included in the 

circulation. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
28. Other Urgent Business 
 
 Request for CGR – Dishforth Parish Council 
 
 It was stated that the Clerk of Dishforth Parish Council had asked that their request for a 

Community Governance Review be dealt with by the Committee were dealt with as a matter 
of urgency. 

 
 The circumstances relating to the request were outlined and information provided as to what 

could be undertaken by the Parish Council in view of the details provided. 
 
 Members were requested to determine whether this matter should be dealt with by the 

Committee as an urgent item at this meeting. 
 
 A Member noted that the Parish Council was in his Electoral District and was in danger of 

becoming inquorate. It was stated that although this was the case, the current quorate Parish 
Council could co-opt to prevent this from happening. 

Page 10



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

  
Members agreed that the matter should not be taken as an urgent item at this meeting and 
should be referred to the Assistant Director (Legal and Democratic Services) in conjunction 
with the relevant Executive Member to follow this issue up and decide how it should be dealt 
with. 

 
 

There being no further business, the meeting ended at 4:05pm.   

  

  

  

Page 11



 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

This page is intentionally left blank 

Page 12



 

 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

Standards and Governance Committee 

 
13 December 2023 

 
North Yorkshire Polling District and Polling Place Review Final Proposals 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The Committee are asked to approve the final recommendations for polling districts and polling 

places within the North Yorkshire Council area. 
 

 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 Local authorities are required to review their polling districts and polling places for UK  
 parliamentary constituencies at least once every five years. Under the Electoral   
 Registration and Administration Act 2013, the compulsory review periods are now: 

  
a) The period of 16 months beginning with 1 October 2013, and 
b) The period of 16 months beginning with 1 October of every fifth year after that. 

 
2.2 The current compulsory review period commenced on 1 October 2023, and this is the first 

time that a polling district review has been conducted as North Yorkshire Council (NYC).  
 
2.3 A polling district is a geographical area created by the sub-division of a parliamentary 

constituency for the purposes of a UK Parliamentary election. Currently NYC has 888 polling 
districts, with around 560 stations.  

 
2.4 A polling place is the building or area in which the (Acting) Returning Officer (A)RO will 

allocate a polling station. The polling place should be designated so that the polling station 
is within easy reach of all electors from across the polling district. 

 
2.5 As required under 18C(1) of the Representation of the People Act 1983 the Council gave 
 notice of the review of polling districts and polling places, and the timetable set out as follows: 
  

ACTION DATE 

Commence Review Monday 16 October 2023 

Consultation deadline  November 13 November 2023 

Decision at Standards and 
Governance Committee 

Wednesday 13 December 2023 

Publish Notice of Changes Monday 18 December 2023 

PUBLISH REVISED 
ELECTORAL REGISTER 

Thursday 1 February 2024 

  
2.6 In addition to the 5 yearly statutory review, local authorities can undertake interim reviews 

 at any time to make changes to the polling district/place schedule if required due to   

buildings becoming unavailable or other reasons. The Returning Officer may also make   
changes to polling stations at short notice if required for the delivery of a poll. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

3.0 APPROACH TAKEN AND RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 There are a number of legislative requirements for polling district and polling place reviews. 
 These are: 

• each parish must be a separate polling district, unless special circumstances apply; 

• the council must designate a polling place for each polling district, unless the size or 
other circumstances of a polling district are such that the situation of the polling 
stations does not materially affect the convenience of the electors; 

• the polling place must be an area in the district, unless special circumstances make 
it desirable to designate an area wholly or partly outside the district; 

• the polling place must be small enough to indicate to electors in different parts of the 
district how they will be able to reach the polling station; 

• Local authorities must also comply with accessibility requirements which are that so 
far as is reasonable and practicable every polling place should be accessible to 
electors who are disabled.  

 
3.2 Within the next two years, a Local Government Boundary Review will be undertaken, and as 

a result, a further polling district and polling places review will be required to account for any 
new electoral boundaries established following the completion of the boundary review. With 
this in mind, changes have only been recommended where: 

• the existing polling place was no longer available 

• where the existing polling place is no longer suitable for continued use as a polling 
station, or,  

• in the case of polling districts, merges have been recommended where both polling 
districts are in the same electoral area and are already using the same polling station, 
and where the ratio of electors to stations as recommendation by the Electoral 
Commission can be met (2,500 electors max to a station, though polling places can 
be split into multiple polling stations if space allows). 

 
3.3 Initial recommendations were published at the start of the review, shared and 

representations sought as part of the required consultation process. 
 
3.4 The full list of polling districts and the final recommendation for each one is shown in 

Appendix C, and the list of recommended changes to current arrangements is shown in 
Appendix D. 

 
4.0 CONSULTATION UNDERTAKEN AND RESPONSES  
 
4.1 In carrying out consultation the Council has followed the Electoral Commission guidance on 

how the review should be conducted. Appendix A sets out the list of consultees from whom 
representations were sought during the consultation period.  

 
4.2 The Council consulted the (A)RO of the six current parliamentary constituencies within 

North Yorkshire, who made representations on existing and proposed arrangements. The 

Council published the (A)RO’s proposals and invited comments. It is important to note that 

the proposed recommendations have been made to factor in the changes to Parliamentary 

constituency boundaries that come into force at the next General Election. 

 
4.3 In addition to the usual groups interested in electoral arrangements the Council particularly 

wanted to include and obtain comments and views of disability groups within the NYC area, 

which was achieved through engaging with NYCs Consultation Team.  

 

4.4 The notice of review was published on 16th October along with a copy of the initial 

recommendations on the Council’s website Previous consultations | North Yorkshire 

Council to allow anyone to make representation, following a media release to publicise it. 

Page 14

https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/your-council/consultations-and-engagement/previous-consultations
https://www.northyorks.gov.uk/your-council/consultations-and-engagement/previous-consultations


 

 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

Initial recommendations formed a consultation document, generated by Constituency, and 

then further divided by NYC Division, listing each polling district and its designated polling 

place. 

 

4.5  Paper copies of the documents were placed in council offices around North Yorkshire. NYC 

social media feeds were also used to promote the consultation at the start of, during, and 

towards the end of the consultation. 

 

4.6 During the consultation period, 135 responses were received. Of those, approximately 50% 

were in favour / supportive of changes, and 50% against.  

 

4.7 A summary of all responses received can be seen in Appendix B. The (A)RO has also made 

comments against all representations.  

 

4.8 Of those that were against the proposals, 23 were specifically opposing the   

recommendation to move the polling place in Low Row in the Richmond (Yorks)    

constituency to nearby Gunnerside. Many of the representations received referred  

to recent and ongoing improvements to the accessibility of the building. As a result, the final 

  recommendation for this polling district is to retain the polling place at Low Row Institute. 

 

4.9 A further 20 representations were specifically opposed to the recommendation to move the 

 polling place in Dallowgill in the Skipton and Ripon constituency to Kirkby Malzeard. As a 

 result of these representations, the Electoral Services team made a visit to the Methodist 

 School Room in Dallowgill and assessed its suitability for continued use as a polling place.  

The conclusion was that it is not suitable to be used as a polling station due to the poor  

access for voters with disabilities and due to the condition of the building and the facilities. 

The final recommendation is unchanged from the initial recommendation to move the polling 

place for Dallowgill to Kirkby Malzeard Mechanics Institute. 

 

4.10 As a consequence of representations received during the consultation period, site visits were 

carried out by members of the Electoral Services team where necessary, and changes were 

made to the initial recommendations as a result of the consultation process in five instances 

shown in the table below. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Constituency Division Polling 

District at 
1 Dec 
2022 

Polling 
Place 

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation 

(Acting) Returning Officer 
Final Recommendation 

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough 

High 
Harrogate & 
Kingsley 

HRJAH1H Starbeck 
Methodist 
Church 

Merge with 
HRJAH2H. No 
change to polling 
station 

Do not merge polling districts. 
Create new polling district 
boundary. Polling station to 
change to Christ Church Parish 
Centre 

Page 15



 

 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough 

High 
Harrogate & 
Kingsley 

HRJAH2H Starbeck 
Methodist 
Church 

Merge with 
HRJAH1H. No 
change to polling 
station 

Do not merge polling districts. 
Create new polling district 
boundary.  

Richmond 
(Yorks) 

Morton-on-
Swale & 
Appleton 
Wiske 

HBMO02R Danby 
Wiske 
Village Hall 

No change to polling 
station. 

Change polling station to Kirkby 
Fleetham Village Hall 

Richmond 
(Yorks) 

Upper Dales RIHA01R Gunnerside 
Village Hall 

Merge with 
RIHA04R. No 
change to polling 
station. 

Do not merge polling districts. 
No change to polling station 

Richmond 
(Yorks) 

Upper Dales RIHA04R Low Row 
Institute 

Merge with 
RIHA01R. Change 
polling station to 
Gunnerside Village 
Hall 

Do not merge polling districts. 
No change to polling station 

Richmond 
(Yorks) 

Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar 

HBBE02R Leeming 
Village Hall 

No change to polling 
station. 

Change polling station to The 
Reubans, Leeming Bar 

Thirsk and 
Malton 

Sowerby & 
Topcliffe 

HBSO05T Sowerby 
Scout Hut 

No change to polling 
station. 

Create new polling district to 
account for new homes build at 
Sowerby Gateway. No change 
to polling station until suitable 
venue for new polling district is 
identified. 

Thirsk and 
Malton 

Sowerby & 
Topcliffe 

HBSO05T Sowerby 
Scout Hut 

No change to polling 
station. 

Create new polling district to 
account for new homes build at 
Sowerby Gateway. No change 
to polling station until suitable 
venue for new polling district is 
identified. 

 
5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 

5.1 Amend the final recommendations: Any amendments to the final recommendations may 
require a further consultation on the amended recommendations. An additional period of 
consultation would lead to a delay in the implementation date for polling districts and effect 
the publication of the revised register of electors planned for 01 February,2024 and potentially 
impact the preparations for the elections expected in 2024.  

 
5.2 Not to approve the final recommendations: To not approve the recommendations would leave 

NYC in breach of its duty to review polling district and polling places.  
  
5.3 Where alternative proposals were received as a result of the consultation process, each  
 proposal was considered. Where necessary, visits to alternative venues have been made 
 and a response to each representation proposal received is detailed in Appendix B along 
 with any revisions that have been made to the initial proposals as a result. 
 
6.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 The recommendations in the polling district review are broadly cost neutral as the overall 

number of polling places used is almost the same as the pre-existing arrangements. 
 
7.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1  The Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 requires the Council to undertake 

this review between the period of 1 October 2023 and January 2025.  
 
8.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  

Page 16



 

 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

 
8.1 An Equalities Impact Assessment Screening Form has been completed and can be found at 

appendix E 
 
9.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 None. An initial climate change impact assessment form is attached at Appendix F. 
 
10.0 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 Breach of Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 by not conducting and 

completing this review within the given timescales.  
 
10.2  Pressures of scheduled and unscheduled elections expected in 2024 would not easily allow 

this review to be undertaken any later, particularly given the uncertain nature the timing of 
the next UK Parliamentary General Election which must be held before by January 2025.  

 
11.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
11.1 To ensure compliance with Electoral Registration and Administration Act 2013 
 
11.2 To ensure polling districts and polling places are fit for purpose, having been reviewed by 

North Yorkshire Council after its formation, on 01 April 2024, and in consultation with the 

(A)RO.  

 

13.0 RECOMMENDATION(S)   
 

 i) to approve the final recommendations for polling districts and designated polling places 
as shown in Appendix C. 
 

  

 
APPENDICES: 
Appendix A – Consultee List 
Appendix B – Summary List of all Responses to Consultation 
Appendix C – Full Schedule of Final Recommendations 
Appendix D – List of Recommendations which would change existing arrangements 
Appendix E – Equality Impact Assessment Screening Form 
Appendix F – Climate Change Impact Assessment Screening Form 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
None 
 
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
 
13 December 2023 
 
Report Authors: 
Kerry Russett – Head of Electoral Services 
Ben Nattrass – Electoral Services Manager 
 

Page 17



 

 

OFFICIAL OFFICIAL 

Presenters of Report: 
Kerry Russett – Head of Electoral Services 
Ben Nattrass – Electoral Services Manager 
 
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries 
or questions. 
 

Page 18



 

 

OFFICIAL 

APPENDIX A – List of Consultees 

The Council’s Campaigns Team produced a partner pack giving details of the polling district review 

and inviting comments from interested parties. The partner pack was shared with the following 

organisations and the accompanying information encouraged recipients to share with their users 

and partner organisations: 

 

Community First Yorkshire 

Humber & North Yorkshire Integrated Care Board 

GP Federation and Heartbeat Alliance 

Sight Support Ryedale 

Selby Talking Newspaper 

North Yorkshire Council Engagement Team 

North Yorkshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

Department of Work and Pensions, North Yorkshire contacts 

Inclusion North 

All Parish Councils 

 

In addition, North Yorkshire councillors and MPs representing the 6 North Yorkshire constituencies 

were contacted about the review and how to respond to the consultation. 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

APPENDIX B – SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES RECEIVED 

Denotes a change to the initial recommendations 

By Current Constituency: 

• Harrogate and Knaresborough 

• Richmond (Yorks) 

• Scarborough and Whitby 

• Selby and Ainsty 

• Skipton and Ripon 

• Thirsk and Malton 

 

Consultation Responses & Representations Received to Initial Proposals 

CONSTITUENCY: Harrogate and Knaresborough 

No Division Polling 

Districts 

affected 

Commentator Summary of comment Assessment of comments (Acting) Returning 

Officer’s final 

recommendation 

1 Bilton & Nidd 

Gorge 

 

HRBAHH 

 

Member of public Dene Park Community Centre 

is not convenient for voters on 

my side of polling district  

The Community Centre is 

well located within the 

polling district and remains 

suitable for polling 

No change 

2 Boroughbridge & 

Claro 

 

HRWJH1H/ 

HRWJH2H 

 

Oliver Quarmby, 

Arkendale, 

Coneythorpe & 

Clareton Parish 

Council 

The Community Hall in 

Arkendale works very well, is 

accessible and well located 

near the bus stop 

 

Thank you No change 

P
age 21



 

 

OFFICIAL 

3 Boroughbridge & 

Claro 

 

HRWGHH 

 

John Goss, 

Boroughbridge 

Town Council 

 

The Methodist Church in 

Boroughbridge is ideal it have a 

ramp up to the building and a 

new ramp access into the 

building . Its in an ideal location 

in the town. Parking is a bit 

difficult 

 

Thank you No change 

4 Coppice Valley & 

Duchy 

 

HRDAH2H 

 

Member of public The resident lives closer to the 

polling station at St Joseph’s 

Church than Harrogate Civic 

Centre and would like to 

change where they vote 

St Joseph's Church is closer to 

resident's address, but to 

move it there would mean 

moving other voters in the 

same polling district to a 

location further away from 

their current polling station.  

 

No change 

5 High Harrogate & 

Kingsley 

 

HRJAH1H/ 

HRJAH2H 

 

Cllr Chris Aldred, 

High Harrogate & 

Kingsley Division 

 

Starbeck Methodist Church is 

outside the polling districts and 

is inconvenient for voters. 

Suggest moving voters in 

certain streets to Christ Church 

polling station and moving 

polling station for remainder to 

the Common Room at the 

Station View Sheltered Housing 

Scheme 

The polling districts boundary 

can be amended as 

suggested and the polling 

station for voters in HRJAH1H 

can be moved to Christ 

Church. Electoral Services 

staff have enquired about 

booking the common room 

as an alternative to Starbeck, 

but have been told it is not 

possible. 

Voters in HRJAH1H 

to vote at Christ 

Church. Voters in 

HRJAH2H to vote 

at Starbeck 

Methodist Church. 

P
age 22



 

 

OFFICIAL 

6 Killinghall, 

Hampsthwaite & 

Saltergate 

All Member of public No issues with accessibility Thank you No change 

7 Valley Gardens & 

Central Harrogate 

 

HRSAH2 

 

Member of public Current polling station is too 

far away to walk to 

The current polling station is 

well established, is within the 

polling district and remains a 

suitable premises 

No change 

 

 

  

P
age 23



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Consultation Responses & Representations Received to Initial Proposals 

CONSTITUENCY: Richmond (Yorks) 

No Division Polling 

Districts 

affected 

Commentator Summary of comment(s) Assessment of 

comments 

(Acting) Returning 

Officer’s final 

recommendation 

1 Aiskew & Leeming 

Bar 

 

HBBE02R 

 

Michael Chaloner 

& Ian Barr, Aiskew 

& Leeming Barr 

Parish Council 

You are again planning to have no 

Polling Station in Leeming Bar which 

results in people traveling significant 

distances out of their ward from parts 

of Leeming Bar to Leeming Village Hall 

to cast their vote. The Reubens Hotel is 

a suitable venue 

Electoral Services 

officers visited the 

Reubens Hotel, agree 

it is suitable and can 

be booked for use as 

a polling station 

Change polling 

station to Reubens 

Hotel, Leeming Bar 

2 Aiskew & Leeming 

Bar 

HBBE09R 

 

Member of public 

 

No problem. 

 

Thank you No change 

3 Bedale 

 

HBTA01R 

 

Jonathan Jessop, 

Carthorpe Parish 

Council 

 

Our facilities at the Community Hall are 

currently accessible and suitable for 

voting. 

 

Thank you No change 

4 Bedale 

 

HBTA19R 

 

Member of public 

 

I am currently a postal voter; however, 

were this to change, arrangements in 

Well are satisfactory. 

 

Thank you No change 

5 Catterick Village & 

Brompton-on-

Swale 

RICA04R 

 

Diane Kirkham, 

Catterick Parish 

Council 

The Parish Council think the Booth 

Memorial Hall is still suitable as the 

polling station. 

Thank you No change 

P
age 24



 

 

OFFICIAL 

  

6 Hipswell & 

Colburn 

 

RIHI04R 

 

Helen Grant, St 

Martins Parish 

Council 

 

There doesn't appear to be any 

changes for St Martins which I am 

pleased to see.  Parking at The Station 

can be difficult sometimes and disabled 

access to the room which  is through 

heavy doors could be difficult for some. 

 

Thank you. 

Comments about the 

doors are noted and 

will be included in 

election plans 

No change 

7 Hutton Rudby & 

Osmotherley 

 

HBOS01R 

 

William Thomas 

Scott, Carlton 

Parish Council 

 

I can see no change from existing 

arrangements to this and neighbouring 

localities. I am therefore supportive of 

review with no further comment. 

 

Thank you No change 

8 Morton-on-Swale 

& Appleton Wiske 

 

HBMO02R 

 

6 members of 

public 

Kirkby Fleetham is a more convenient 

venue for voters in Great Langton than 

Danby Wiske 

Agree with comments Change polling 

station to Kirkby 

Fleetham Village 

Hall 

9 North 

Richmondshire 

 

RIME07R 

 

Member of public Melsonby St James the Great does not 

have disabled access 

The polling station at 

Melsonby entrance 

has a lip, the venue 

has a ramp that will 

be available to be 

used. 

No change 

10 North 

Richmondshire 

 

RICR05R 

 

Member of public 

 

Village is a good polling station 

 

Thank you No change 

P
age 25



 

 

OFFICIAL 

11 Northallerton 

North & 

Brompton/ 

Northallerton 

South 

 

HBNN02R/ 

HBNS01R/ 

HBNS02R 

 

Member of public 

 

Objection to using The Forum as a 

polling station due to some of the 

performers it has hosted in the past 

The venue is a well 

used community 

venue and is suitable 

for continued use as a 

polling stations. 

 

No change 

12 Northallerton 

North & 

Brompton/ 

 

HBNN01R/ 

HBNN02R 

 

Member of public Now with a new bigger village of 

Brompton and outer Northallerton on 

Darlington Road maybe a third venue 

for the town between Brompton and 

Northallerton and Romanby and 

Northallerton North Estate and re sort 

the polling stations for all. 

 

We agree that new 

housing 

developments in the 

area will require a 

new polling station, 

but believe this is 

better introduced 

following the 

scheduled full 

boundary review 

No change 

13 Romanby 

 

HBRY01R 

 

Member of public 

 

Remain perfectly suitable 

 

Thank you No change 

14 Stokesley 

 

HBST03R 

 

Michael Canavan, 

Stokesley Town 

Council 

 

Accept the No Change proposal. 

 

Thank you No change 

15 Stokesley HBST02R 

 

Mary Frew, Kirkby 

Parish Council 

 

The polling station and arrangements 

remain the same.  They are accessible 

and suitable, no further comments. 

 

Thank you No change 

P
age 26



 

 

OFFICIAL 

16 Upper Dales 

 

RILS01R 

 

2 members of 

public 

I am very pleased you are retaining St 

Mary's Church as I am severely disabled 

and would have great difficulty 

accessing Reeth whereas 

Arkengarthdale Church have improved 

disabled access 

 

Thank you No change 

17 Upper Dales 

 

RIHA04R 

 

23 respondents 

including  

Cllr Yvonne 

Peacock, Upper 

Dales Division and 

Melbecks Parish 

Council 

 

Low Row village has an older 

population and they do not have 

transport and have limited public 

transport. Closing Low Row will make it 

more difficult to vote. The village hall 

has started to update the hall and one 

of the aims is better access when they 

can afford. 

The comments about 

accessibility to the 

hall and future plans 

are noted. 

Retain polling 

station at Low 

Row. 

18 Upper Dales 

 

RILS05R 

 

3 members of 

public 

Supportive of continued use of current 

polling station 

Thank you No change 

 

 

 

  

P
age 27



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Consultation Responses & Representations Received to Initial Proposals 

CONSTITUENCY: Scarborough and Whitby 

No Division Polling 

Districts 

affected 

Commentator Summary of comment(s) Assessment of comments (Acting) Returning 

Officer’s final 

recommendation 

1 Danby & 

Mulgrave 

SCDISW/ 

SCDJSW 

Lythe Parish 

Council 

There are no proposed 

changes to the Lythe Parish 

area, thus no comments from 

Lythe Parish Council. 

Thank you No change 

2 Esk Valley & Coast SCGFSW 

 

Member of public 

 

Sneaton village hall is a good 

polling station for the 

community of the parish 

Thank you No change 

3 Whitby 

Streonshalh 

SCFASW 

 

Member of public 

 

The current polling station 

(Whitby Missions and 

Seafarers' centre) is not even 

within the polling district and 

requires a trek down into 

town and back up again. A 

better solution would be to 

use St Hilda's business centre 

on The Ropery YO22 4ET. Or 

further up the hill the Green 

Lane centre YO22 4EH. 

Electoral Services have 

enquired in the past about 

using a space at St Hilda's 

Business Centre, but no 

suitable space is available. The 

community centre on Green 

Lane has been used as a polling 

station previously, but 

complaints were received from 

voters about its location at the 

top of a steep hill, and for that 

reason the location ceased to 

be used as a polling station. 

No change 

P
age 28



 

 

OFFICIAL 

4 Whitby 

Streonshalh 

SCRASW 

 

Cllr Neil Swannick, 

Whitby 

Streonshalh 

Division 

Church House and United 

Reformed Church are the 

same building as far as I know, 

so no problem there as long 

as the new polling station is 

accessible. 

They are separate building, but 

next door to each other. New 

station is accessible. 

No change 

5 Whitby 

Streonshalh 

SCFCSW 

 

Cllr Neil Swannick, 

Whitby 

Streonshalh 

Division 

The problem with this location 

is that since the polling station 

was moved a few years ago, 

the street lighting has failed 

and cannot currently be 

restored by NYC due to the 

street not being an adopted 

highway. This would 

potentially cause problems if 

there was a winter election as 

the street is in total darkness 

at night. 

 

The premises at the former St 

Hilda's Primary School are 

much more convenient for 

voters that Whitby Library. 

Before the next scheduled 

polls, the status of the street 

lighting will be reassessed and 

if necessary, temporary 

measures put in place on 

polling day to improve the 

external lighting in the vicinity 

of the polling station. 

 

No change 

6 Various Various J.G. Harston, 

Whitby Town 

Council 

Submission focussed on the 

naming of polling districts in 

the Scarborough & Whitby 

constituency 

Suggested name changes have 

been agreed as per proposal 

for polling districts that do not 

form part of warded parishes 

only. We disagree with the 

proposal to retain two polling 

districts in Scalby as the 

numbers of polling station 

voters will not exceed Electoral 

No change to 

polling district 

boundaries, polling 

districts to be 

renamed as per 

the submission for 

polling districts not 

part of warded 

parishes with the 

P
age 29



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Commission guidance if 

merged. 

exception of 

Sleights. 

 

 

  

P
age 30



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Consultation Responses & Representations Received to Initial Proposals 

CONSTITUENCY: Selby and Ainsty 

No Division Polling 

Districts 

affected 

Commentator Summary of comment(s) Assessment of 

comments 

(Acting) Returning 

Officer’s final 

recommendation 

1 Camblesforth & 

Carleton 

SECDXSA/ 

SECLDSA/ 

SECNLSA 

Dave Perry, Drax, 

Long Drax and 

Newland Parish 

Council 

I agree that no changes are necessary 

 

Thank you No change 

2 Cliffe & North 

Duffield 

SEDHESA 

 

Member of public 

 

The Polling Station for Hemingbrough 

near Selby takes place in the village 

institute however this institute is used 

5 days a week as a Preschool for 

children between the ages of 2-4 years 

and must close on election days. Can 

alternative venue be used? 

 

This is a well-known 

community building 

and remains suitable 

for use as a polling 

station. 

No change 

3 Monk Fryston & 

South Milford 

 

All Member of public Relieved to see no change proposed. 

Agree that no change is necessary. 

 

Thank you No change 

4 Osgoldcross 

 

SEWLSSA 

 

Gillian Ivey, Little 

Smeaton Parish 

Council 

 

Yes, the allocated venue for polling 

station for both Smeaton Villages is 

acceptable. 

 

Thank you No change 

P
age 31



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5 Selby West 

 

SESLSSA 

 

Member of public 

 

The former district council offices are 

perfect for voting. There's parking and 

a bus service into the hospital grounds 

Thank you No change 

6 Spofforth with 

Lower Wharfedale 

and Tockwith 

HRYMA2SA 

 

Member of public 

 

Voting for local councillor wasn't 

possible at Kirkby Overblow, had to 

drive 15mins to Sicklinghall. Village has 

a high proportion of elderly residents 

and this was difficult for some. 

No suitable 

alternative is 

available in the 

polling district 

 

No change 

7 Thorpe 

Willoughby & 

Hambleton 

 

SEHAGSA 

 

Member of public 

 

There is no public transport to 

Hambleton from Gateforth 

 

The current location 

is a private residence 

and does not meet 

accessibility 

requirements. No 

suitable alternative 

exists within the 

polling district. 

No change 

 

  

P
age 32



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Consultation Responses & Representations Received to Initial Proposals 

CONSTITUENCY: Skipton and Ripon 

No Division Polling 

Districts 

affected 

Commentator Summary of comment(s) Assessment of comments (Acting) Returning 

Officer’s final 

recommendation 

1 Bentham & 

Ingleton 

CRIAC5SR 

 

John Metcalfe, 

Ingleton Parish 

Council 

There are a number of premises 

within the Parish of Thornton in 

Lonsdale which would be 

suitable for use as a polling 

station without asking the 

residents to travel further to 

vote 

No suitable alternative has 

been identified during the 

consultation period. 

 

Change polling 

station to 

Ingleborough 

Community Centre 

2 Gargrave & 

Malhamdale 

CRGAM2SR 

 

Catherine Downs, 

Bank Newton 

Parish Meeting 

Residents in Bank Newton Parish 

find it easy to go to Gargrave 

Village Hall to vote in elections. 

Thank you No change 

3 Gargrave & 

Malhamdale 

CRGAM1SR 

 

Member of public 

 

I am very pleased to see there is 

no proposal to change the voting 

location in the Airton/Scosthrop 

area. This area has a high 

percentage of elderly and 

physically less-able voters, many 

of whom still like to go to the 

polling station to physically place 

their vote. 

Thank you  No change 

4 Gargrave & 

Malhamdale 

CRHLP1SR 

 

Member of public 

 

A central location seems to be 

accessible to most people.  

Thank you No change 

P
age 33



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

5 Masham & 

Fountains 

HRXMSSR 

 

20 respondents 

against initial 

proposal including 

Cllr Felicity 

Cunliffe-Lister, 

Masham & 

Fountains division 

and the Parish 

Council. 1 

response in favour 

of initial proposal. 

The Parish Council and Dallowgill 

residents feel very strongly that a 

polling station should remain in 

the school room at the 

Methodist Chapel in Dallowgill. 

 

There is adequate disabled 

access through the side entrance 

and adequate, albeit basic, toilet 

facilities. 

 

A member of the Electoral 

Services Team visited the 

premises on 9th November 

to make an assessment and 

concluded the building is 

not suitable for continued 

use as a polling station. It is 

accessed by a narrow and 

uneven dirt and gravel 

track. The area outside the 

polling station is rough and 

pitted, and there is no level 

access to the main hall, 

making it unsuitable for 

disabled voters. There is 

level access via a door to 

the side through the 

kitchen, but the door is 

narrow, there is a lip to 

cross the threshold and 

there are obstacles 

preventing easy wheelchair 

access into the polling 

station. There are very few 

residential properties visible 

from this location and the 

vast majority of voters 

would need to drive to this 

location. There is no street 

lighting and external lighting 

Move polling 

station to Kirkby 

Malzeard 

Mechanics 

Institute, no 

change to initial 

proposals 

P
age 34



 

 

OFFICIAL 

at the school room is not 

the best. Accessing this 

location in poor weather 

conditions would be 

treacherous. For polling 

staff who would be required 

to work there for 16 hours 

on polling day, there is no 

drinking water and the 

toilets are in a poor state.  

 

6 Pateley Bridge & 

Nidderdale 

HRYESSR 

 

Member of public 

 

Suitability is fine but there are 

access issues at Pateley 

Memorial Hall. Although disabled 

parking and a low-threshold 

doorway are signposted, the 

passageway from that doorway 

to the polling booths has been 

obstructed by stacks of chairs on 

my last two visits making it 

unusable. I've needed to be 

helped  through the 'able-

bodied' entrance (up steps) in 

order to vote. 

We will ensure any 

obstructions are removed to 

ensure polling booths are 

accessible to all 

 

No change 

7 Skipton West & 

West Craven 

CRSKW2SR 

 

Member of public 

 

For those with mobility issues 

parking is limited at the church 

but generally the venue is good 

There is a dedicated 

disabled parking space at 

the church 

No change 

P
age 35



 

 

OFFICIAL 

8 Wathvale & 

Bishop Monkton 

HRZASSR 

 

Member of public 

 

There is no polling station in 

Asenby. Voters have to travel to 

next village Rainton. Those who 

do not drive cannot get there. 

No suitable alternative has 

been identified during the 

consultation period. 

No change 

9 Wathvale & 

Bishop Monkton 

HRWES1SR 

 

2 responses from 

Cllr Nick Brown, 

Wathvale & 

Bishop Monkton 

Division and a 

member of the 

public 

Change of Polling Station from 

Crown Inn, Roecliffe to the 

Methodist Chapel, 

Boroughbridge will require car 

transport as bus service is 

minimal and not at a convenient 

time for elderly/infirm Roecliffe 

residents. A more convenient 

Polling Station site would be St 

Mary's Church, Roecliffe. 

The church is not suitable 

having no disabled access or 

parking and a long gravelled 

drive 

 

No change 

10 Wathvale & 

Bishop Monkton 

HRWDS1SR/ 

HRWDS2SR/ 

HRWDS3SR 

Cllr Nick Brown, 

Wathvale & 

Bishop Monkton 

Division 

I feel that because these 

new  suggested polling stations 

are over a mile away from these 

villages your proposals are 

undemocratic.  

 

In Norton-le-Clay/Cundall 

the proposal is to move the 

polling station from 

Dishforth to Marton-le-

Moor which is slightly closer 

for most voters in those 

polling districts 

No change 

11 Wharfedale 

 

CRBAF11SR 

 

Debbie Burton, 

Rylstone Parish 

Meeting & 3 

members of the 

public 

Cracoe Village Hall is a good 

venue for Rylstone residents. It is 

accessible for all, with good car 

parking, and facilities. 

 

Thank you No change 

12 Wharfedale CRBAF6SR Member of public No change for us, so no issues. Thank you No change 

 

P
age 36



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Consultation Responses & Representations Received to Initial Proposals 

CONSTITUENCY: Thirsk and Malton 

No Division Polling 

Districts 

affected 

Commentator Summary of comment(s) Assessment of 

comments 

(Acting) Returning 

Officer’s final 

recommendation 

1 Amotherby & 

Ampleforth 

 

RYAAT 

 

Mrs N Ballard, 

Amotherby Parish 

Council and a 

member of the 

public 

 

No change needed.  Polling station is 

central to area and accessible. 

 

Thank you No change 

2 Amotherby & 

Ampleforth 

 

RYACT 

 

Member of public 

 

Pleased to see great Habton Hall 

continues to be a designated polling 

station. It has good access inside and 

out and it central to the community. 

 

Thank you No change 

3 Helmsley & 

Sinnington 

 

RYFCT 

 

Member of public 

 

Happy to continue going to Helmsley to 

vote 

 

Thank you No change 

4 Helmsley & 

Sinnington 

 

RYFJT 

 

Member of public 

 

Rievaulx is a very small village, where 

the polling station has always been the 

Village Hall. As half the village residents 

are elderly and don’t drive or have 

computers or smartphones, it’s 

The Village Hall at 

Rievaulx is not 

accessible to disabled 

voters and no 

suitable alternative is 

No change 

P
age 37



 

 

OFFICIAL 

important that we continue to be able 

to vote in the Village Hall.  

 

available within the 

polling district 

 

5 Hillside & Raskelf 

 

HBBA01T 

 

2 members of the 

public 

The Greyhound, Bagby, has been used 

several times now as local polling 

station and is very convenient works 

well for all local residents. 

Thank you No change 

6 Hillside & Raskelf 

 

HBBA21T 

 

Geoffrey Davis, 

Thornton-Le-

Beans Parish 

Council 

We are happy we are retaining our 

existing arrangements. 

Thank you No change 

7 Hillside & Raskelf 

 

HBRA12T 

 

Carol Fenwick, 

Husthwaite Parish 

Council 

& Parish Council 

as a whole 

Proposed polling station is accessible 

and the best option for the community 

 

Thank you No change 

8 Huby & Tollerton 

 

HBHU07T 

 

Member of public 

 

Farlington got on residents forced to 

vote 2.5 miles away in Stillington. I 

suggest not easy for all. 

No suitable 

alternative within the 

polling district has 

been identified 

during the 

consultation period. 

 

No change 

9 Huby & Tollerton 

 

HBEA09T 

 

Member of public 

 

Convenient site, but if there has been 

rain the pedestrian path outside the 

Community Centre floods as the 

pavement has sunk where the road 

Comment about the 

path is noted and will 

No change 

P
age 38



 

 

OFFICIAL 

crossing is, making access to the centre 

difficult on foot. 

be considered during 

election preparations 

 

10 Malton 

 

RYWCT 

 

Member of public 

 

Rainbow Lane Community Centre - very 

suitable, accessible 

Thank you No change 

11 Sheriff Hutton & 

Derwent 

 

RYEJT 

 

James Johnston, 

Leavening Parish 

Council 

 

This looks relatively straightforward and 

is an important review to take forward. 

We are happy with the 

recommendation for Leavening Parish. 

 

Thank you No change 

12 Sheriff Hutton & 

Derwent 

 

RYQAT 

 

Member of public 

 

No changes are proposed for Flaxton - I 

am content 

 

Thank you No change 

13 Sowerby & 

Topcliffe 

HBSO05T Member of public Happy with Sowerby Scout Hut Thank you No change 

14 Sowerby & 

Topcliffe 

HBSO05T 2 members of 

public 

I am concerned that the people of 

Sowerby Gateway do not have a nearer 

polling place. It is almost two miles for 

some voters.  There could have been a 

place at the Hub in Orchid House? This 

is not accessible for some, there is no 

transport service and will mean some 

people walking quite a long way in the 

dark after work. 

We agree a second 

polling station is 

required. We made 

an enquiry about 

booking the Hub, but 

were told it was not 

available due to 

existing bookings. 

Create new polling 

district for 

Sowerby Gateway, 

and change polling 

station when a 

suitable venue is 

identified. Until 

then, no change to 

polling station. 

17 Thirsk HBTH07T Member of public I have no problem with the proposal Thank you No change 

P
age 39



 

 

OFFICIAL 

18 Thornton Dale & 

Wolds 

RYSFT Levisham Parish 

Meeting 

It’s not changed.  The poll place is as it’s 

always been at Lockton. Non drivers can 

not access and would vote via mail. 

Thank you No change 

19 Thornton Dale & 

Wolds 

RYTDT Gerald Bainbridge, 

Thixendale Parish 

Council 

Status Quo, hence no comments. 

 

Thank you No change 

20 Thornton Dale & 

Wolds 

RYTET Femi Shellard, 

Weaverthorpe 

Parish Council 

I am pleased that there aren't any plans 

to change the Polling Place in 

Weaverthorpe as the Village Hall is fully 

accessible. 

Thank you No change 

 P
age 40



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton & Nidd 
Gorge

HKAA HRBAHH Harrogate Bilton 
Woodfield

Dene Park 
Community 
Centre

Yes 2,450 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton & Nidd 
Gorge

HKAB HRMAHH Harrogate Old Bilton Bilton Cricket 
Club

Yes 2101 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton Grange & 
New Park

HKBA HRAAHH Harrogate Bilton Grange Bilton Community 
Centre

Yes 2357 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton Grange & 
New Park

HKBB HRKAHH Harrogate New Park 1 St Joseph’s 
Roman Catholic 
Church

Yes 648 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton Grange & 
New Park

HKBC HRKBH1H Harrogate New Park 2 Jennyfield 
Evangelical 
Church

Yes 743 Merge with HRKBH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRKBH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton Grange & 
New Park

HKBC HRKBH2H Harrogate New Park 2 Jennyfield 
Evangelical 
Church

Yes 938 Merge with HRKBH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRKBH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

WEBA HRWGHH* Boroughbridge 
(Boroughbridge Ward)

Boroughbridge Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church

Yes 2367 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

WEBC HRWHHH* Boroughbridge (Minskip 
Ward)

Boroughbridge Minskip Village 
Hall

Limited 303 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCA HRWJH1H Arkendale, Coneythorpe 
and Clareton (Arkendale)

Arkendale Arkendale 
Community Hall

Yes 200 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCB HRWJH2H Arkendale, Coneythorpe 
and Clareton 
(Coneythorpe)

Coneythorpe and 
Clareton

Arkendale 
Community Hall

Yes 63 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCC HRWJH3H Ferrensby Ferrensby Arkendale 
Community Hall

Yes 123 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCD HRWKHH Brearton Brearton Brearton Institute No 87 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCH HRWNH1H Farnham Farnham Scotton Village 
Hall

Yes 143 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCI HRWNH2H Scotton Scotton Scotton Village 
Hall

Yes 466 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCJ HRWNH3H Walkingham Hill with 
Occaney

Walkingham Hill 
with Occaney 

Scotton Village 
Hall

Yes 10 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCK HRWOH1H Staveley and Copgrove 
(Copgrove)

Copgrove Staveley and 
Copgrove Village 
Hall

Yes 76 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCL HRWOH2H Staveley and Copgrove 
(Staveley)

Staveley Staveley and 
Copgrove Village 
Hall

Yes 321 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Coppice Valley & 
Duchy

HKDA HRDAH1H Harrogate Coppice Valley Stray Room, 
Civic Centre

Yes 1203 Merge with HRDAH2. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRDAH2. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Coppice Valley & 
Duchy

HKDA HRDAH2H Harrogate Coppice Valley Stray Room, 
Civic Centre

Yes 1244 Merge with HRDAH1. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRDAH1. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Coppice Valley & 
Duchy

HKDB HREAH1H Harrogate Duchy St Wilfred’s 
Church Hall

Yes 1854 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Coppice Valley & 
Duchy

HKDC HREAH2H Killinghall (Oakdale Ward) Killinghall St Wilfred’s 
Church Hall

Yes 182 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Fairfax & 
Starbeck

HKEA HRFAH1H Harrogate Fairfax Fairfax 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1708 Merge with HRFAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRFAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Fairfax & 
Starbeck

HKEA HRFAH2H Harrogate Fairfax Fairfax 
Community 
Centre

Yes 902 Merge with HRFAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRFAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Fairfax & 
Starbeck

HKEB HRQAHH Harrogate Starbeck Starbeck 
Methodist Church 
Hall

Yes 2295 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Appendix C - Full Schedule of Final Proposals

P
age 41



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harlow & St 
Georges

HKFA HRGAHH Harrogate Harlow Harlow 
Community 
Centre

Yes 2384 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harlow & St 
Georges

HKFB HRPAH1H Harrogate St Georges St George’s 
Dance Club

Yes 1428 Merge with HRPAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRPAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harlow & St 
Georges

HKFB HRPAH2H Harrogate St Georges St George’s 
Dance Club

Yes 1111 Merge with HRPAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRPAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

High Harrogate & 
Kingsley

HKGA HRHAHH Harrogate High Harrogate Christ Church 
Parish Centre

Yes 2618 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

High Harrogate & 
Kingsley

HKGB HRJAH1H Harrogate Kingsley 1 Starbeck 
Methodist Church

Yes 1721 Merge with HRJAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Do not merge polling districts. Create 
new polling disitrct boundary. Polling 
station to change to Christ Church 
Parish Centre

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

High Harrogate & 
Kingsley

HKGC HRJAH2H Harrogate Kingsley 2 Starbeck 
Methodist Church

Yes 757 Merge with HRJAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Do not merge polling districts. Create 
new polling disitrct boundary. 

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwaite & 
Saltergate

HKHA HROAH1H Harrogate Saltergate Jennyfield Styan 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1460 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwaite & 
Saltergate

HKHB HROAH2H Killinghall (Saltergate 
Ward)

Killinghall Jennyfield Styan 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1291 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwaite & 
Saltergate

HKHC HRXCHH Hampsthwaite Hampsthwaite Hampsthwaite 
Memorial Hall

Yes 839 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwaite & 
Saltergate

HKHD HRXDH1H Killinghall (Rural Ward) Killinghall Killinghall Village 
Hall

Yes 1341 Merge with HRXDH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRXDH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwaite & 
Saltergate

HKHD HRXDH2H Killinghall (Rural Ward) Killinghall Killinghall Village 
Hall

Yes 205 Merge with HRXDH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRXDH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
East

HKIA HRTDHH Knaresborough (Eastfield 
Ward)

Knaresborough Chain Lane 
Community Hub

Yes 2131 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
East

HKIB HRTEHH Knaresborough (Scriven 
Park Ward 1)

Knaresborough Knaresborough 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1473 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
East

HKIC HRTFH1H Knaresborough (Scriven 
Park Ward 2)

Knaresborough Park Grove 
Methodist Church

Yes 1318 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
East

HKID HRTFH2H Scriven Scriven Park Grove 
Methodist Church

Yes 135 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
West

HKJA HRTAHH Knaresborough (Aspin & 
Calcutt Ward 1)

Knaresborough Knaresborough 
Cricket Club

Yes 1979 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
West

HKJB HRTBHH Knaresborough (Aspin & 
Calcutt Ward 2)

Knaresborough Calcutt and 
Forest Moor 
Village Hall

Yes 311 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Knaresborough 
West

HKJC HRTCHH Knaresborough (Castle 
Ward)

Knaresborough Knaresborough 
House

Yes 2648 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFA HRWYH1H Nidd Nidd Ripley Town Hall Yes 94 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFB HRWYH2H Ripley Ripley Ripley Town Hall Yes 142 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Oatlands & 
Pannal

HKKA HRLAH1H Harrogate Oatlands Oatlands 
Community 
Centre

Yes 590 Merge with HRLAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRLAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Oatlands & 
Pannal

HKKA HRLAH2H Harrogate Oatlands Oatlands 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1881 Merge with HRLAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRLAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Oatlands & 
Pannal

HKKB HRNAHH Pannal and Burn Bridge Pannal and Burn 
Bridge

Pannal Village 
Hall

Yes 1517 No change to polling station No change to polling station

P
age 42



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Oatlands & 
Pannal

HKKC HRNBHH Harrogate Pannal Harlow 
Community 
Centre

Yes 734 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFA HRXXHH Marton cum Grafton Marton cum 
Grafton

Marton cum 
Grafton Memorial 
Hall

Yes 350 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Stray, 
Woodlands & 
Hookstone

HKLA HRIAH1H Harrogate Hookstone St Aelred’s 
Church Hall

Yes 1435 Merge with HRIAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRIAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Stray, 
Woodlands & 
Hookstone

HKLA HRIAH2H Harrogate Hookstone St Aelred’s 
Church Hall

Yes 749 Merge with HRIAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRIAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Stray, 
Woodlands & 
Hookstone

HKLB HRRAHH Harrogate Stray 1 Woodlands 
Methodist Church 
Hall

Yes 1594 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Stray, 
Woodlands & 
Hookstone

HKLC HRRBHH Harrogate Stray 2 St Mark’s Church 
Hall

Yes 850 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Valley Gardens & 
Central 
Harrogate

HKMA HRCAHH Harrogate Central Wesley Centre Yes 2334 No change to polling station No change to polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Valley Gardens & 
Central 
Harrogate

HKMB HRSAH1H Harrogate Valley Gardens Westcliffe Hall Yes 883 Merge with HRSAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRSAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Valley Gardens & 
Central 
Harrogate

HKMB HRSAH2H Harrogate Valley Gardens Westcliffe Hall Yes 1548 Merge with HRSAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRSAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAA HBBE01R Aiskew and Leeming Bar 
(Aiskew Ward)

Aiskew and 
Leeming Bar 

St Mary and St 
Joseph Parish 
Centre

Yes 1271 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAB HBBE02R Aiskew and Leeming Bar 
(Leeming Bar Ward)

Aiskew and 
Leeming Bar 

Leeming Village 
Hall

Yes 718 No change to polling station. Change polling station to The 
Reubans, Leeming Bar

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAC HBBE04R Burneston, Swainby with 
Allerthorpe & Theakston 
(Burneston)

Burneston Woodman Inn, 
Burneston

Yes 202 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAD HBBE05R Burneston, Swainby with 
Allerthorpe & Theakston 
(Swainby with Allerthorpe)

Swainby with 
Allerthorpe

Woodman Inn, 
Burneston

Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAE HBBE06R Burneston, Swainby with 
Allerthorpe & Theakston 
(Theakston)

Theakston Woodman Inn, 
Burneston

Yes 55 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAF HBBE07R Crakehall with Langthorne 
(Crakehall)

Crakehall Crakehall Village 
Hall

Yes 409 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAG HBBE08R Hackforth (Ainderby Mires 
with Holtby)

Ainderby Mires 
with Holtby

Crakehall Village 
Hall

Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAH HBBE09R Hackforth (Hackforth) Hackforth Crakehall Village 
Hall

Yes 130 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAI HBBE10R Crakehall with Langthorne 
(Langthorne)

Langthorne Crakehall Village 
Hall

Yes 43 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAJ HBBE11R Rand Grange Rand Grange Crakehall Village 
Hall

Yes 3 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAK HBBE12R Exelby, Leeming & 
Londonderry

Exelby, Leeming 
& Londonderry

Leeming Village 
Hall

Yes 994 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAI HBBE13R Gatenby Gatenby Leeming Village 
Hall

Yes 41 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCA HBBE03R Bedale Bedale Bedale Hall Yes 2151 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCB HBTA01R Carthorpe Carthorpe Methodist Church 
Hall, Carthorpe

Yes 183 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 43



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCC HBTA02R Kirklington with Sutton 
Howgrave (Howgrave)

Howgrave Kirklington Village 
Hall

Yes 2 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCD HBTA03R Kirklington with Sutton 
Howgrave (Kirklington)

Kirklington cum 
Upsland

Kirklington Village 
Hall

Yes 166 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCE HBTA04R Kirklington with Sutton 
Howgrave (Sutton 
Howgrave)

Sutton Howgrave Kirklington Village 
Hall

Yes 55 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCF HBTA05R Pickhill with Roxby & 
Sinderby (Pickhill with 
Roxby)

Pickhill with Roxby Sinderby & 
District Village 
Hall

Yes 284 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCG HBTA06R Pickhill with Roxby & 
Sinderby (Sinderby)

Sinderby Sinderby & 
District Village 
Hall

Yes 100 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCH HBTA07R Ainderby Quernhow Ainderby 
Quernhow

Sinderby & 
District Village 
Hall

Yes 36 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCI HBTA08R Holme Holme Sinderby & 
District Village 
Hall

Yes 36 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCJ HBTA09R Howe Howe Sinderby & 
District Village 
Hall

Yes 14 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCK HBTA10R Snape with Thorp Snape with Thorp Snape Village 
Institute

Yes 265 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCL HBTA11R Firby Firby Snape Village 
Institute

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCM HBTA12R Thornton Watlass,  
(Thornton Watlass)

Thornton Watlass Thornton 
Watlass Village 
Hall

Yes 138 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCN HBTA13R Thornton Watlass (Burrill 
with Cowling)

Burrill with 
Cowling

Thornton 
Watlass Village 
Hall

Yes 60 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCO HBTA14R Thornton Watlass (Clifton 
on Yore)

Clifton on Yore Thornton 
Watlass Village 
Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCP HBTA15R Thornton Watlass 
(Rookwith)

Rookwith Thornton 
Watlass Village 
Hall

Yes 17 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCQ HBTA16R Thornton Watlass (Thirn) Thirn Thornton 
Watlass Village 
Hall

Yes 56 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCR HBTA17R Tanfield (East Tanfield) East Tanfield West Tanfield 
Memorial Hall

Yes 19 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCS HBTA18R Tanfield (West Tanfield) West Tanfield West Tanfield 
Memorial Hall

Yes 481 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Bedale TMCT HBTA19R Well Well Well Village 
Institute

Yes 176 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAA RICA01R Bolton-on-Swale Bolton-on-Swale Scorton Institute, 
Southside, 
Scorton

Yes 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAB RICA02R Brompton-on-Swale Brompton-on-
Swale

Brompton-on-
Swale 
Community 
Sports Hall

Yes 1128 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAC RICA03R Brough with St Giles Brough with St 
Giles

Colburn 
Community 
Sports Centre, 
Catterick Road

Yes 432 No change to polling station.  No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAD RICA04R Catterick Village Catterick Booth Memorial 
Institute, 32 High 
Street, Catterick 
Village

Yes 1694 No change to polling station.  No change to polling station.

P
age 44



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAE RICA05R Easby (R) Easby Brompton-on-
Swale 
Community 
Sports Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station.  No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAF RICA06R Ellerton-on-Swale Ellerton-on-Swale Scorton Institute, 
Southside, 
Scorton

Yes 85 No change to polling station.  No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAG RICA07R Scorton Scorton Scorton Institute, 
Southside, 
Scorton

Yes 559 No change to polling station.  No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Catterick Village 
& Brompton-on-
Swale

RNAH RICA08R Uckerby Uckerby Scorton Institute, 
Southside, 
Scorton

Yes 41 No change to polling station.  No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBA HBGR01R Bilsdale Midcable Bilsdale Midcable Chop Gate 
Village Hall

Yes 230 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBB HBGR02R Great Ayton (Marwood) Great Ayton Great Ayton 
Parochial Hall

Yes 1306 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBC HBGR03R Great Ayton (Roseberry) Great Ayton Great Ayton 
Women’s 
Institute Hall

Yes 1632 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBD HBGR04R Little Ayton Little Ayton Great Ayton 
Women’s 
Institute Hall

Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBE HBGR05R Ingleby Greenhow Ingleby Greenhow Ingleby 
Greenhow & 
Easby Village 
Hall

Yes 246 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBF HBGR06R Kildale Kildale Ingleby 
Greenhow & 
Easby Village 
Hall

Yes 110 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Great Ayton RNBG HBGR07R Easby (H) Easby Ingleby 
Greenhow & 
Easby Village 
Hall

Yes 60 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Hillside & Raskelf TMFA HBBA08R Siltons & Kepwick (Nether 
Silton)

Nether Silton Gold Cup Inn, 
Nether Silton

No 47 No changes to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Hillside & Raskelf TMFB HBBA09R Siltons & Kepwick 
(Kepwick)

Kepwick Gold Cup Inn, 
Nether Silton

No 54 No changes to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Hillside & Raskelf TMFC HBBA10R Siltons & Kepwick 
(Landmoth-cum-Catto)

Landmoth-cum-
Catto

Gold Cup Inn, 
Nether Silton

No 12 No changes to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and Malton Hillside & Raskelf TMFD HBBA11R Siltons & Kepwick (Over 
Silton)

Over Silton Gold Cup Inn, 
Nether Silton

No 41 No changes to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hipswell & 
Colburn

RNCA RICO01R Colburn (Town Ward) Colburn Colburn Village 
Hall, Colburn 
Lane, Colburn

Yes 2517 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hipswell & 
Colburn

RNCB RIHI01R Colburn (Abermale Ward) Colburn Hipswell Village 
Hall, Hipswell 
Village

Yes 542 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hipswell & 
Colburn

RNCC RIHI02R Hipswell 1 Hipswell Swaledale 
Mountain Rescue

Yes 1552 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hipswell & 
Colburn

RNCD RIHI03R Hipswell 2 Hipswell Hipswell Village 
Hall, Hipswell 
Village

Yes 346 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hipswell & 
Colburn

RNCE RIHI04R St Martins St Martins The Station, 
Station Yard

Yes 169 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDA HBHY01R Crathorne Crathorne Crathorne 
Reading Room

Yes 99 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDB HBHY02R Rudby (Hutton Rudby) Hutton Rudby Hutton Rudby 
Village Hall

Yes 1094 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 45



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDC HBHY03R Rudby (Middleton-on-
Leven)

Middleton-on-
Leven

Hutton Rudby 
Village Hall

Yes 52 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDD HBHY04R Rudby (Rudby) Rudby Hutton Rudby 
Village Hall

Yes 198 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDE HBHY05R Sexhow Sexhow Hutton Rudby 
Village Hall

Yes 13 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDF HBHY06R Rudby (Skutterskelfe) Skutterskelfe Hutton Rudby 
Village Hall

Yes 75 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDG HBHY07R Seamer (H) Seamer Seamer Memorial 
Institute

Yes 408 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDH HBHY08R Newby Newby Seamer Memorial 
Institute

Yes 137 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDI HBOS01R Carlton (H) Carlton Carlton Village 
Hall, Carlton In 
Cleveland

Yes 196 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDJ HBOS02R Faceby Faceby Carlton Village 
Hall Carlton In 
Cleveland

Yes 133 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDK HBOS03R Great Busby Great Busby Carlton Village 
Hall Carlton In 
Cleveland

Yes 58 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDL HBOS04R Little Busby Little Busby Carlton Village 
Hall Carlton In 
Cleveland

Yes 17 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDM HBOS05R East Harlsey East Harlsey East Harlsey 
Village Hall

Yes 192 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDN HBOS06R Ingleby Arncliffe Ingleby Arncliffe Ingleby Cross 
Village Hall

Yes 196 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDO HBOS07R Osmotherley Area (Kirby 
Sigston)

Kirby Sigston Kirby Sigston 
Village Hall

Yes 67 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDP HBOS08R Osmotherley Area 
(Sowerby under Cotcliffe)

Sowerby under 
Cotcliffe

Kirby Sigston 
Village Hall

Yes 32 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDQ HBOS09R Osmotherley Area 
(Osmotherley)

Osmotherley Osmotherley 
Village Hall

Yes 424 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDR HBOS10R Osmotherley Area 
(Ellerbeck)

Ellerbeck Osmotherley 
Village Hall

Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDS HBOS11R Osmotherley Area 
(Thimbleby)

Thimbleby Osmotherley 
Village Hall

Yes 32 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDT HBOS12R Osmotherley Area (West 
Harsley)

West Harlsey Osmotherley 
Village Hall

Yes 17 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDU HBOS13R Osmotherley Area 
(Winton, Stank and 
Hellikeld)

Winton, Stank and 
Hallikeld

Osmotherley 
Village Hall

Yes 44 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDV HBOS14R Potto Potto Potto Village Hall Yes 200 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Hutton Rudby & 
Osmotherley

RNDW HBOS15R Whorlton Whorlton Swainby Holy 
Cross Church 
Hall, Swainby

Yes 423 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEA RILE01R Bellerby Bellerby Bellerby 
Memorial Hall

Yes 247 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEB RILE02R Carperby cum Thoresby Carperby cum 
Thoresby

Carperby 
Institute

Yes 157 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEC RILE03R Castle Bolton with East 
and West Bolton 

Castle Bolton with 
East and West 
Bolton 

Redmire Village 
Hall

Yes 44 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNED RILE04R Leyburn Leyburn Oak Room, 
Thornborough 
Hall, Leyburn

Yes 1602 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 46



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEE RILE05R Preston under Scar Preston under 
Scar

Redmire Village 
Hall

Yes 109 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEF RILE06R Redmire Redmire Redmire Village 
Hall

Yes 263 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEG RILE07R Wensley Wensley Wensley Village 
Hall

Yes 98 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEH RIMI01R Caldbergh with East 
Scrafton 

Caldbergh with 
East Scrafton 

Coverdale 
Memorial Hall

Yes 23 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEI RIMI02R Carlton Highdale Carlton Highdale Coverdale 
Memorial Hall

Yes 62 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEJ RIMI03R Carlton Town Carlton Town Coverdale 
Memorial Hall

Yes 99 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEK RIMI04R Coverham with 
Agglethorpe 

Coverham with 
Agglethorpe 

Coverdale 
Memorial Hall

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEL RIMI05R East Witton East Witton East Witton 
Parish Room

Yes 159 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEM RIMI06R Melmerby (R) Melmerby Coverdale 
Memorial Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEN RIMI07R Middleham Town Middleham Town Middleham Key 
Centre

Yes 539 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEO RIMI08R West Scrafton West Scrafton Coverdale 
Memorial Hall

Yes 30 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Leyburn & 
Middleham

RNEP RIMI09R West Witton West Witton West Witton 
Village Hall

Yes 259 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFA HBAP01R Appleton Wiske Appleton Wiske Appleton Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 336 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFB HBAP02R Picton Picton Appleton Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFC HBAP03R East Cowton East Cowton East Cowton 
Village Hall

Yes 421 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFD HBAP04R Birkby Birkby East Cowton 
Village Hall

Yes 20 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFE HBAP05R South Cowton South Cowton East Cowton 
Village Hall

Yes 63 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFF HBAP06R Rounton (East Rounton) East Rounton Rounton Village 
Hall

Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFG HBAP07R Rounton (West Rounton) West Rounton Rounton Village 
Hall

Yes 118 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFH HBAP08R Smeatons with Hornby 
(Great Smeaton)

Great Smeaton Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 137 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFI HBAP09R Deighton Deighton Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 51 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFJ HBAP10R Girsby Girsby Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 28 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFK HBAP11R Smeatons with Hornby 
(Hornby)

Hornby Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 162 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFL HBAP12R Hutton Bonville Hutton Bonville Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 45 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 47



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFM HBAP13R Smeatons with Hornby 
(Little Smeaton)

Little Smeaton Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 32 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFN HBAP14R Over Dinsdale Over Dinsdale Great Smeaton 
Village Hall

Yes 36 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFO HBAP15R Worsall (High Worsall) High Worsall Worsall Village 
Hall

Yes 25 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFP HBAP16R Worsall (Low Worsall) Low Worsall Worsall Village 
Hall

Yes 194 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFQ HBAP17R Welbury Welbury Welbury Village 
Hall

Yes 196 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFR HBMO01R Danby Wiske with 
Lazenby

Danby Wiske with 
Lazenby

Danby Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 220 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFS HBMO02R Great Langton Great Langton Danby Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 66 No change to polling station. Change polling station to Kirkby 
Fleetham Village Hall

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFT HBMO03R Kiplin Kiplin Danby Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 37 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFU HBMO04R Little Langton Little Langton Danby Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFV HBMO05R Whitwell Whitwell Danby Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 14 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFW HBMO06R Killerby Killerby Kirkby Fleetham 
Village Hall

Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFX HBMO07R Kirkby Fleetham with 
Fencote

Kirkby Fleetham 
with Fencote

Kirkby Fleetham 
Village Hall

Yes 386 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFY HBMO08R Morton-on-Swale Morton-on-Swale Morton on Swale 
Village Hall

Yes 433 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFZ HBMO09R Ainderby Steeple Ainderby Steeple Morton on Swale 
Village Hall

Yes 146 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFAA HBMO10R North Otterington North Otterington Morton on Swale 
Village Hall

Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFBB HBMO11R Thrintoft Thrintoft Morton on Swale 
Village Hall

Yes 80 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFCC HBMO12R Warlaby Warlaby Morton on Swale 
Village Hall

Yes 25 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFDD HBMO13R Yafforth Yafforth Morton on Swale 
Village Hall

Yes 81 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske

RNFEE HBMO14R Scruton Scruton Scruton Village 
Hall

Yes 299 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGA RICR01R Barton Barton Barton Village 
Hall

Yes 587 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGB RICR02R Stapleton and Cleasby 
(Cleasby)

Cleasby Cleasby and 
Stapleton Village 
Hall, Cleasby

Yes 114 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 48



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGC RICR03R Manfield with Cliffe (Cliffe) Cliffe Manfield Village 
Hall

Yes 17 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGD RICR04R Croft-on-Tees Croft-on-Tees Croft-on-Tees 
Village Hall

Yes 311 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGE RICR05R Dalton-on-Tees Dalton-on-Tees Dalton-on-Tees 
Village Hall

Yes 165 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGF RICR06R Eryholme Eryholme Dalton-on-Tees 
Village Hall

Yes 45 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGG RICR07R Manfield with Cliffe 
(Manfield)

Manfield Manfield Village 
Hall

Yes 180 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGH RICR08R Middleton Tyas Middleton Tyas Middleton Tyas 
Memorial Hall

Yes 405 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGI RICR09R Moulton Moulton Middleton Tyas 
Memorial Hall

Yes 106 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGJ RICR10R Newton Morrell Newton Morrell Barton Village 
Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGK RICR11R North Cowton North Cowton North Cowton 
Village Hall

No 330 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGL RICR12R Stapleton and Cleasby 
(Stapleton)

Stapleton Cleasby and 
Stapleton Village 
Hall, Cleasby

Yes 118 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGM RIGI01R Aske Aske Gilling West 
Village Hall

Yes 69 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGN RIGI02R Dalton (R) Dalton 
(Richmondshire) 

Dalton and 
Gayles Village 
Hall

Yes 135 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGO RIGI03R Gayles Gayles Dalton and 
Gayles Village 
Hall

Yes 96 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGP RIGI04R Gilling with Hartforth and 
Sedbury

Gilling with 
Hartforth and 
Sedbury

Gilling West 
Village Hall

Yes 397 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGQ RIGI05R Kirby Hill (R) Kirby Hill  
(Richmondshire)

Ravensworth 
Village Hall

Limited 33 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGR RIGI06R Newsham Newsham Dalton and 
Gayles Village 
Hall

Yes 217 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGS RIGI07R Ravensworth Ravensworth Ravensworth 
Village Hall

Limited 166 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGT RIGI08R Skeeby Skeeby Skeeby Jubilee 
Village Hall

Yes 281 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGU RIGI09R Whashton Whashton Ravensworth 
Village Hall

Limited 92 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGV RIME01R Aldbrough St John Aldbrough Aldbrough St 
John Village Hall

Yes 266 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGW RIME02R Caldwell Caldwell Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 87 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGX RIME03R East and West Layton and 
Carkin (Carkin)

Carkin Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 30 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGY RIME04R East and West Layton and 
Carkin (East Layton)

East Layton Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 56 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGZ RIME05R Eppleby Eppleby Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 192 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGAA RIME06R Forcett Forcett Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 61 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGBB RIME07R Melsonby Melsonby St James the 
Great Church, 
Church Row, 
Melsonby

Yes 488 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGCC RIME08R Stanwick St John Stanwick St John Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 85 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 49



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

North 
Richmondshire

RNGDD RIME09R East and West Layton and 
Carkin (West Layton)

West Layton Eppleby Village 
Hall

Yes 30 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Northallerton 
North & 
Brompton

RNHA HBNN01R Brompton Brompton Brompton 
Methodist Church

Yes 2013 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Northallerton 
North & 
Brompton

RNHB HBNN02R Northallerton 
(Northallerton North Ward)

Northallerton The Forum, 
Bullamoor Road, 
Northallerton

Yes 2413 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Northallerton 
South

RNIA HBNS01R Northallerton 
(Northallerton Central 
Ward)

Northallerton The Forum, 
Bullamoor Road, 
Northallerton

Yes 2910 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Northallerton 
South

RNIB HBNS02R Northallerton 
(Northallerton South 
Ward)

Northallerton The Forum, 
Bullamoor Road, 
Northallerton

Yes 1279 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJA RIRE01R Richmond (Richmond 
East Ward)

Richmond Richmond 
School, 
Darlington Road, 
Richmond

Yes 1201 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJB RIRN01R Richmond (Richmond 
North Ward)

Richmond Richmond 
School, 
Darlington Road, 
Richmond

Yes 1280 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJC RIRW01R Richmond (Richmond 
West Ward 1)

Richmond Richmond Market 
Hall

Yes 868 Merge with RIRW02R. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with RIRW02R. No change to 
polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJC RIRW02R Richmond (Richmond 
West Ward 1)

Richmond Richmond Market 
Hall

Yes 478 Merge with RIRW01R. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with RIRW01R. No change to 
polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJD RIRW03R Richmond (Richmond 
West Ward 2)

Richmond Richmond 
Methodist Hall

Yes 1305 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Romanby RNKA HBRY01R Romanby (Broomfield 
Ward)

Romanby Northallerton 
Scout and Guide 
Group

Yes 1320 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Romanby RNKB HBRY02R Romanby (Romanby 
Ward)

Romanby Romanby 
Methodist Church 
Hall

Yes 2456 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLA RILW01R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (Finghall Hutton 
Akebar Ward 1)

Akebar Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 14 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLB RILW02R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (Barden and 
Garriston Ward 1)

Barden Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 22 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLC RILW03R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (Constable Burton 
Ward)

Constable Burton Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 112 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLD RILW04R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (East and West 
Hauxwell Ward 1)

East Hauxwell Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLE RILW05R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (Finghall Hutton 
Akebar Ward 2)

Finghall Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 132 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLF RILW06R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (Barden and 
Garriston Ward 2)

Garriston Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 23 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLG RILW07R Harmby Harmby Harmby Village 
Hall

Yes 283 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLH RILW08R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (Finghall Hutton 
Akebar Ward 3)

Hutton Hang Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLI RILW09R Newton-le-Willows Newton-le-Willows Newton-le-
Willows Village 
Hall

Yes 232 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 50



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLJ RILW10R Patrick Brompton Patrick Brompton Newton-le-
Willows Village 
Hall

Yes 93 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLK RILW11R Spennithorne Spennithorne Harmby Village 
Hall

Yes 128 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLL RILW12R Thornton Steward Thornton Steward Newton-le-
Willows Village 
Hall

Yes 105 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLM RILW13R Constable Burton and 
Finghall (East and West 
Hauxwell Ward 2)

West Hauxwell Constable Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 6 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLN RISC01R Appleton East and West Appleton East and 
West 

Tunstall Village 
Hall

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLO RISC02R Arrathorne Arrathorne Hunton Village 
Hall

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLP RISC03R Colburn (Moor Ward) Colburn Scotton Village 
Hall

Yes 228 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLQ RISC04R Hornby Hornby Hunton Village 
Hall

Yes 76 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLR RISC05R Hunton Hunton Hunton Village 
Hall

Yes 299 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLS RISC06R Scotton (R) Scotton Scotton Village 
Hall

Yes 1477 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Scotton & Lower 
Wensleydale

RNLT RISC07R Tunstall Tunstall Tunstall Village 
Hall

Yes 206 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Stokesley RNMA HBST01R Great & Little Broughton Great & Little 
Broughton

Great Broughton 
Village Hall

Yes 747 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Stokesley RNMB HBST02R Kirkby Kirkby Great Broughton 
Village Hall

Yes 192 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Stokesley RNMC HBST03R Stokesley Stokesley Stokesley Town 
Hall

Yes 3238 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNA RIHA01R Melbecks Melbecks Gunnerside 
Village Hall

Yes 80 Merge with RIHA04R. No change to polling 
station.

Do not merge polling districts. No 
change to polling station

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNB RIHA02R Hawes and High 
Abbotside (Hawes)

Hawes Hawes Market 
Hall

Yes 745 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNC RIHA03R Hawes and High 
Abbotside (High 
Abbotside)

High Abbotside Hawes Market 
Hall

Yes 132 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNND RIHA04R Melbecks Melbecks Low Row 
Institute

Limited 108 Merge with RIHA01R. Change polling station 
to Gunnerside Village Hall

Do not merge polling districts. No 
change to polling station

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNE RIHA05R Muker Muker Muker Public Hall Yes 182 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNF RILS01R Arkengarthdale Arkengarthdale St Mary's 
Church, 
Arkengarthdale

Yes 141 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNG RILS02R Hudswell and District 
(Downholme)

Downholme Hudswell Village 
Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNH RILS03R Grinton and Ellerton 
Abbey (Ellerton Abbey)

Ellerton Abbey Reeth District 
Memorial Hall

Yes 8 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNI RILS04R Grinton and Ellerton 
Abbey (Grinton)

Grinton Reeth District 
Memorial Hall

Yes 129 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNJ RILS05R Hudswell and District 
(Hudswell)

Hudswell Hudswell Village 
Hall

Yes 226 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNK RILS06R Marrick Marrick Marrick Institute Yes 90 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNL RILS07R Marske and New Forest Marske Marrick Institute Yes 33 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNM RILS08R Marske and New Forest New Forest Marrick Institute Yes 9 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNN RILS09R Reeth; Fremington and 
Healaugh

Reeth; Fremington 
and Healaugh

Reeth District 
Memorial Hall

Yes 483 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 51



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNO RILS10R Hudswell and District 
(Stainton)

Stainton Hudswell Village 
Hall

Yes 11 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNP RILS11R Hudswell and District 
(Walburn)

Walburn Hudswell Village 
Hall

Yes 7 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNQ RIYO01R Askrigg and Low 
Abbotside (Askrigg)

Askrigg Askrigg Village 
Hall

Yes 317 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNR RIYO02R Aysgarth and District 
(Aysgarth)

Aysgarth Aysgarth Village 
Hall

Yes 133 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNS RIYO03R Bainbridge Bainbridge Bainbridge 
Village Hall

Yes 342 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNT RIYO04R Aysgarth and District 
(Bishopdale)

Bishopdale Thoralby Village 
Hall

No 18 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNU RIYO05R Burton cum Walden Burton cum 
Walden

West Burton 
Village Hall

Yes 203 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNV RIYO06R Askrigg and Low 
Abbotside (Low 
Abbotside)

Low Abbotside Askrigg Village 
Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNW RIYO07R Aysgarth and District 
(Newbiggin)

Newbiggin Thoralby Village 
Hall

No 58 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNX RIYO08R Aysgarth and District 
(Thoralby)

Thoralby Thoralby Village 
Hall

No 106 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNY RIYO09R Aysgarth and District 
(Thornton Rust)

Thornton Rust Aysgarth Village 
Hall

Yes 78 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Castle SWAA SCAASW Castle 1 Queen Street 
Central Hall

*Limited 1022 No change to polling station. Merge with SCAASW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Castle SWAA SCABSW Castle 1 Queen Street 
Central Hall

*Limited 683 No change to polling station. Merge with SCABSW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Castle SWAB SCACSW Castle 2 Albemarle Baptist 
Church

Yes 993 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Castle SWAC SCADSW Castle 3 Gladstone & 
Falsgrave 
Recreation 
Centre

Yes 2162 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Cayton SWBA SCBASW Cayton Cayton Cayton Jubilee 
Hall

*Limited 1778 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Cayton SWBB SCBBSW Gristhorpe Gristhorpe Gristhorpe & 
Lebberston 
Village Hall

Yes 314 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Cayton SWBC SCBCSW Lebberston Lebberston Gristhorpe & 
Lebberston 
Village Hall

Yes 121 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Cayton SWBD SCBDSW Osgodby 1 Osgodby Osgodby 
Community 
Centre

Yes 861 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Cayton SWBE SCBESW Osgodby 2 Osgodby 
Community 
Centre

Yes 2 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCA SCDASW Danby Group (Danby) Danby Danby Village 
Hall

Yes 463 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCB SCDBSW Danby Group (Botton) Danby Botton Village 
Joan of Arc Hall

Yes 72 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCC SCDCSW Danby Group (Castleton) Danby Castleton Village 
Hall

Yes 317 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCD SCDDSW Danby Group 
(Commondale)

Commondale Castleton Village 
Hall

Yes 80 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCE SCDESW Danby Group 
(Westerdale)

Westerdale Castleton Village 
Hall

Yes 87 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCF SCDFSW Glaisdale (Lealholm Ward) Glaisdale Lealholm 
Methodist Chapel

Yes 264 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 52



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCG SCDGSW Hinderwell (Hinderwell 
Ward)

Hinderwell St Hildas Old 
School, 
Hinderwell

Yes 593 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCH SCDHSW Hinderwell (Staithes 
Ward)

Hinderwell Staithes Village 
Hall

Yes 605 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCI SCDISW Lythe (Lythe) Lythe Lythe Village Hall Yes 143 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCJ SCDJSW Lythe (Sandsend) Lythe (Sandsend) St Mary's 
Church, 
Sandsend

Yes 73 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCK SCDKSW Mickleby Group (Mickleby) Mickleby Mickleby Village 
Hall

Yes 103 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCL SCDLSW Mickleby Group (Barnby) Barnby Lythe Village Hall Yes 48 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCM SCDMSW Mickleby Group (Ellerby) Ellerby Mickleby Village 
Hall

Yes 26 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCN SCDNSW Newholm-cum-Dunsley Newholm-cum-
Dunsley

Newholm-Cum-
Dunsley Village 
Institute

Yes 141 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCO SCDOSW Roxby Group (Roxby) Roxby Staithes Village 
Hall

Yes 69 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCP SCDPSW Roxby Group (Borrowby) Borrowby Staithes Village 
Hall

Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCQ SCDQSW Roxby Group (Newton 
Mulgrave)

Newton Mulgrave Mickleby Village 
Hall

Yes 23 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCR SCDRSW Ugthorpe Group 
(Ugthorpe)

Ugthorpe St Anne’s Church 
Hall, Ugthorpe

Yes 140 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Danby & 
Mulgrave

SWCS SCDSSW Ugthorpe Group (Hutton 
Mulgrave)

Hutton Mulgrave St Anne’s Church 
Hall, Ugthorpe

Yes 21 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDA SCEASW Brompton by Sawdon 
(Brompton Ward)

Brompton by 
Sawdon

Brompton Village 
Hall

Yes 221 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDB SCEBSW Brompton by Sawdon 
(Sawdon Ward)

Brompton by 
Sawdon

Sawdon Village 
Hall

Yes 105 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDC SCECSW East Ayton East Ayton Ayton Village Hall Yes 1184 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDD SCEDSW Hutton Buscel Hutton Buscel Hutton Buscel 
Village Hall

Yes 190 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDE SCEESW Snainton Snainton Snainton 
Millenium Village 
Hall

Yes 605 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDF SCEFSW West Ayton West Ayton Ayton Village Hall Yes 684 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDG SCEGSW Wykeham Wykeham Downe Arms, 
Wykeham

Yes 161 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDH SCEHSW Hackness and Harwood 
Dale Group (Hackness)

Hackness Hackness Village 
Hall

Yes 90 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDI SCEISW Hackness and Harwood 
Dale Group (Broxa cum 
Troutsdale)

Broxa cum 
Troutsdale

Hackness Village 
Hall

Yes 25 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDJ SCEJSW Hackness and Harwood 
Dale Group (Dancombe 
cum Langdale End)

Darncombe cum 
Langdale End

Hackness Village 
Hall

Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDK SCEKSW Hackness and Harwood 
Dale Group (Silpho)

Silpho Hackness Village 
Hall

Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDL SCELSW Hackness and Harwood 
Dale Group (Suffield cum 
Everley)

Suffield cum 
Everley

Hackness Village 
Hall

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 53



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Derwent Valley & 
Moor

SWDM SCEMSW Hackness and Harwood 
Dale Group (Harwood 
Dale)

Harwood Dale Hackness Village 
Hall

Yes 70 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Eastfield SWEA SCQASW Eastfield (Eastway Ward) Eastfield Eastfield 
Community 
Centre

Yes 2415 Change polling station to The Legacy Studio, 
Overdale School

Change polling station to The Legacy 
Studio, Overdale School

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Eastfield SWEB SCQBSW Eastfield (Westway Ward) Eastfield Church of the 
Holy Nativity

Yes 1903 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Eastfield SWEC SCQCSW Eastway 2 Eastfield 
Community 
Centre

Yes 77 Change polling station to The Legacy Studio, 
Overdale School

Change polling station to The Legacy 
Studio, Overdale School

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFA SCGASW Egton Egton Egton Village Hall Yes 307 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFB SCGBSW Eskdaleside-cum-
Ugglebarnby

Eskdaleside-cum-
Ugglebarnby

Sleights Village 
Hall

Yes 1415 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFC SCGCSW Glaisdale (Glaisdale 
Ward)

Glaisdale Robinson 
Institute, 
Glaisdale

Yes 423 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFD SCGDSW Goathland Goathland Goathland Parish 
Hall

Yes 293 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFE SCGESW Grosmont Grosmont Sports Pavilion, 
Grosmont

Yes 211 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFF SCGFSW Sneaton Sneaton Sneaton Village 
Hall

Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFG SCGGSW Aislaby Aislaby Aislaby Parish 
Hall

Yes 174 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFH SCJASW Fylingdales Fylingdales Fylingdales 
Village Hall

Yes 812 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFI SCJBSW Hawsker-cum-Stainsacre Hawsker-cum-
Stainsacre

Hawsker-cum-
Stainsacre Parish 
Hall

Yes 517 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFJ SCJCSW Staintondale (Ravenscar 
Ward)

Staintondale Ravenscar 
Village Hall

Yes 123 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Esk Valley & 
Coast

SWFK SCJDSW Staintondale (Staintondale 
Ward)

Staintondale Staintondale 
Village Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Falsgrave & 
Stepney

SWGA SCHASW Falsgrave St James Parish 
Hall

Yes 1220 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Falsgrave & 
Stepney

SWGB SCHBSW Sandybed Church of Jesus 
Christ Latter Day 
Saints

Yes 1647 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Falsgrave & 
Stepney

SWGC SCHCSW Edgehill Falsgrave 
Resource Centre

Yes 1133 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Falsgrave & 
Stepney

SWGD SCHDSW St. John’s Emmanuel St. 
Johns Church 
Hall

Yes 1404 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Newby SWHA SCOASW Newlands Newby and Scalby St Mark’s 
Community Hall

Yes 1095 Merge with SCODSW. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCODSW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Newby SWHB SCOBSW Lady Edith Newby and Scalby Wreyfield 
Methodist Church 
Hall

Yes 1293 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Newby SWHC SCOCSW Newby Newby and Scalby Gatesgarth 
Amenity Room

Yes 1106 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Newby SWHA SCODSW Newlands Newby and Scalby St Mark’s 
Community Hall

Yes 541 Merge with SCOASW. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCOASW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Newby SWHD SCOESW St. Mark’s St Mark’s 
Community Hall

Yes 9 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Northstead SWIA SCPASW Northstead 1 North Cliff Golf 
Club

Yes 626 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Northstead SWIB SCPBSW Northstead 2 The Street (Hall 
B), 12 Lower 
Clark Street

Yes 1082 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 54



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Northstead SWIC SCPCSW Northstead 3 Ebenezer Baptist 
Hall

Yes 1079 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Northstead SWID SCPDSW Northstead 4 St. Columba 
Church Hall

Yes 638 Merge with SCPESW. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCPESW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Northstead SWID SCPESW Northstead 4 St. Columba 
Church Hall

Yes 1391 Merge with SCPDSW. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCPDSW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scalby & the 
Coast

SWJA SCLASW Burniston Burniston Burniston & 
Cloughton Village 
Hall

Yes 993 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scalby & the 
Coast

SWJB SCLBSW Cloughton Cloughton St Marys Church 
Hall, Cloughton

Yes 477 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scalby & the 
Coast

SWJC SCSASW Scalby Newby and Scalby Newby and 
Scalby 
Community Hall

Yes 988 Merge with SCSBSW. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCSBSW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scalby & the 
Coast

SWJC SCSBSW Scalby Newby and Scalby Newby and 
Scalby 
Community Hall

Yes 1357 Merge with SCSASW. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCSASW. No change to 
polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Seamer SWKA SCTASW Irton Irton Memorial Hall, 
Seamer

Yes 214 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Seamer SWKB SCTBSW Crossgates Seamer Crossgates 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1634 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Seamer SWKC SCTCSW Seamer Seamer Memorial Hall, 
Seamer

Yes 1363 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Weaponess & 
Ramsgill

SWLA SCCASW Ramshill St. Andrew’s 
Church Hall

Yes 2598 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Weaponess & 
Ramsgill

SWLB SCCBSW Wheatcroft St. Michael and 
All Angels 
Church Hall

Yes 1007 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Weaponess & 
Ramsgill

SWLC SCCCSW Weaponness St. Edward’s 
Parish Hall

Yes 1289 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby 
Steonshalh

SWMA SCFASW Whitby (Abbey ) Whitby Whitby Missions 
& Seafarers' 
Centre

Yes 677 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby 
Steonshalh

SWMB SCFBSW Whitby (Abbey Helredale) Whitby Eastside 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1761 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby 
Steonshalh

SWMC SCFCSW Whitby (Town South 
Fishburn Park)

Whitby Whitby Library Yes, use of lift 
required

480 Change polling station to St Hilda’s Hub, 
Waterstead Lane.

Change polling station to St Hilda’s 
Hub, Waterstead Lane.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby 
Steonshalh

SWMD SCRASW Whitby (Town North 
Ward)

Whitby Church House 
Centre, 
Flowergate

Yes 719 Change polling station to Flowergate United 
Reformed Church

Change polling station to Flowergate 
United Reformed Church

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby West SWNA SCMASW Whitby (Ruswarp Ward 1) Whitby Mooredge B&B, 
95 Mayfield Road

*Limited 600 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby West SWNB SCMBSW Whitby (Ruswarp Ward 2) Whitby Ruswarp Village 
Hall

Yes 368 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby West SWNC SCMCSW Whitby (Stakesby Ward) Whitby Marton Court 
Community 
Centre

Yes 2074 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby West SWND SCRBSW Whitby (West Cliff Ward) Whitby Whitby Leisure 
Centre

Yes 1646 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Whitby West SWNE SCRCSW Whitby (White Leys Ward) Whitby Whitby Leisure 
Centre

Yes 254 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Woodlands SWOA SCNASW Woodlands 1 Briercliffe 
Children's Centre

Yes 1073 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Woodlands SWOB SCNBSW Woodlands 2 Wreyfield 
Methodist Church 
Hall

Yes 872 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 55



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Woodlands SWOC SCNCSW Woodlands 3 Friends Meeting 
House, Quaker 
Close

Yes 681 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Woodlands SWOD SCNDSW Woodlands 4 Northstead 
Methodist Church 
Hall

Yes 1152 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Woodlands SWOE SCNESW Woodlands 5 Emmanuel St. 
Johns Church 
Hall

Yes 122 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Woodlands SWOF SCNFSW Woodlands 6 Friends Meeting 
House, Quaker 
Close

Yes 519 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAA SEAACSA Appleton Roebuck & 
Acaster Selby (Acaster 
Selby)

Acaster Selby Appleton 
Roebuck Parish 
Room

Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAB SEAARSA Appleton Roebuck & 
Acaster Selby (Applton 
Roebuck)

Appleton Roebuck Appleton 
Roebuck Parish 
Room

Yes 522 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAC SEABASA Barkston Ash Barkston Ash Barkston Ash 
Village Hall

Limited 223 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAD SEABGSA Biggin Biggin Church Fenton 
Village Hall

Yes 75 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAE SEABISA Bilbrough Bilbrough Bilbrough Village 
Hall

Yes 225 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAF SEABPSA Bolton Percy; Colton & 
Steeton (Bolton Percy)

Bolton Percy The Old School, 
School Lane, 
Bolton Percy

Limited 201 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAG SEACASA Healaugh and Catterton 
(Catterton)

Catterton Healaugh 
Memorial Hall

Yes 28 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAH SEACFSA Church Fenton Church Fenton Church Fenton 
Village Hall

Yes 842 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAI SEACOSA Bolton Percy; Colton & 
Steeton (Colton)

Colton Appleton 
Roebuck Parish 
Room

Yes 81 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAJ SEAGMSA Towton; Grimston and 
Kirkby Wharfe with North 
Milford (Grimston)

Grimston Stutton Village 
Hall

No 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAK SEAHESA Healaugh and Catterton 
(Healaugh)

Healaugh Healaugh 
Memorial Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAL SEAKWSA Towton; Grimston and 
Kirkby Wharfe with North 
Milford (Kirkby Wharfe 
with North Milford)

Kirkby Wharfe 
with North Milford

Ulleskelf VIllage 
Hall

Yes 44 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAM SEALDSA Saxton cum Scarthingwell 
with Lead (Lead)

Lead Saxton Village 
Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAN SEALFSA Little Fenton Little Fenton Church Fenton 
Village Hall

Yes 47 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAO SEAOXSA Oxton (Parish Meeting) Oxton The Old School, 
School Lane, 
Bolton Percy

Limited 9 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAQ SEASTSA Saxton cum Scarthingwell 
with Lead (Saxton cum 
Scarthingwell)

Steeton The Old School, 
School Lane, 
Bolton Percy

Limited 22 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 56



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAP SEASXSA Bolton Percy; Colton & 
Steeton (Steeton)

Saxton cum 
Scarthingwell

Saxton Village 
Hall

Yes 355 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAR SEATWSA Towton; Grimston and 
Kirkby Wharfe with North 
Milford (Towton)

Towton Barkston Ash 
Village Hall

Limited 111 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Appleton 
Roebuck & 
Church Fenton

WEAS SEAULSA Ulleskelf Ulleskelf Ulleskelf VIllage 
Hall

Yes 823 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Barlby & Riccall SEAA SEBLVSA Barlby and Osgodby 
(Barlby Village Ward)

Barlby and 
Osgodby

Barlby Library 
and Community 
Hall

Yes 2080 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Barlby & Riccall SEAB SERCLSA Riccall Riccall Riccall Village 
Institute

Yes 1601 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCE HRWMA1SA Allerton Mauleverer with 
Hopperton

Allerton 
Mauleverer with 
Hopperton 

Goldsborough 
Cricket Club

Yes 100 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCF HRWMA2SA Goldsborough and Flaxby 
(Flaxby)

Flaxby Goldsborough 
Cricket Club

Yes 76 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCG HRWMA3SA Goldsborough and Flaxby 
(Goldsborough)

Goldsborough Goldsborough 
Cricket Club

Yes 307 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Brayton & Barlow SEBA SEBRLSA Barlow Barlow Barlow Village 
Hall

Yes 469 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Brayton & Barlow SEBB SEBRTSA Brayton 1 Brayton Selby Civic 
Centre

Yes 958 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Brayton & Barlow SEBC SEBRVSA Brayton 2 Brayton Brayton Scout 
and Guide HQ

Yes 2159 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECA SECAMSA Camblesforth Camblesforth Comus Inn, Main 
Street

Yes 950 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECB SECARSA Carlton (Selby) Carlton Carlton Village 
Hall

Yes 1353 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECC SECCHSA Chapel Haddlesey Chapel Haddlesey Chapel 
Haddlesey 
Church 
Community Hall

Yes 117 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECD SECDXSA Drax Drax Drax Village Hall Yes 310 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECE SECHLSA Hensall Hensall Hensall 
Methodist Church

Yes 497 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECF SECHSSA Hirst Courtney Hirst Courtney Sloop Inn, Main 
Road

Yes 174 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECG SECLDSA Long Drax Long Drax Drax Village Hall Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECH SECNLSA Newland Newland Drax Village Hall Yes 124 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECI SECTHSA Temple Hirst Temple Hirst Sloop Inn, Main 
Road

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Camblesforth & 
Carlton

SECJ SECTWSA West Haddlesey West Haddlesey Chapel 
Haddlesey 
Church 
Community Hall

Yes 115 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDA SECWDSA Cawood Cawood Cawood Old 
Boys School

Limited 1017 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDB SECWRSA Ryther cum Ossendyke Ryther cum 
Ossendyke

Ryther Village 
Hall

Yes 155 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDC SECWWSA Wistow Wistow Wistow Jubilee 
Hall

Yes 791 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDD SEESCSA Escrick Escrick Escrick & 
Deighton Village 
Hall

Yes 520 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 57



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDE SEESKSA Kelfield Kelfield Kelfield Village 
Institute

Yes 257 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDF SEESPSA Skipwith Skipwith Skipwith Village 
Hall

Yes 229 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDG SEESTSA Stillingfleet Stillingfleet Stillingfleet 
Village Institute

Yes 270 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cawood & 
Escrick

SEDH SEETHSA Thorganby Thorganby Thorganby 
Village Hall

Yes 237 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cliffe & North 
Duffield

SEEA SEDCLSA Cliffe Cliffe Cliffe Village 
Institute

Yes 863 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cliffe & North 
Duffield

SEEB SEDHESA Hemingbrough Hemingbrough Hemingbrough 
Village Institute

Yes 1302 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cliffe & North 
Duffield

SEEC SEDNDSA North Duffield North Duffield North Duffield 
Village Hall

Yes 867 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Cliffe & North 
Duffield

SEED SEDOSSA Barlby and Osgodby 
(Osgodby Ward)

Barlby and 
Osgodby

Osgodby Village 
Institute

Yes 559 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFA SEBYBSA Brotherton Brotherton Brotherton Parish 
Hall 

 Yes 457 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFB SEBYRSA Byram cum Sutton Byram cum Sutton Brotherton Parish 
Hall 

 Yes 812 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFC SEBYUSA Fairburn Fairburn Fairburn 
Community 
Centre 

 Yes 509 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFD SEMBESA Beal Beal Beal Village Hall  Yes 485 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFE SEMBKSA Birkin Birkin Beal Village Hall  Yes 82 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFF SEMBS1SA Burton Salmon Burton Salmon Burton Salmon 
Village Hall 

 Yes 276 Merge with SEMBS2SA. No change to polling 
station. 

Merge with SEMBS2SA. No change to 
polling station. 

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFF SEMBS2SA Burton Salmon Burton Salmon Burton Salmon 
Village Hall 

 Yes 1 Merge with SEMBS2SA. No change to polling 
station. 

Merge with SEMBS2SA. No change to 
polling station. 

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFG SEMHLSA Hillam Hillam 7 Manor Court, 
Chapel Street 

 Yes 391 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFH SEMKFSA Monk Fryston Monk Fryston Monk Fryston 
and Hillam 
Community 
Centre 

 Yes 563 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston & 
South Milford

SEFI SESSM1SA South Milford South Milford 
(South) 

Grove House 
Community 
Centre

 Yes 1554 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGA SEEGGSA Eggborough Eggborough Eggborough 
Village Hall 

 Yes 1442 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGB SEEGKSA Kellington Kellington Kellington Village 
Hall 

 Yes 571 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGC SEWBASA Balne Balne The Parish 
Room, Thorntree 
Lane 

 Yes 161 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGD SEWCSSA Cridling Stubbs Cridling Stubbs Cridling Stubbs 
Village Hall 

 Limited 106 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGE SEWHKSA Heck Heck Heck Parish 
Room 

 Yes 144 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGF SEWKSSA Kirk Smeaton Kirk Smeaton The Smeatons 
Centre 

 Yes 256 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGG SEWLSSA Little Smeaton Little Smeaton The Smeatons 
Centre 

 Yes 160 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGH SEWSTSA Stapleton Stapleton St Martins 
Church, 
Womersley 

 Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGI SEWSWSA Stubbs Walden Stubbs Walden The Smeatons 
Centre 

 Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 58



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGJ SEWWHSA Whitley Whitley George and 
Dragon, 
Doncaster Road 

 Yes 658 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Osgoldcross SEGK SEWWOSA Womersley Womersley St Martins 
Church, 
Womersley

Yes 250 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFB HRXEA1SA Cattal, Hunsingore and 
Walshford (Cattal)

Cattal Hunsingore 
Village Hall 

 Yes 83 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFC HRXEA2SA Cattal, Hunsingore and 
Walshford (Hunsingore)

Hunsingore Hunsingore 
Village Hall 

 Yes 120 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFD HRXFA1SA Kirk Hammerton Kirk Hammerton Kirk Hammerton 
Village Hall 

 Yes 378 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFE HRXFA2SA Thornville Thornville  Kirk Hammerton 
Village Hall 

 Yes 12 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFF HRXGASA Long Marston Long Marston Long Marston 
Village Hall 

 Yes 366 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFG HRXHA4SA Tockwith and Wilstrop 
(Wilstrop)

Wilstrop Tockwith Village 
Hall 

 Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFH HRXUA2SA Great Ouseburn Great Ouseburn Great Ouseburn 
Village Hall 

 Yes 439 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFI HRXUH1H Dunsforth Dunsforth  Great Ouseburn 
Village Hall 

 Yes 185 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFJ HRXVASA Green Hammerton Green Hammerton Green 
Hammerton 
Village Hall 

 Yes 725 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFK HRXWA1SA Little Ouseburn (Kirby 
Hall)

Kirby Hall Little Ouseburn 
Village Hall 

 Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFL HRXWA2SA Little Ouseburn (Little 
Ouseburn)

Little Ouseburn Little Ouseburn 
Village Hall

Yes 186 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFM HRXWA3SA Little Ouseburn (Thorpe 
Underwoods)

Thorpe 
Underwoods

Little Ouseburn 
Village Hall

Yes 58 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFN HRXYASA Moor Monkton Moor Monkton The Old 
Schoolroom, 
Church Lane, 
Moor Monkton

Yes 217 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFO HRXZASA Nun Monkton Nun Monkton Kirk Hammerton 
Village Hall

Yes 182 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Ouseburn WEFP HRYAASA Whixley Whixley Whixley Village 
Hall

Yes 502 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby East SEHA SESBBSA Barlby and Osgodby 
(Barlby Bridge Ward)

Barlby and 
Osgodby

Selby Disitrict 
Olympia HQ 
Scout Hall

Yes 763 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby East SEHB SESEASA Selby (South Ward) Selby Selby Community 
Centre

Yes 860 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby East SEHC SESEJSA Selby (St James Ward) Selby Selby Community 
Centre

Yes 340 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby East SEHD SESESSA Selby (South Ward) Selby Cunliffe Centre, 
Petre Avenue

Yes 1441 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby East SEHE SESETSA Selby (South Ward) Selby Staynor Hall 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1366 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby West SEIA SESLHSA Selby (West Ward) Selby Selby Rugby 
Club

Yes 965 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby West SEIB SESLN1SA Selby (North Ward 1) Selby Coultish Centre, 
Charles Street

Yes 3651 Merge with SESLN2SA. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SESLN2SA. No change to 
polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby West SEIB SESLN2SA Selby (North Ward 2) Selby Wistow Jubilee 
Hall

Yes 47 Merge with SESLN1SA. Change polling 
station to the Coultish Centre.

Merge with SESLN1SA. Change 
polling station to the Coultish Centre.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby West SEIC SESLSSA Selby (West Ward) Selby Selby Civic 
Centre

Yes 1143 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 59



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Selby and Ainsty Selby Sherburn in 
Elmet

SEJA SESRHSA Huddlestone with 
Newthorpe 

Huddlestone with 
Newthorpe

Harold Mills 
House, North 
Crescent

Yes 37 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Sherburn in 
Elmet

SEJB SESRNSA Sherburn-in-Elmet (North) Sherburn-in-Elmet 
(North)

Harold Mills 
House, North 
Crescent

Yes 2891 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Sherburn in 
Elmet

SEJC SESRSSA Sherburn-in-Elmet (South) Sherburn-in-Elmet 
(South)

Lady Popplewell 
Centre, 
Beechwood 
Glade

Yes 2312 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Sherburn in 
Elmet

SEJD SESSM2SA South Milford South Milford 
(North)

Grove House 
Community 
Centre

Yes 38 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGA HRXEA3SA Cattal, Hunsingore and 
Walshford (Great Ribston 
with Walshford)

Great Ribston with 
Walshford 

Hunsingore 
Village Hall 

 Yes 36 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGB HRXHA1SA  Bilton in Ainsty with 
Bickerton

Bilton in Ainsty 
with Bickerton 

Tockwith Village 
Hall 

 Yes 256 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGC HRXHA2SA Tockwith and Wilstrop 
(Cowthorpe Ward)

Tockwith  Tockwith Village 
Hall 

 Yes 93 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGD HRXHA3SA Tockwith and Wilstrop 
(Tockwith Ward)

Tockwith  Tockwith Village 
Hall 

 Yes 1273 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGE HRXIASA Wighill Wighill The White Swan 
Inn, Wighill 

 Yes 121 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGF HRYKA1SA Follifoot and Plompton 
(Follifoot)

Follifoot Follifoot Village 
Hall 

 Yes 416 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGH HRYKA2SA Follifoot and Plompton 
(Plompton)

Plompton Follifoot Village 
Hall 

 Yes 74 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGI HRYLA1SA Kirk Deighton Kirk Deighton Kirk Deighton 
Village Hall 

 Yes 333 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGJ HRYLA2SA North Deighton North Deighton Kirk Deighton 
Village Hall 

 Yes 40 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGK HRYMA1SA Kirkby Overblow 
(Dunkeswick Ward)

Kirkby Overblow Sicklinghall 
Village Hall 

 Yes 82 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGL HRYMA2SA Kirkby Overblow (Kirkby 
Overblow Ward)

Kirkby Overblow Sicklinghall 
Village Hall 

 Yes 216 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGM HRYNASA Little Ribston Little Ribston Little Ribston 
Village Hall 

 Yes 154 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 60



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGN HRYOA1SA Kearby with Netherby Kearby with 
Netherby 

Sicklinghall 
Village Hall 

 Yes 142 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGO HRYOA2SA Sicklinghall Sicklinghall Sicklinghall 
Village Hall 

 Yes 213 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Spofforth with 
Lower 
Wharfedale & 
Tockwith

WEGP HRYPASA Spofforth with Stockeld Spofforth with 
Stockeld 

Spofforth Village 
Hall 

 Yes 770 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHA SETAKSA Newton Kyme cum 
Toulston

Newton Kyme 
cum Toulston

Riley Smith Hall 
Westgate

Hard to access 326 Consider St Marys church as an alternative. Change polling station to Tadcaster 
Methodist Church Community Room

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHB SETASSA Stutton with Hazlewood Stutton with 
Hazlewood 

Stutton Village 
Hall

No 267 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHC SETATSA Stutton with Hazlewood Stutton with 
Hazlewood 

Calcaria House 
Community 
Centre

Yes 302 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHD SETEESA Tadcaster (East Ward) Tadcaster Rosemary House 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1549 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHE SETSCSA Tadcaster (West Ward) Tadcaster Calcaria House 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1028 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHF SETSSSA Tadcaster (West Ward) Tadcaster Riley Smith Hall, 
28 Westgate

Hard to access 1051 Consider St Marys church as an alternative. Change polling station to Tadcaster 
Methodist Church Community Room

Selby and Ainsty Selby Thorpe 
Willoughby & 
Hambleton

SEKA SEHABSA Burn Burn Burn Methodist 
Church 
Schoolroom

Yes 291 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Thorpe 
Willoughby & 
Hambleton

SEKB SEHAGSA Gateforth Gateforth Gateforth – 
Three Greens

No 149 Change to Hambleton Village Hall. Change to Hambleton Village Hall.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Thorpe 
Willoughby & 
Hambleton

SEKC SEHAMSA Hambleton Hambleton Hambleton 
Village Hall

Yes 1470 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Thorpe 
Willoughby & 
Hambleton

SEKD SETWYSA Thorpe Willoughby Thorpe 
Willoughby

Thorpe 
Willoughby 
Village Hall

Yes 2201 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNA HRYZASA Weeton Weeton Almscliffe Hall, 
Huby

Yes 630 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Aire Valley SRAA CRAVL1SR Bradleys Both Bradleys Both Bradley Village 
Hall

Yes 793 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Aire Valley SRAB CRAVL2SR Cononley Cononley Cononley Village 
Institute

Yes 924 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Aire Valley SRAC CRAVL3SR Farnhill Farnhill Kildwick & 
Farnhill Institute

Yes 314 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Aire Valley SRAD CRAVL4SR Kildwick Kildwick Kildwick & 
Farnhill Institute  

Yes 139 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Aire Valley SRAE CRAVL5SR Lothersdale Lothersdale Lothersdale 
Village Hall

Yes 378 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Aire Valley SRAF CRCOW1SR Cowling Cowling Cowling Village 
Hall

Yes 1568 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBA CRBEN1SR Burton-In-Lonsdale Burton-In-
Lonsdale

Burton-in-
Lonsdale Village 
Hall

Yes 395 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBB CRBEN2SR Bentham (High Bentham 
Ward)

Bentham Bentham Town 
Hall

Yes 1547 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBC CRBEN3SR Bentham (Low Bentham 
Ward)

Bentham Low Bentham 
Victoria Institute

Yes 604 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

P
age 61



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBD CRIAC1SR Austwick Austwick Austwick Parish 
Hall

Yes 355 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBE CRIAC2SR Clapham-Cum-Newby Clapham-Cum-
Newby

Clapham Village 
Hall

Yes 426 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBF CRIAC3SR Ingleton Ingleton Ingleborough 
Community 
Centre

Yes 1475 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBG CRIAC4SR Lawkland Lawkland Austwick Parish 
Hall

Yes 183 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBH CRIAC5SR Thornton-In-Lonsdale Thornton-In-
Lonsdale

Westhouse 
Methodist Church

Yes 217 Change polling station as building no longer 
available.

Change polling station to Ingleborough 
Community Centre, Ingleton

Skipton and 
Ripon

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Boroughbridge & 
Claro

HKCM HRWLSSR Burton Leonard Burton Leonard St Leonards Hall Yes 549 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDA CRGAM10SR Kirkby Malhamdale 
(Malham)

Malham Malham Village 
Hall

Yes 98 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDB CRGAM11SR Kirkby Malhamdale 
(Malham Moor)

Malham Moor Malham Village 
Hall

Yes 26 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDC CRGAM12SR Otterburn Otterburn Airton Friends 
Meeting House

Yes 28 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDD CRGAM13SR Scosthrop Scosthrop Airton Friends 
Meeting House

Yes 37 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDE CRGAM14SR Stirlton with Thorlby Stirlton with 
Thorlby

Mobile Station at 
Car Park, White 
Hills Golf Range

No 142 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDF CRGAM1SR Airton Airton Airton Friends 
Meeting House

Yes 126 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDG CRGAM2SR Bank Newton Bank Newton Gargrave Village 
Hall

Yes 37 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDH CRGAM3SR Calton Calton Airton Friends 
Meeting House

Yes 43 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDI CRGAM4SR Coniston Cold Coniston Cold Richard Tottie 
Memorial Hall

Yes 113 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDJ CRGAM5SR Eshton Eshton Gargrave Village 
Hall

Yes 40 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDK CRGAM6SR Flasby with Winterburn Flasby with 
Winterburn 

Gargrave Village 
Hall

Yes 68 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDL CRGAM7SR Gargrave Gargrave Gargrave Village 
Hall

Yes 1197 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDM CRGAM8SR Kirkby Malhamdale 
(Hanlith)

Hanlith Malham Village 
Hall

Yes 18 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDN CRGAM9SR Kirkby Malhamdale (Kirkby 
Malham)

Kirkby Malham Malham Village 
Hall

Yes 64 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDO CRHLP1SR Hellifield Hellifield The Institute, 
Hellifield

Yes 990 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Gargrave & 
Malhamdale

SRDP CRHLP2SR Long Preston Long Preston Long Preston 
Village Hall

Yes 500 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Glusburn & 
Sutton-in-Craven

SREA CRGLU1SR Glusburn and Cross Hills 
(Cross Hills)

Glusburn and 
Cross Hills

St Peters 
Methodist Church

Yes 1533 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Glusburn & 
Sutton-in-Craven

SREB CRGLU2SR Glusburn and Cross Hills 
(Glusburn)

Glusburn and 
Cross Hills

Glusburn Institute 
Community & 
Arts Centre

Yes 1130 No change to polling station No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Glusburn & 
Sutton-in-Craven

SREC CRSIC1SR Sutton-in-Craven Sutton-in-Craven South Craven 
Baptist Church

Yes 773 Merge with CRSIC2SR. No change to polling 
station

Merge with CRSIC2SR. No change to 
polling station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Glusburn & 
Sutton-in-Craven

SREC CRSIC2SR Sutton-in-Craven Sutton-in-Craven South Craven 
Baptist Church

Yes 1568 Merge with CRSIC1SR. No change to polling 
station

Merge with CRSIC1SR. No change to 
polling station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFC HRWPS1SR Bishop Thornton, Shaw 
Mills and Warsill (Bishop 
Thornton and Shaw Mills) 

Bishop Thornton 
and Shaw Mills 

Bay Horse 
Community 
Centre 

 361 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 62



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFD HRWPS2SR Bishop Thornton, Shaw 
Mills and Warsill (Warsill) 

Warsill Bay Horse 
Community 
Centre 

 38 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFE HRWQSSR Clint cum Hamlets Clint cum Hamlets Bay Horse 
Community 
Centre 

 327 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFF HRWRSSR Azerley and Winksley 
(Galphay) 

Azerley Galphay Institute Limited 151 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFG HRWSS1SR Grantley & Sawley 
(Eavestone) 

Eavestone Grantley Village 
Hall 

Yes 21 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFH HRWSS2SR Grantley & Sawley 
(Grantley) 

Grantley  Grantley Village 
Hall 

Yes 96 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFI HRWSS3SR Grantley & Sawley 
(Skelding) 

Skelding Grantley Village 
Hall 

Yes 21 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFJ HRWSS4SR Azerley & Winksley 
(Winksley) 

Winksley Grantley Village 
Hall 

Yes 102 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFK HRWTSSR Azerley and Winksley 
(Mickley) 

Azerley Mickley Church 
Hall 

Yes 98 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFL HRWUSSR Azerley and Winksley 
(Azerley) 

Azerley Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics 
Institute 

Yes 24 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFM HRWVSSR Littlethorpe No. 1 Littlethorpe  Littlethorpe 
Village Hall 

 Yes 254 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFN HRWWSSR Littlethorpe No. 2 Littlethorpe  Harrogate Road 
Methodist 
Church, Ripon 

 Yes 101 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFO HRWXS1SR Markenfield Hall Markenfield Hall  Markington 
Village Hall 

 Yes 4 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFP HRWXS2SR Markington with 
Wallerthwaite 

Markington with 
Wallerthwaite 

Markington 
Village Hall 

 Yes 432 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFQ HRWZSSR Grantley & Sawley 
(Sawley) 

Sawley Sawley Village 
Hall 

 Yes 207 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFR HRXASSR South Stainley with 
Cayton 

South Stainley 
with Cayton 

The Inn, South 
Stainley 

 Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFS HRXBS1SR Fountains Abbey (Aldfield) Aldfield Studley Roger 
Village Hall 

Yes 44 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFT HRXBS2SR Fountains Abbey (Lindrick) Lindrick with 
Studley Royal and 
Fountains 

Studley Roger 
Village Hall 

 Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFU HRXBS3SR Fountains Abbey (Studley 
Roger) 

Studley Roger Studley Roger 
Village Hall 

 Yes 72 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFV HRXJS1SR Fearby, Healey & District 
(Colsterdale) 

Colsterdale Fearby and 
Healey Village 
Hall 

 Yes 7 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFW HRXJS2SR Fearby, Healey & District 
(Ellingstring) 

Ellingstring Fearby and 
Healey Village 
Hall 

 Yes 45 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFX HRXJS3SR Fearby, Healey & District 
(Fearby) 

Fearby Fearby and 
Healey Village 
Hall 

 Yes 91 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFY HRXJS4SR Fearby, Healey & District 
(Healey) 

Healey Fearby and 
Healey Village 
Hall 

 Yes 78 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFZ HRXJS5SR Fearby, Healey & District 
(Ilton cum Pott) 

Ilton cum Pott Fearby and 
Healey Village 
Hall 

 Yes 23 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFAA HRXKSSR Grewelthorpe Grewelthorpe Grewelthorpe 
Village Hall 

 Yes 342 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFBB HRXLS1SR Kirkby Malzeard, Laverton 
& Dallowgill (Kirkby 
Malzeard) 

Kirkby Malzeard Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics 
Institute 

Yes 590 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 63



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFCC HRXLS2SR Kirkby Malzeard, Laverton 
& Dallowgill (Laverton) 

Laverton Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics 
Institute 

Yes 80 No change to polling station. Merge with 
HRXMSSR 

No change to polling station. Merge 
with HRXMSSR 

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFDD HRXMSSR Kirkby Malzeard, Laverton 
& Dallowgill (Laverton) 

Laverton Dallowgill 
Methodist School 
Room 

No 96 Change polling station to Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics Institute. Merge with HRXLS2SR 

Change polling station to Kirkby 
Malzeard Mechanics Institute. Merge 
with HRXLS2SR 

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFEE HRXNS1SR Masham (Burton on Yore) Burton on Yore Masham Town 
Hall 

 Yes 54 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFFF HRXNS2SR Masham (Ellington High & 
Low) 

Ellington High and 
Low 

Masham Town 
Hall 

 Yes 48 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFGG HRXNS3SR Masham (Masham) Masham Masham Town 
Hall 

 Yes 816 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Masham & 
Fountains

SRFHH HRXNS4SR Masham (Swinton with 
Warthermarske) 

Swinton with 
Warthermarske 

Masham Town 
Hall 

 Yes 61 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGA HRXPSSR Dacre Dacre Dacre And 
Hartwith Village 
Hall

Yes 535 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGB HRXQSSR Darley & Menwith Darley and 
Menwith

Darley Memorial 
Hall

Yes 746 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGC HRYBS1SR Bewerley Bewerley Old School 
House, Pateley 
Bridge, HG3 5HG

Yes 356 Merge with HRYBS2SR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYBS2SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGC HRYBS2SR Bewerley Bewerley Old School 
House, Pateley 
Bridge, HG3 5HG

Yes 119 Merge with HRYBS1SR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYBS1SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGD HRYCS1SR Upper Nidderdale 
(Fountains Earth)

Fountains Earth Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 76 Merge with HRYCS2SR and HRYCS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYCS2SR and 
HRYCS3SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGD HRYCS2SR Upper Nidderdale 
(Fountains Earth)

Fountains Earth Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 43 Merge with HRYCS1SR and HRYCS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYCS1SR and 
HRYCS3SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGD HRYCS3SR Upper Nidderdale 
(Fountains Earth)

Fountains Earth Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 10 Merge with HRYCS2SR and HRYCS1SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYCS2SR and 
HRYCS1SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGE HRYDSSR High & Low Bishopside 
(Glasshouses & Wilsill)

High and Low 
Bishopside 
(Pateley Bridge 
Town)

Broadbelt 
Community Hall, 
Glasshouses

Yes 380 Merge with HRYFSSR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYFSSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGF HRYESSR High & Low Bishopside 
(Pateley Bridge)

High and Low 
Bishopside 
(Pateley Bridge 
Town)

Pateley Bridge 
and Bewerley 
Memorial Hall

Yes 811 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGE HRYFSSR High & Low Bishopside 
(Glasshouses & Wilsill)

High and Low 
Bishopside 
(Pateley Bridge 
Town)

Broadbelt 
Community Hall, 
Glasshouses

Yes 234 Merge with HRYDSSR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYDSSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGG HRYGS1SR Stonebeck Down Stonebeck Down Village Hall, 
Ramsgill

Yes 41 Merge with HRYGS2SR and HRYGS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYGS2SR and 
HRYGS3SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGG HRYGS2SR Stonebeck Down Stonebeck Down Village Hall, 
Ramsgill

Yes 49 Merge with HRYGS1SR and HRYGS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYGS1SR and 
HRYGS3SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGG HRYGS3SR Stonebeck Down Stonebeck Down Village Hall, 
Ramsgill

Yes 24 Merge with HRYGS2SR and HRYGS1SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYGS2SR and 
HRYGS1SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGH HRYHSSR Stonebeck Up Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 56 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGI HRYISSR Thornthwaite with 
Padside 

Hookstone 
Memorial Hall

Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 64



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Pateley Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGJ HRYJSSR Thruscross West End 
Outdoor Centre

Yes 62 Move polling station to Hookstone Memorial 
Hall.

Move polling station to Hookstone 
Memorial Hall.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Minster & 
Moorside

SRHA HRUAS1SR Ripon (Ripon Minster 
Ward 1)

Ripon Harrogate Road 
Methodist Church

Yes 426 Merge with HRUAS2SR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUAS2SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Minster & 
Moorside

SRHA HRUAS2SR Ripon (Ripon Minster 
Ward 2)

Ripon Harrogate Road 
Methodist Church

Yes 2181 Merge with HRUAS1SR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUAS1SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Minster & 
Moorside

SRHB HRUBSSR Ripon (Ripon Moorside 
Ward)

Ripon Salvation Army 
Reachout Centre, 
Lead Lane

Yes 2625 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Ure Bank 
& Spa

SRIA HRUCSSR Ripon (Ripon Spa Ward 1) Ripon Army Cadet 
Force, 
Clotherholme 
Road

Yes 1868 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Ure Bank 
& Spa

SRIB HRUDSSR Ripon (Ripon Spa Ward 2) Ripon The Arches, Holy 
Trinity Church

Yes 811 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Ure Bank 
& Spa

SRIC HRUESSR Ripon (Ripon Ure Bank 
Ward)

Ripon Allhallowgate 
Methodist Church

Yes 899 Merge with HRUFSSR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUFSSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Ripon Ure Bank 
& Spa

SRIC HRUFSSR Ripon (Ripon Ure Bank 
Ward)

Ripon Allhallowgate 
Methodist Church

Yes 1661 Merge with HRUESSR. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUESSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJA CRPEN1SR Giggleswick Giggleswick Parish Rooms, 
Bankwell Road

Yes 785 Change this polling place as the Parish 
Rooms have been sold.

Change polling station to Eshtons 
Pavilion, Giggleswick School, Raines 
Road, BD24 0DQ

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJB CRPEN2SR Horton-In-Ribblesdale Horton-In-
Ribblesdale

Horton-in-
Ribblesdale 
Village Hall

Yes 273 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJC CRPEN3SR Stainforth Stainforth Stainforth Village 
Hall

Yes 156 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJD CRSAR1SR Ribble Banks Group 
(Halton West)

Halton West Wigglesworth 
Community 
Centre

Yes 38 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJE CRSAR2SR Langcliffe Langcliffe Langcliffe Village 
Institute

Yes 237 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJF CRSAR3SR Settle Settle Victoria Hall, 24 
Kirkgate

Yes 1835 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJG CRSAR4SR Ribble Banks Group 
(Rathmell)

Rathmell Rathmell 
Reading Room

Yes 227 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJH CRSAR5SR Ribble Banks Group 
(Wigglesworth)

Wigglesworth Wigglesworth 
Community 
Centre

Yes 239 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton East & 
South

SRKA CRSKE1SR Skipton (East Ward 1) Skipton Skipton Baptist 
Church, Otley 
Street

Yes 1061 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton East & 
South

SRKB CRSKE2SR Skipton (East Ward 2) Skipton Moorview Social 
Club, 1 Moorview 
Way

Yes 1286 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton East & 
South

SRKC CRSKS1SR Skipton (South Ward 1) Skipton Trinity Methodist 
Church, Duckett 
Street

Yes 1043 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton East & 
South

SRKD CRSKS2SR Skipton (South Ward 2) Skipton Greatwood/Horse 
Close Community 
Centre

Yes 1235 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton North & 
Embsay with 
Eastby

SRLA CREWE1SR Embsay-with-Eastby Embsay-with-
Eastby

Embsay-with-
Eastby Village 
Institute

Yes 1300 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 65



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton North & 
Embsay with 
Eastby

SRLB CRSKN1SR Skipton (North Ward) Skipton Skipton Town 
Hall

Yes 966 Merge with CRSKN2SR and CRSKN3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with CRSKN2SR and 
CRSKN3SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton North & 
Embsay with 
Eastby

SRLB CRSKN2SR Skipton (North Ward) Skipton Skipton Town 
Hall

Yes 1073 Merge with CRSKN1SR and CRSKN3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with CRSKN1SR and 
CRSKN3SR. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton North & 
Embsay with 
Eastby

SRLB CRSKN3SR Skipton (North Ward) Skipton Site Office, 
Overdale Park

Yes 319 Polling station no longer available. Change to 
Skipton Town Hall and merge with 
CRSKN1SR and CRSKN2SR.

Polling station no longer available. 
Change to Skipton Town Hall and 
merge with CRSKN1SR and 
CRSKN2SR.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRMA CRSKW1SR Skipton (West Ward 1) Skipton Broughton Road 
Community 
Centre

Yes 897 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRMB CRSKW2SR Skipton (West Ward 2) Skipton Champions 
Church, Carleton 
Road

Yes 1748 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRMC CRWCR1SR Broughton Broughton West Marton 
Village Hall

Yes 36 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRMD CRWCR2SR Carleton-In-Craven Carleton-In-
Craven

Village Hall, 
Carleton

Yes 726 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRME CRWCR3SR Elslack Elslack Thornton-in-
Craven Village 
Hall

Yes 54 Change polling place to St Mary’s Church. No change to pollnig station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRMF CRWCR4SR Martons Both Martons Both West Marton 
Village Hall

Yes 196 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Skipton West & 
West Craven

SRMG CRWCR5SR Thornton-In-Craven Thornton-In-
Craven

Thornton-in-
Craven Village 
Hall

Yes 296 Change polling place to St Mary’s Church. No change to polling station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNB HRXOSSR Birstwith Birstwith St James Church 
Hall

Yes 520 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNC HRXRSSR Felliscliffe Felliscliffe Kettlesing 
Millennium 
Village Hall

Yes 205 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRND HRXSSSR Hartwith cum Winsley Hartwith cum 
Winsley

Methodist School 
Room, 
Summerbridge

Yes 651 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNE HRYQS1SR Mid Wharfedale (Askwith) Askwith Askwith Village 
Hall

Yes 162 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNF HRYQS2SR Mid Wharfedale (Denton) Denton Askwith Village 
Hall

Yes 59 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNG HRYQS3SR Mid Wharfedale (Weston) Weston Askwith Village 
Hall

Yes 111 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNH HRYRS1SR Havarah Park with 
Beckwithshaw 
(Beckwithshaw)

Beckwithshaw Beckwithshaw 
Village Hall

Yes 377 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNI HRYRS2SR Havarah Park with 
Beckwithshaw (Havarah 
Park)

Havarah Park Beckwithshaw 
Village Hall

Yes 21 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNJ HRYSS1SR Lower Washburn (Farnley) Farnley Farnley Hall 
Estate Office

Yes 211 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNK HRYSS2SR Lower Washburn (Lindley) Lindley Farnley Hall 
Estate Office

Yes 41 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNL HRYTS1SR Washburn 
(Blubberhouses)

Blubberhouses Fewston 
Parochial Hall

Yes 13 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNM HRYTS2SR Washburn (Fewston) Fewston Fewston 
Parochial Hall

Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNN HRYTS3SR Washburn (Great Timble) Great Timble Fewston 
Parochial Hall

Yes 59 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNO HRYTS4SR Washburn (Little Timble) Little Timble Fewston 
Parochial Hall

Yes 3 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNP HRYUS1SR Lower Washburn (Castley) Castley Leathley Village 
Hall

Yes 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 66



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNQ HRYUS2SR Lower Washburn 
(Leathley)

Leathley Leathley Village 
Hall

Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNR HRYUS3SR Lower Washburn 
(Stainburn)

Stainburn Leathley Village 
Hall

Yes 111 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNS HRYVS1SR Mid Wharfedale 
(Middleton)

Middleton Askwith Village 
Hall

Yes 62 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNT HRYVS2SR Mid Wharfedale (Nesfield-
with-Langbar)

Nesfield-with-
Langbar

Askwith Village 
Hall

Yes 110 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNU HRYWSSR Newall with Clifton Newall with Clifton Newall with 
Clifton Village 
Hall

Yes 89 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNV HRYXSSR North Rigton North Rigton St Johns Church, 
North Rigton

Yes 297 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Washburn & 
Birstwith

SRNW HRYYSSR Washburn (Norwood) Norwood Norwood Social 
Hall

Yes 153 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIA HRWASSR Bishop Monkton Bishop Monkton* Bishop Monkton 
Methodist Church

Yes 582 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIB HRWBSSR Marton le Moor Marton le Moor* Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane

Yes 141 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIC HRWCS1SR Kirby Hill and District 
(Ellenthorpe)

Ellenthorpe* Coronation Hall, 
Milby

Yes 21 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEID HRWCS2SR Kirby Hill and District 
(Humberton)

Humberton* Coronation Hall, 
Milby

Yes 30 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIE HRWCS3SR Kirby Hill and District 
(Kirby Hill)

Kirby Hill* Coronation Hall, 
Milby

Yes 308 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIF HRWCS4SR Langthorpe Langthorpe* Coronation Hall, 
Milby

Yes 673 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIG HRWCS5SR Kirby Hill and District 
(Milby)

Milby* Coronation Hall, 
Milby

Yes 448 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIH HRWCS6SR Kirby Hill and District 
(Thornton Bridge)

Thornton Bridge* Coronation Hall, 
Milby

Yes 17 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEII HRWDS1SR Cundall with Leckby and 
Norton le Clay (Cundall 
with Leckby)

Cundall with 
Leckby *

Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 62 Change to Meeting Room, Whitegate Lane, 
Marton-Le-Moor.

Change to Meeting Room, Whitegate 
Lane, Marton-Le-Moor.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIJ HRWDS2SR Cundall with Leckby and 
Norton le Clay (Norton le 
Clay)

Norton le Clay* Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 220 Change polling place to Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-Le-Moor. Merge with 
HRWDS3SR.

Change polling place to Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-Le-Moor. 
Merge with HRWDS3SR.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIJ HRWDS3SR Cundall with Leckby and 
Norton le Clay (Norton le 
Clay)

Norton le Clay* Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 40 Change polling place to Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-Le-Moor. Merge with 
HRWDS2SR.

Change polling place to Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-Le-Moor. 
Merge with HRWDS2SR.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIK HRWES1SR Roecliffe and Westwick 
(Roecliffe)

Roecliffe* The Crown Inn, 
Roecliffe

Yes 131 Change polling place to Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church. 

Change polling place to Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church. 

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIL HRWES2SR Roecliffe and Westwick 
(Westwick)

Westwick* The Crown Inn, 
Roecliffe

Yes 5 Change polling place to Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church.

Change polling place to Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIM HRWFS1SR Skelton cum Newby 
(Givendale)

Givendale* The Reading 
Room, Skelton 
On Ure

Yes 6 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIN HRWFS2SR Skelton cum Newby 
(Newby with Mulwith)

Newby with 
Mulwith*

The Reading 
Room, Skelton 
On Ure

Yes 15 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

WEIO HRWFS3SR Skelton cum Newby 
(Skelton on Ure)

Skelton on Ure* The Reading 
Room, Skelton 
On Ure

Yes 210 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROA HRZASSR Asenby Asenby Rainton Village 
Hall Sleights

Yes 198 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROB HRZBSSR Baldersby Baldersby St James 
Church, Wide 
Howe Lane, 
Baldersby St 
James

Yes 215 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 67



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROC HRZCS1SR Hewick and Hutton 
(Bridge Hewick)

Bridge Hewick Copt Hewick 
Village Hall

Yes 31 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROD HRZCS2SR Hewick and Hutton (Copt 
Hewick)

Copt Hewick Copt Hewick 
Village Hall

Yes 150 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROE HRZDSSR Dishforth Dishforth Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 647 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROF HRZES1SR Hewick and Hutton 
(Hutton Conyers)

Hutton Conyers Melmerby Village 
Hall  

Yes 152 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROG HRZES2SR Melmerby and Middleton 
Quernhow (Melmerby)

Melmerby Melmerby Village 
Hall  

Yes 268 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROH HRZFSSR North Stainley with 
Sleningford

North Stainley 
with Sleningford

North Stainley 
Village Hall

Yes 476 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROI HRZGSSR Rainton with Newby Rainton with 
Newby

Rainton Village 
Hall

Yes 280 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROJ HRZHSSR Sharow Sharow Sharow Village 
Hall And Sports 
Ground

Yes 391 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROK HRZIS1SR Melmerby and Middleton 
Quernhow (Middleton 
Quernhow)

Middleton 
Quernhow

Samwaies Hall 
Main Street Wath

Yes 35 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROL HRZIS2SR Wath and Norton Conyers 
(Norton Conyers)

Norton Conyers Samwaies Hall 
Main Street Wath

Yes 26 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wathvale & 
Bishop Monkton

SROM HRZIS3SR Wath and Norton Conyers 
(Wath)

Wath Samwaies Hall 
Main Street Wath

Yes 168 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPA CRBAF10SR Hetton-cum-Bordley Hetton-cum-
Bordley 

The School 
Room, Methodist 
Church, Hetton

Yes 99 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPB CRBAF11SR Rylstone Rylstone Cracoe and 
District 
Community 
Village Hall

Yes 88 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPC CRBAF12SR Thorpe Thorpe Burnsall Village 
Hall

Yes 38 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPD CRBAF1SR Appletreewick Appletreewick Appletreewick 
Village Hall, 

Yes 129 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPE CRBAF2SR Barden Barden Appletreewick 
Village Hall, 

Yes 54 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPF CRBAF3SR Beamsley Beamsley Bolton Abbey 
Village Hall, 

Yes 73 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPG CRBAF4SR Bolton Abbey Bolton Abbey Bolton Abbey 
Village Hall, 

Yes 65 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPH CRBAF5SR Burnsall Burnsall Burnsall Village 
Hall

Yes 63 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPI CRBAF6SR Cracoe Cracoe Cracoe and 
District 
Community 
Village Hall

Yes 108 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPJ CRBAF7SR Draughton Draughton Draughton 
Village Hall, 

Yes 171 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPK CRBAF8SR Halton East Halton East Bolton Abbey 
Village Hall

Yes 63 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPH CRBAF9SR Hazlewood with Storiths Hazlewood with 
Storiths 

Bolton Abbey 
Village Hall

Yes 54 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPI CRGRA1SR Grassington Grassington Church House, 
Main Street, 

779 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPJ CRGRA2SR Hartlington Hartlington The Ibbotson 
Institute, Hebden

39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPK CRGRA3SR Hebden Hebden The Ibbotson 
Institute, Hebden

151 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 68



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPL CRGRA4SR Linton Linton Anderton 
Memorial 
Institute, Linton

99 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPM CRUWH1SR Arncliffe Arncliffe Amerdale Hall, 
Arncliffe

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPN CRUWH2SR Buckden Buckden Buckden Village 
Institute

Yes 116 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPO CRUWH3SR Conistone with Kilnsey Conistone with 
Kilnsey 

Threshfield 
Village Institute

Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPP CRUWH4SR Halton Gill Halton Gill Amerdale Hall, 
Arncliffe

Yes 32 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPQ CRUWH5SR Hawkswick Hawkswick Amerdale Hall, 
Arncliffe

Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPR CRUWH6SR Litton Litton Amerdale Hall, 
Arncliffe

Yes 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPS CRUWH7SR Kettlewell-with-Starbotton Kettlewell-with-
Starbotton

Kettlewell Village 
Hall

Yes 212 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and Ripon Wharfedale SRPT CRUWH8SR Threshfield Threshfield Threshfield 
Village Institute

Yes 613 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBA RYAAT Amotherby Amotherby Amotherby 
Parish Hall

Yes 226 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBB RYABT Appleton Le Street with 
Easthorpe 

Appleton Le 
Street with 
Easthorpe 

Amotherby 
Parish Hall

Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBC RYACT Habton Habton Great Habton 
Village Hall

Yes 235 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBD RYADT Kirby Misperton Kirby Misperton Kirby Misperton 
Village Hall

Yes 204 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBE RYAET Broughton nr Malton Broughton nr 
Malton 

Swinton Reading 
Room

Yes 146 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBF RYAFT Swinton Swinton Swinton Reading 
Room

Yes 383 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBG RYBAT Ampleforth Ampleforth Ampleforth 
Village Hall

Yes 627 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBH RYBBT Byland with Wass and 
Oldstead (Byland with 
Wass)

Byland with Wass The Village Hall, 
Wass Bank 
Road, Wass

Yes 108 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBI RYBCT Byland with Wass and 
Oldstead (Oldstead)

Oldstead The Village Hall, 
Wass Bank 
Road, Wass

Yes 48 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBJ RYBDT Gilling East with Cawton, 
Coulton and Grimston 
(Cawton)

Cawton Gilling East 
Village Hall

Yes 59 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBK RYBET Gilling East with Cawton, 
Coulton and Grimston 
(Coulton)

Coulton Gilling East 
Village Hall

Yes 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBL RYBFT Gilling East with Cawton, 
Coulton and Grimston 
(Gilling East)

Gilling East Gilling East 
Village Hall

Yes 140 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBM RYBGT Gilling East with Cawton, 
Coulton and Grimstone 
(Grimstone)

Grimstone Gilling East 
Village Hall

Yes 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBN RYBHT Hovingham and 
Scackleton (Scackleton)

Scackleton Terrington Village 
Hall

Yes 75 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBO RYGAT Barton Le Street (Parish 
Meeting)

Barton Le Street Barton-le-Street 
Village Hall

Yes 134 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBP RYGBT Hovingham and 
Scackleton (Hovingham)

Hovingham Hovingham 
Village Hall

Yes 263 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBQ RYGCT Slingsby, South Holme 
and Fryton (Fryton)

Fryton Slingsby Village 
Hall

Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBR RYGDT Slingsby, South Holme 
and Fryton (Slingsby)

Slingsby Slingsby Village 
Hall

Yes 383 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 69



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Amotherby & 
Ampleforth

TMBS RYGET Terrington Terrington Terrington Village 
Hall

Yes 311 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Easingwold WECA HBEA01T Alne Alne Alne Village Hall Yes 502 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Easingwold WECB HBEA02T Aldwark Area (Aldwark) Aldwark Alne Village Hall Yes 130 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Easingwold WECC HBEA03T Aldwark Area (Flawith) Flawith Alne Village Hall Yes 60 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Easingwold WECD HBEA04T Aldwark Area (Youlton) Youlton Alne Village Hall Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Easingwold WECE HBEA05T Crayke Crayke Crayke Sports 
Club Sports 
Ground and 
Pavilion

Yes 263 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Easingwold WECF HBEA06T Easingwold Easingwold Easingwold 
Methodist School 
Rooms

Yes 3802 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Filey TMDA SCIAT Filey (Filey Ward 1) Filey The Concert Hall, 
(Evron Centre)

Yes 2809 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Filey TMDB SCIBT Filey (Filey Ward 2) Filey The Concert Hall, 
(Evron Centre)

Yes 1696 No change to polling Station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Filey TMDC SCICT Filey (Primrose Valley 
Ward)

Filey Royal Oak, Royal 
Oak, Hunmanby

Yes 247 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEA RYFAT Hawnby Hawnby Hawnby Village 
Hall

Yes 109 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEB RYFBT Helmsley Helmsley Helmsley 
Methodist Church 
School Rooms

Yes 1209 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEC RYFCT Sproxton Sproxton Helmsley 
Methodist Church 
School Rooms

Yes 73 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMED RYFDT Beadlam Beadlam Nawton Memorial 
Hall

Yes 151 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEE RYFET Nawton Nawton Nawton Memorial 
Hall

Yes 425 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEF RYFFT Cold Kirby Cold Kirby Cold Kirby Village 
Hall

Yes 66 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEG RYFGT Old Byland and Scawton Old Byland and 
Scawton

Cold Kirby Village 
Hall

Yes 95 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEH RYFHT Pockley Pockley Pockley Village 
Hall

No 63 Change polling station to Helmsley Methodist 
Church.

Change polling station to Helmsley 
Methodist Church.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEI RYFJT Rievaulx Rievaulx Rievaulx Village 
Hall

No 49 Change polling station to Helmsley Methodist 
Church.

Change polling station to Helmsley 
Methodist Church.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEJ RYRAT Edstone Edstone Edstone Village 
Hall

Yes 106 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEK RYRBT Harome Harome Harome Village 
Hall

Yes 184 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEL RYRCT Great and Little Barugh Great and Little 
Barugh

Kirby Misperton 
Village Hall

Yes 112 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEM RYRDT Nunnington Nunnington Nunnington 
Village Hall

Yes 162 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEN RYRET Stonegrave Stonegrave Oswaldkirk 
Village Hall

Yes 65 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEO RYRFT Oswaldkirk Oswaldkirk Oswaldkirk 
Village Hall

Yes 159 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEP RYRGT Brawby Brawby Salton Village 
Hall

Yes 114 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 70



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEQ RYRHT Salton Salton Salton Village 
Hall

Yes 53 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMER RYRJT Sinnington Sinnington Sinnington 
Village Hall

Yes 222 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMES RYRKT Slingsby, South Holme 
and Fryton (South Holme)

South Holme Slingsby Village 
Hall

Yes 19 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFE HBBA01T Bagby and Balk Parish 
Council (Bagby)

Bagby The Greyhound, 
Bagby

Yes 337 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFF HBBA02T Bagby and Balk Parish 
Council (Balk)

Balk The Greyhound, 
Bagby

Yes 44 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFG HBBA03T Borrowby Borrowby Borrowby Village 
Hall

Yes 272 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFH HBBA04T Leake Leake Borrowby Village 
Hall

Yes 6 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFI HBBA05T Hillside (Cowesby) Cowesby Knayton Village 
Institute

Yes 32 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFJ HBBA06T Knayton with Brawith Knayton with 
Brawith

Knayton Village 
Institute

Yes 245 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFK HBBA07T Hillside (Upsall) Upsall Knayton Village 
Institute

Yes 42 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFL HBBA12T South Kilvington South Kilvington Old Oak Tree 
Inn, Stockton 
Road, South 
Kilvington

Yes 169 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFM HBBA13T North Kilvington North Kilvington Old Oak Tree 
Inn, Stockton 
Road, South 
Kilvington

Yes 26 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFN HBBA14T Thornbrough Thornbrough Old Oak Tree 
Inn, Stockton 
Road, South 
Kilvington

Yes 14 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFO HBBA15T Hillside (Boltby) Boltby Sutton under 
Whitestonecliffe 
Village Hall

Yes 91 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFP HBBA16T Hillside (Felixkirk) Felixkirk Sutton under 
Whitestonecliffe 
Village Hall

Yes 56 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFQ HBBA17T Hood Grange Hood Grange Sutton under 
Whitestonecliffe 
Village Hall

Yes 2 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFR HBBA18T Hillside (Kirby Knowle) Kirby Knowle Sutton under 
Whitestonecliffe 
Village Hall

Yes 37 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFS HBBA19T Sutton-under-
Whitestonecliffe

Sutton-under-
Whitestonecliffe

Sutton under 
Whitestonecliffe 
Village Hall

Yes 209 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFT HBBA20T Thirlby Thirlby Sutton under 
Whitestonecliffe 
Village Hall

Yes 69 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFU HBBA21T Thornton-le-Beans & 
Crosby/Cotcliffe (Thornton-
Le-Beans)

Thornton-Le-
Beans

Thornton le 
Beans Village 
Hall

Yes 156 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFV HBBA22T Thornton-le-Beans & 
Crosby/Cotcliffe (Cotcliffe 
& Crosby 1)

Cotcliffe & Crosby Thornton le 
Beans Village 
Hall

Yes 7 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFW HBBA23T Thornton-le-Beans & 
Crosby/Cotcliffe (Cotcliffe 
& Crosby 2)

Cotcliffe & Crosby Thornton le 
Beans Village 
Hall

Yes 18 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 71



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFX HBBA24T Thornton-le-Moor & 
Thornton-le-Street 
(Thornton-le-Moor)

Thornton-le-Moor Thornton le 
Beans Village 
Hall

Yes 203 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf TMFY HBBA25T Thornton-le-Moor & 
Thornton-le-Street 
(Thornton-le-Street)

Thornton-le-Street Thornton le 
Beans Village 
Hall

Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDA HBRA01T Carlton Husthwaite Carlton 
Husthwaite 

Carlton 
Husthwaite 
Village Hall

Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDB HBRA02T Angram Grange Angram Grange Carlton 
Husthwaite 
Village Hall

Yes 9 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDC HBRA03T Coxwold Coxwold Coxwold Village 
Hall

Yes 125 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDD HBRA04T Kilburn High & Low Kilburn High & 
Low

Coxwold Village 
Hall

Yes 134 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDE HBRA05T Newburgh Newburgh Coxwold Village 
Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDF HBRA06T Oulston Oulston Coxwold Village 
Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDG HBRA07T Wildon Grange Wildon Grange Coxwold Village 
Hall

Yes 13 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDH HBRA08T Brafferton and Helperby Brafferton and 
Helperby

Helperby 
Millennium Hall

Yes 348 Merge with HBRA09T. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HBRA09T. No change to 
polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDH HBRA09T Brafferton and Helperby Brafferton and 
Helperby

Helperby 
Millennium Hall

Yes 198 Merge with HBRA08T. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HBRA08T. No change to 
polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDI HBRA10T Fawdington Fawdington Helperby 
Millennium Hall

Yes 10 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDJ HBRA11T Myton-on-Swale Myton-on-Swale Helperby 
Millennium Hall

Yes 89 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDK HBRA12T Husthwaite Husthwaite Husthwaite 
Village Hall

Yes 276 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDL HBRA13T Thornton-on-the-Hill Thornton-on-the-
Hill 

Husthwaite 
Village Hall

Yes 27 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDM HBRA14T Raskelf Raskelf Raskelf Village 
Hall

Yes 437 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDN HBRA15T Birdforth Birdforth Raskelf Village 
Hall

Yes 13 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDO HBRA16T Thormanby Thormanby Raskelf Village 
Hall

Yes 86 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDP HBRA17T Thirkleby High & Low with 
Osgodby

Thirkleby High & 
Low with Osgodby

Thirkleby Parish 
Hall

Yes 194 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & Raskelf WEDQ HBRA18T Thorlthorpe Tholthorpe Tholthorpe 
Village Hall

Yes 173 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEA HBEA07T Linton-on-Ouse Linton-on-Ouse Linton on Ouse 
Village Hall

Yes 483 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEB HBEA08T Newton-on-Ouse Newton-on-Ouse Newton on Ouse 
Parish Hall

Yes 419 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEC HBEA09T Shipton Shipton Shipton-by-
Beningbrough 
Community 
Centre

Yes 492 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEED HBEA10T Beningbrough Beningbrough Shipton-by-
Beningbrough 
Community 
Centre

Yes 34 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEE HBEA11T Overton Overton Shipton-by-
Beningbrough 
Community 
Centre

Yes 39 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 72



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEF HBEA12T Tollerton Tollerton Tollerton War 
Memorial 
Institute

Yes 720 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEG HBHU01T Brandsby-cum-Stearsby Brandsby-cum-
Stearsby

Brandsby Village 
Hall

Yes 193 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEH HBHU02T Dalby-cum-Skewsby Dalby-cum-
Skewsby 

Brandsby Village 
Hall

Yes 68 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEI HBHU03T Whenby Whenby Brandsby Village 
Hall

Yes 51 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEJ HBHU04T Yearsley Yearsley Brandsby Village 
Hall

Yes 81 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEK HBHU05T Huby Huby Huby Memorial 
Village Hall

Yes 862 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEL HBHU06T Stillington Stillington Stillington Village 
Hall

Yes 590 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEM HBHU07T Farlington Farlington Stillington Village 
Hall

Yes 79 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEN HBHU08T Marton-cum-Moxby Marton-cum-
Moxby 

Stillington Village 
Hall

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Huby & Tollerton WEEO HBHU09T Sutton-on-the-Forest Sutton-on-the-
Forest

Grey Village Hall, 
Sutton-on-the-
Forest

Yes 571 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGA RYPAT Ganton Ganton Ganton Village 
Hall

Yes 133 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGB RYPBT Heslerton (Heslerton East 
Ward)

Heslerton Sherburn Village 
Hall

Yes 114 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGC RYPCT Sherburn Sherburn Sherburn Village 
Hall

Yes 600 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGD RYPDT Willerby Willerby Village Hall, 
Wains Lane, 
Staxton

Yes 468 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGE SCKAT Reighton and Speeton Reighton and 
Speeton

Reighton Village 
Hall

Yes 272 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGF SCKBT Folkton Folkton Folkton and 
Flixton Village 
Hall

Yes 381 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGG SCKCT Hunmanby Hunmanby The Community 
Centre, 
Stonegate

Yes 2178 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Hunmanby & 
Sherburn

TMGH SCKDT Muston Muston Muston Village 
Hall

Yes 238 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHA RYCAT Cropton and Cawthorne Cropton and 
Cawthorne 

Cropton Village 
Hall 

Yes 171 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHB RYCBT Marton Marton  Marton Mission 
Room 

Yes 151 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHC RYCCT Normanby Normanby Marton Mission 
Room 

Yes 101 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHD RYCDT Newton upon Rawcliffe 
and Stape (Newton upon 
Rawcliffe)

Newton upon 
Rawcliffe  

Newton-upon-
Rawcliffe Village 
Hall 

Yes 124 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHE RYCET Newton upon Rawcliffe 
and Stape (Stape)

Stape Newton-upon-
Rawcliffe Village 
Hall 

Yes 80 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHF RYCFT Aislaby, Middleton and 
Wrelton (Aislaby)

Aislaby Middleton Village 
Hall 

Yes 54 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHG RYCGT Aislaby, Middleton and 
Wrelton (Middleton)

Middleton Middleton Village 
Hall 

Yes 263 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHH RYCHT Aislaby, Middleton and 
Wrelton (Wrelton)

Wrelton Wrelton Village 
Hall 

Yes 153 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHI RYDAT Appleton le Moors Appleton le Moors Appleton-le-
Moors Village 
Hall 

Yes 126 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 73



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHJ RYDBT Bransdale Bransdale  Bransdale 
National Trust 
Office 

Yes 42 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHK RYDCT Farndale East and West 
(Farndale East)

Farndale East Farndale East 
Village Hall 

Yes 66 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHL RYDDT Farndale East and West 
(Farndale West)

Farndale West Farndale East 
Village Hall 

Yes 57 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHM RYDET Fadmoor Fadmoor  Fadmoor Village 
Hall 

Yes 76 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHN RYDFT Gillamoor Gillamoor  Fadmoor Village 
Hall 

Yes 100 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHO RYDGT Hartoft Hartoft  Rosedale East 
Reading Room 

Yes 28 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHP RYDHT Hutton le Hole Hutton le Hole Hutton-le-Hole 
Village Hall 

Yes 108 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHQ RYDJT Lastingham Lastingham  Lastingham 
Darley Memorial 
Hall 

Yes 71 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHR RYDKT Spaunton Spaunton  Lastingham 
Darley Memorial 
Hall 

Yes 46 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHS RYDLT Rosedale East and West 
(Rosedale East)

Rosedale East Rosedale East 
Reading Room 

Yes 156 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHT RYDMT Rosedale East and West 
(Rosedale West)

Rosedale West Rosedale East 
Reading Room 

Yes 63 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHU RYHAT Kirkbymoorside Kirkbymoorside Kirkbymoorside 
Memorial Hall 

Yes 2137 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHV RYHBT Welburn (Kirkbymoorside) Welburn  Kirkbymoorside 
Memorial Hall 

Yes 47 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Kirkbymoorside & 
Dales

TMHW RYHCT Wombleton Wombleton Wombleton 
Village Hall 

Yes 222 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Malton TMIA RYWAT Malton 1 Malton The Milton 
Rooms, Market 
Place, Malton

Yes 1293 Merge with RYWDT. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with RYWDT. No change to 
polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Malton TMIB RYWBT Malton 2 Malton Old Malton 
Memorial Hall

Yes 303 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Malton TMIC RYWCT Malton 3 Malton Malton Rainbow 
Lane Community 
Centre

Yes 1425 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Malton TMIA RYWDT Malton 1 Malton The Milton 
Rooms, Market 
Place, Malton

Yes 985 Merge with RYWAT. No change to polling 
station.

Merge with RYWAT. No change to 
polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton on Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske 

RNFFF HBMO15T South Otterington, Newby 
Wiske & Maunby (South 
Otterington)

South Otterington South Otterngton 
& Maunby Village 
Hall

Yes 226 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton on Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske 

RNFGG HBMO16T South Otterington, Newby 
Wiske & Maunby 
(Maunby)

Maunby South Otterngton 
& Maunby Village 
Hall

Yes 97 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton on Swale 
& Appleton 
Wiske 

RNFHH HBMO17T South Otterington, Newby 
Wiske & Maunby (Newby 
Wiske)

Newby Wiske South Otterngton 
& Maunby Village 
Hall

Yes 98 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Norton TMJA RYJAT Norton on Derwent 
(Norton East Ward)

Norton on 
Derwent

Norton Trinity 
Methodist Church 
Rooms

Yes 2749 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Norton TMJB RYKAT Norton on Derwent 
(Norton West Ward)

Norton on 
Derwent

Norton St. 
Peter's Church 
House

Yes 2197 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 74



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Pickering TMKA RYLAT Pickering (Pickering East 
Ward)

Pickering Pickering 
Orchard Close 
Community 
Centre

Yes 2623 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Pickering TMKB RYMAT Pickering (Pickering West 
Ward)

Pickering Pickering 
Memorial Hall

Yes 2329 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLA RYEAT Acklam Acklam  Acklam Village 
Hall 

Yes 104 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLB RYEBT Birdsall Birdsall The Middleton 
Arms, North 
Grimston 

Yes 82 Polling station no longer available. Change to 
Settrington Village Hall. Merge with RYECT. 

Polling station no longer available. 
Change to Settrington Village Hall. 
Merge with RYECT. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLB RYECT Birdsall Birdsall (North 
Grimston) 

The Middleton 
Arms, North 
Grimston 

Yes 39 Polling station no longer available. Change to 
Settrington Village Hall. Merge with RYEBT. 

Polling station no longer available. 
Change to Settrington Village Hall. 
Merge with RYEBT. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLC RYEDT Burythorpe Burythorpe Burythorpe 
Church Hall 

Yes 136 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLD RYEET Burythorpe Burythorpe 
(Menethorpe) 

Menethorpe Hall Yes 34 Change to Burythorpe Church Hall. Merge 
with RYEDT

Change to Burythorpe Church Hall. 
Merge with RYEDT

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLE RYEFT Howsham Howsham  Westow Village 
Hall 

Yes 71 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLF RYEGT  Huttons Ambo Huttons Ambo Huttons Ambo 
Village Hall 

Yes 183 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLG RYEHT Langton Langton The Middleton 
Arms, North 
Grimston 

Yes 71 Polling station no longer available. Change to 
Burythorpe Church Hall. 

Polling station no longer available. 
Change to Burythorpe Church Hall. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLH RYEJT Leavening Leavening Leavening 
Methodist Hall 

Yes 261 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLI RYEKT Scagglethorpe Scagglethorpe Scagglethorpe 
Village Hall 

Yes 164 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLJ RYELT Scrayingham Scrayingham Leavening 
Methodist Hall 

Yes 118 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLK RYEMT Settrington Settrington Settrington 
Village Hall 

Yes 232 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLL RYENT Bulmer Bulmer Welburn Village 
Hall 

Yes 127 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLM RYEPT Coneysthorpe Coneysthorpe  Welburn Village 
Hall 

Yes 40 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLN RYEQT Henderskelfe Henderskelfe  Welburn Village 
Hall 

Yes 21 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLO RYERT Welburn (Welburn Ward) Welburn (Malton) Welburn Village 
Hall 

Yes 239 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLP RYEST Welburn (Crambeck 
Ward)

Welburn (Malton) Welburn Village 
Hall 

Yes 97 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLQ RYETT Westow Westow Westow Village 
Hall 

Yes 245 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLR RYQAT Flaxton Flaxton Flaxton Village 
Hall 

No 237 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLS RYQBT Foston with Thornton le 
Clay (Thornton le Clay)

Thornton le Clay Thornton-le-Clay 
Village Hall 

Yes 142 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLT RYQCT Lillings Ambo Lillings Ambo Sheriff Hutton 
New Village Hall 

Yes 95 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLU RYQDT Sheriff Hutton Sheriff Hutton Sheriff Hutton 
New Village Hall 

Yes 749 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLV RYYAT Harton Harton  Barton-le-Willows 
Village Hall 

Yes 47 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLW RYYBT Foston with Thornton le 
Clay (Foston)

Foston Thornton-le-Clay 
Village Hall 

Yes 63 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLX RYYCT  Gate Helmsley and Upper 
Helmsley (Gate Helmsley)

Gate Helmsley  Gate Helmsley 
Village Hall 

Yes 226 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

P
age 75



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLY RYYDT Gate Helmsley and Upper 
Helmsley (Upper 
Helmsley)

Upper Helmsley Gate Helmsley 
Village Hall 

Yes 28 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLZ RYYET Warthill Warthill Gate Helmsley 
Village Hall 

Yes 151 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLAA RYYFT Buttercrambe with Bossall Buttercrambe with 
Bossall  

Sand Hutton 
Village Hall 

Yes 66 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLBB RYYGT Claxton and Sand Hutton 
(Claxton)

Claxton Sand Hutton 
Village Hall 

Yes 122 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLCC RYYHT Claxton and Sand Hutton 
(Sand Hutton)

Sand Hutton Sand Hutton 
Village Hall 

Yes 149 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLDD RYYJT Barton le Willows Barton le Willows Barton-le-Willows 
Village Hall 

Yes 140 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLEE RYYKT Whitwell on the Hill and 
Crambe (Crambe)

Crambe Barton-le-Willows 
Village Hall 

Yes 40 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sheriff Hutton & 
Derwent

TMLFF RYYLT Whitwell on the Hill and 
Crambe (Whitwell on the 
Hill)

Whitwell on the 
Hill 

Barton-le-Willows 
Village Hall 

Yes 104 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMA HBSO01T Dalton Dalton Dalton Village 
Hall

Yes 550 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMB HBSO02T Eldmire with Crakehill Eldmire with 
Crakehill 

Dalton Village 
Hall

Yes 14 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMC HBSO03T Sessay Sessay Sessay Village 
Hall

Yes 194 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMD HBSO04T Hutton Sessay Hutton Sessay Sessay Village 
Hall

Yes 64 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMME HBSO05T Sowerby Sowerby Sowerby Scout 
Hut

Yes 3712 No change to polling station. Create new polling district to acoount 
for new homes build at Sowerby 
Gateway. No change to polling station 
until suitable venue for new polling 
district is identified.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMF HBSO05T Sowerby Gateway Sowerby Sowerby Scout 
Hut

Yes No change to polling station. Create new polling district to acoount 
for new homes build at Sowerby 
Gateway. No change to polling station 
until suitable venue for new polling 
district is identified.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMG HBSO06T Topcliffe Topcliffe Topcliffe Village 
Hall

Yes 644 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNA HBTH01T Carlton Miniott Carlton Miniott Vale Of York, 
Carlton Road, 
Carlton Miniott

Yes 707 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNB HBTH02T Sandhutton Sandhutton Sandhutton 
Village Hall

Yes 181 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNC HBTH03T Catton (Parish Meeting) Catton Sandhutton 
Village Hall

Yes 70 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMND HBTH04T Kirby Wiske & Newsham 
with Breckenbrough (Kirby 
Wiske)

Kirby Wiske Sandhutton 
Village Hall

Yes 72 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNE HBTH05T Kirby Wiske & Newsham 
with Breckenbrough 
(Newsham with 
Breckenbrough)

Newsham with 
Breckenbrough

Sandhutton 
Village Hall

Yes 85 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNF HBTH06T Skipton on Swale (Parish 
Meeting)

Skipton on Swale Sandhutton 
Village Hall

Yes 48 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNG HBTH07T Thirsk (East of Cod Beck) Thirsk East Thirsk 
Community Hall

Yes 2378 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thirsk TMNH HBTH08T Thirsk (West of Cod Beck) Thirsk Friends Meeting 
House, 24 
Kirkgate, Thirsk

No 1099 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 76



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling District at 
1 Dec 2022

Proposed Polling 
District Name 
1 February 2024

Parish (if any) Polling Place Disabled 
access

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOA RYNAT Heslerton (Heslerton West 
Ward)

Heslerton West Heslerton 
Village Hall 

Yes 129 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOB RYNBT Rillington Rillington Rillington Village 
Hall 

Yes 799 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOC RYNCT Thorpe Bassett Thorpe Bassett  Rillington Village 
Hall 

Yes 70 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOD RYNDT Scampston Scampston Scampston 
Village Hall 

Yes 93 Merge with RYNET. No change to polling 
station. 

Merge with RYNET. No change to 
polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOD RYNET Scampston Scampston Scampston 
Village Hall 

Yes 137 Merge with RYNDT. No change to polling 
station. 

Merge with RYNDT. No change to 
polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOE RYSAT Allerston and Wilton 
(Allerston)

Allerston Allerston Village 
Hall 

Yes 211 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOF RYSBT Allerston and Wilton 
(Wilton)

Wilton Allerston Village 
Hall 

Yes 88 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOG RYSCT Ebberston with 
Yedingham and Bickley 
(Bickley Ward)

Ebberston with 
Yedingham and 
Bickley 

Ebberston Village 
Hall 

Yes 24 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOH RYSDT Ebberston with 
Yedingham and Bickley 
(Ebberston Ward)

Ebberston with 
Yedingham and 
Bickley 

Ebberston Village 
Hall 

Yes 272 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOI RYSET Ebberston with 
Yedingham and Bickley 
(Yedingham Ward)

Ebberston with 
Yedingham and 
Bickley 

Ebberston Village 
Hall 

Yes 59 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOJ RYSFT Levisham Levisham Lockton Village 
Hall 

Yes 62 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOK RYSGT Lockton Lockton Lockton Village 
Hall 

Yes 166 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOL RYSHT Marishes Marishes  Marishes - 
Bellafax Grange 

Limited 87 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOM RYSJT Thornton-le-Dale Thornton-le-Dale Thornton Dale 
Methodist Church 

Limited 1240 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMON RYTAT Foxholes with Butterwick Foxholes with 
Butterwick 

Foxholes 
Community Hall 

Yes 163 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOO RYTBT  Kirby Grindalythe Kirby Grindalythe Kirby Grindalythe 
Village Hall 

Yes 202 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOP RYTCT Luttons Luttons Weaverthorpe 
Village Hall 

Yes 280 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOQ RYTDT Thixendale Thixendale Thixendale 
Village Hall 

Yes 138 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOR RYTET Weaverthorpe Weaverthorpe Weaverthorpe 
Village Hall 

Yes 260 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOS RYTFT Wharram Wharram Kirby Grindalythe 
Village Hall 

Yes 77 No change to polling station. No change to polling station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and Malton Thornton Dale & 
Wolds

TMOT RYTGT Wintringham Wintringham Wintringham 
Community Hall 

Yes 133 No change to polling station. No change to polling station.

P
age 77



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed 
Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling 
District at 1 
Dec 2022

Proposed 
Polling 
District Name 
1 February 
2024

Parish (if 
any)

Polling Place Disabled 
access

No of 
electors

No of Postal 
voters

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Coppice 
Valley & 
Duchy

HKDA HRDAH1H Harrogate 
Coppice Valley

Stray Room, Civic 
Centre

Yes 1540 337 1203 Merge with HRDAH2. No 
change to polling station

Merge with HRDAH2. No change to polling 
station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Coppice 
Valley & 
Duchy

HKDA HRDAH2H Harrogate 
Coppice Valley

Stray Room, Civic 
Centre

Yes 1520 276 1244 Merge with HRDAH1. No 
change to polling station

Merge with HRDAH1. No change to polling 
station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Fairfax & 
Starbeck

HKEA HRFAH1H Harrogate 
Fairfax

Fairfax Community 
Centre

Yes 2088 380 1708 Merge with HRFAH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRFAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Fairfax & 
Starbeck

HKEA HRFAH2H Harrogate 
Fairfax

Fairfax Community 
Centre

Yes 1126 224 902 Merge with HRFAH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRFAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Stray, 
Woodlands & 
Hookstone

HKLA HRIAH1H Harrogate 
Hookstone

St Aelred’s Church 
Hall

Yes 1838 403 1435 Merge with HRIAH2H. No 
change to polling station

Merge with HRIAH2H. No change to polling 
station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Stray, 
Woodlands & 
Hookstone

HKLA HRIAH2H Harrogate 
Hookstone

St Aelred’s Church 
Hall

Yes 965 216 749 Merge with HRIAH1H. No 
change to polling station

Merge with HRIAH1H. No change to polling 
station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

High 
Harrogate & 
Kingsley

HKGB HRJAH1H Harrogate 
Kingsley 1

Starbeck Methodist 
Church

Yes 2242 521 1721 Merge with HRJAH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Do not merge polling districts. Create new 
polling disitrct boundary. Polling station to 
change to Christ Church Parish Centre

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

High 
Harrogate & 
Kingsley

HKGC HRJAH2H Harrogate 
Kingsley 2

Starbeck Methodist 
Church

Yes 972 215 757 Merge with HRJAH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Do not merge polling districts. Create new 
polling disitrct boundary. 

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton Grange 
& New Park

HKBC HRKBH1H Harrogate New 
Park 2

Jennyfield 
Evangelical Church

Yes 928 185 743 Merge with HRKBH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRKBH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Bilton Grange 
& New Park

HKBC HRKBH2H Harrogate New 
Park 2

Jennyfield 
Evangelical Church

Yes 1142 204 938 Merge with HRKBH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRKBH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Oatlands & 
Pannal

HKKA HRLAH1H Harrogate 
Oatlands

Oatlands 
Community Centre

Yes 753 163 590 Merge with HRLAH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRLAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Oatlands & 
Pannal

HKKA HRLAH2H Harrogate 
Oatlands

Oatlands 
Community Centre

Yes 2525 644 1881 Merge with HRLAH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRLAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harlow & St 
Georges

HKFB HRPAH1H Harrogate St 
Georges

St George’s Dance 
Club

Yes 1967 539 1428 Merge with HRPAH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRPAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harlow & St 
Georges

HKFB HRPAH2H Harrogate St 
Georges

St George’s Dance 
Club

Yes 1447 336 1111 Merge with HRPAH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRPAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Valley 
Gardens & 
Central 
Harrogate

HKMB HRSAH1H Harrogate 
Valley 
Gardens

Westcliffe Hall Yes 1102 219 883 Merge with HRSAH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRSAH2H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Valley 
Gardens & 
Central 
Harrogate

HKMB HRSAH2H Harrogate 
Valley 
Gardens

Westcliffe Hall Yes 2024 476 1548 Merge with HRSAH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRSAH1H. No change to 
polling station

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwait
e & 
Saltergate

HKHD HRXDH1H Killinghall 
(Rural Ward)

Killinghall Killinghall Village 
Hall

Yes 1643 302 1341 Merge with HRXDH2H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRXDH2H. No change to 
polling station

# OFFICIAL

Appendix D - Final Recommendations,changes only Denotes a change to the initial recommendations

P
age 79

ben.natrass
Highlight



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed 
Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling 
District at 1 
Dec 2022

Proposed 
Polling 
District Name 
1 February 
2024

Parish (if 
any)

Polling Place Disabled 
access

No of 
electors

No of Postal 
voters

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Harrogate and 
Knaresborough

Killinghall, 
Hampsthwait
e & 
Saltergate

HKHD HRXDH2H Killinghall 
(Rural Ward)

Killinghall Killinghall Village 
Hall

Yes 248 43 205 Merge with HRXDH1H. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with HRXDH1H. No change to 
polling station

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Morton-on-
Swale & 
Appleton 
Wiske

RNFS HBMO02R Great Langton Great 
Langton 

Danby Wiske 
Village Hall

Yes 95 29 66 No change to polling 
station.

Change polling station to Kirkby Fleetham 
Village Hall

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNNA RIHA01R Melbecks Melbecks Gunnerside Village 
Hall

Yes 109 29 80 Merge with RIHA04R. No 
change to polling station.

Do not merge polling districts. No change to 
polling station

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Upper Dales RNND RIHA04R Melbecks Melbecks Low Row Institute No 139 31 108 Merge with RIHA01R. 
Change polling station to 
Gunnerside Village Hall

Do not merge polling districts. No change to 
polling station

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJC RIRW01R Richmond 
(Richmond 
West Ward 1)

Richmond Richmond Market 
Hall

Yes 1048 180 868 Merge with RIRW02R. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with RIRW02R. No change to polling 
station.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Richmond and 
Northallerton

Richmond RNJC RIRW02R Richmond 
(Richmond 
West Ward 1)

Richmond Richmond Market 
Hall

Yes 566 88 478 Merge with RIRW01R. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with RIRW01R. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Castle SWAA SCAASW Castle 1 Queen Street 
Central Hall

*Limited 1181 159 1022 No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCAASW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Castle SWAA SCABSW Castle 1 Queen Street 
Central Hall

*Limited 763 80 683 No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SCABSW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Whitby 
Steonshalh

SWMC SCFCSW Whitby (Town 
South Fishburn 
Park)

Whitby Whitby Library Yes, use of 
lift required

548 68 480 Change polling station to 
St Hilda’s Hub, 
Waterstead Lane.

Change polling station to St Hilda’s Hub, 
Waterstead Lane.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Newby SWHA SCOASW Newlands Newby and 
Scalby

St Mark’s 
Community Hall

Yes 1350 255 1095 Merge with SCODSW. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with SCODSW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Newby SWHA SCODSW Newlands Newby and 
Scalby

St Mark’s 
Community Hall

Yes 635 94 541 Merge with SCOASW. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with SCOASW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Northstead SWID SCPDSW Northstead 4 St. Columba 
Church Hall

Yes 721 83 638 Merge with SCPESW. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with SCPESW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Northstead SWID SCPESW Northstead 4 St. Columba 
Church Hall

Yes 1573 182 1391 Merge with SCPDSW. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with SCPDSW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Eastfield SWEA SCQASW Eastfield 
(Eastway 
Ward)

Eastfield Eastfield 
Community Centre

Yes 2772 357 2415 Change polling station to 
The Legacy Studio, 
Overdale School

Change polling station to The Legacy 
Studio, Overdale School

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Eastfield SWEC SCQCSW Eastway 2 Eastfield 
Community Centre

Yes 87 10 77 Change polling station to 
The Legacy Studio, 
Overdale School

Change polling station to The Legacy 
Studio, Overdale School

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Whitby 
Steonshalh

SWMD SCRASW Whitby (Town 
North Ward)

Whitby Church House 
Centre, Flowergate

Yes 868 149 719 Change polling station to 
Flowergate United 
Reformed Church

Change polling station to Flowergate United 
Reformed Church

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Scalby & the 
Coast

SWJC SCSASW Scalby Newby and 
Scalby

Newby and Scalby 
Community Hall

Yes 1290 302 988 Merge with SCSBSW. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with SCSBSW. No change to polling 
station.

Scarborough and 
Whitby

Scarborough 
and Whitby

Scalby & the 
Coast

SWJC SCSBSW Scalby Newby and 
Scalby

Newby and Scalby 
Community Hall

Yes 1707 350 1357 Merge with SCSASW. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with SCSASW. No change to polling 
station.

# OFFICIAL

P
age 80



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed 
Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling 
District at 1 
Dec 2022

Proposed 
Polling 
District Name 
1 February 
2024

Parish (if 
any)

Polling Place Disabled 
access

No of 
electors

No of Postal 
voters

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Selby and Ainsty Selby Thorpe 
Willoughby & 
Hambleton

SEKB SEHAGSA Gateforth Gateforth Gateforth – Three 
Greens

No 184 35 149 Change to Hambleton 
Village Hall.

Change to Hambleton Village Hall.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston 
& South 
Milford

SEFF SEMBS1SA Burton Salmon Burton 
Salmon 

Burton Salmon 
Village Hall 

 Yes 345 69 276 Merge with SEMBS2SA. 
No change to polling 
station. 

Merge with SEMBS2SA. No change to 
polling station. 

Selby and Ainsty Selby Monk Fryston 
& South 
Milford

SEFF SEMBS2SA Burton Salmon Burton 
Salmon 

Burton Salmon 
Village Hall 

 Yes 1 0 1 Merge with SEMBS2SA. 
No change to polling 
station. 

Merge with SEMBS2SA. No change to 
polling station. 

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby West SEIB SESLN1SA Selby (North 
Ward 1)

Selby Coultish Centre, 
Charles Street

Yes 4621 970 3651 Merge with SESLN2SA. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with SESLN2SA. No change to 
polling station.

Selby and Ainsty Selby Selby West SEIB SESLN2SA Selby (North 
Ward 2)

Selby Wistow Jubilee 
Hall

Yes 60 13 47 Merge with SESLN1SA. 
Change polling station to 
the Coultish Centre.

Merge with SESLN1SA. Change polling 
station to the Coultish Centre.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Bentham & 
Ingleton

SRBH CRIAC5SR Thornton-In-
Lonsdale

Thornton-In-
Lonsdale

Westhouse 
Methodist Church

Yes 268 51 217 Change polling station as 
building no longer 
available.

Change polling station to Ingleborough 
Community Centre, Ingleton

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Settle & 
Penyghent

SRJA CRPEN1SR Giggleswick Giggleswick Parish Rooms, 
Bankwell Road

Yes 972 187 785 Change this polling place 
as the Parish Rooms 
have been sold.

Change polling station to Eshtons Pavilion, 
Giggleswick School, Raines Road, BD24 
0DQ

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Glusburn & 
Sutton-in-
Craven

SREC CRSIC1SR Sutton-in-
Craven

Sutton-in-
Craven

South Craven 
Baptist Church

Yes 903 130 773 Merge with CRSIC2SR. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with CRSIC2SR. No change to 
polling station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Glusburn & 
Sutton-in-
Craven

SREC CRSIC2SR Sutton-in-
Craven

Sutton-in-
Craven

South Craven 
Baptist Church

Yes 1890 322 1568 Merge with CRSIC1SR. 
No change to polling 
station

Merge with CRSIC1SR. No change to 
polling station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton North 
& Embsay 
with Eastby

SRLB CRSKN1SR Skipton (North 
Ward)

Skipton Skipton Town Hall Yes 1361 395 966 Merge with CRSKN2SR 
and CRSKN3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with CRSKN2SR and CRSKN3SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton North 
& Embsay 
with Eastby

SRLB CRSKN2SR Skipton (North 
Ward)

Skipton Skipton Town Hall Yes 1367 294 1073 Merge with CRSKN1SR 
and CRSKN3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with CRSKN1SR and CRSKN3SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton North 
& Embsay 
with Eastby

SRLB CRSKN3SR Skipton (North 
Ward)

Skipton Site Office, 
Overdale Park

Yes 449 130 319 Polling station no longer 
available. Change to 
Skipton Town Hall and 
merge with CRSKN1SR 
and CRSKN2SR.

Polling station no longer available. Change 
to Skipton Town Hall and merge with 
CRSKN1SR and CRSKN2SR.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton West 
& West 
Craven

SRME CRWCR3SR Elslack Elslack Thornton-in-Craven 
Village Hall

Yes 75 21 54 Change polling place to 
St Mary’s Church.

No change to pollnig station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton West 
& West 
Craven

SRMG CRWCR5SR Thornton-In-
Craven

Thornton-In-
Craven

Thornton-in-Craven 
Village Hall

Yes 378 82 296 Change polling place to 
St Mary’s Church.

No change to polling station

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Ripon 
Minster & 
Moorside

SRHA HRUAS1SR Ripon (Ripon 
Minster Ward 
1)

Ripon Harrogate Road 
Methodist Church

Yes 533 107 426 Merge with HRUAS2SR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUAS2SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Ripon 
Minster & 
Moorside

SRHA HRUAS2SR Ripon (Ripon 
Minster Ward 
2)

Ripon Harrogate Road 
Methodist Church

Yes 2606 425 2181 Merge with HRUAS1SR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUAS1SR. No change to 
polling station.

# OFFICIAL

P
age 81



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed 
Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling 
District at 1 
Dec 2022

Proposed 
Polling 
District Name 
1 February 
2024

Parish (if 
any)

Polling Place Disabled 
access

No of 
electors

No of Postal 
voters

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Ripon Ure 
Bank & Spa

SRIC HRUESSR Ripon (Ripon 
Ure Bank 
Ward)

Ripon Allhallowgate 
Methodist Church

Yes 1091 192 899 Merge with HRUFSSR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUFSSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Ripon Ure 
Bank & Spa

SRIC HRUFSSR Ripon (Ripon 
Ure Bank 
Ward)

Ripon Allhallowgate 
Methodist Church

Yes 2098 437 1661 Merge with HRUESSR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRUESSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Masham & 
Fountains

SRFCC HRXLS2SR Kirkby 
Malzeard, 
Laverton & 
Dallowgill 
(Laverton) 

Laverton Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics Institute 

Yes 117 37 80 No change to polling 
station. Merge with 
HRXMSSR 

No change to polling station. Merge with 
HRXMSSR 

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Masham & 
Fountains

SRFDD HRXMSSR Kirkby 
Malzeard, 
Laverton & 
Dallowgill 
(Laverton) 

Laverton Dallowgill 
Methodist School 
Room 

No 124 28 96 Change polling station to 
Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics Institute. 
Merge with HRXLS2SR 

Change polling station to Kirkby Malzeard 
Mechanics Institute. Merge with 
HRXLS2SR 

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGC HRYBS1SR Bewerley Bewerley Old School House, 
Pateley Bridge, 
HG3 5HG

Yes 438 82 356 Merge with HRYBS2SR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYBS2SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGC HRYBS2SR Bewerley Bewerley Old School House, 
Pateley Bridge, 
HG3 5HG

Yes 158 39 119 Merge with HRYBS1SR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYBS1SR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGD HRYCS1SR Upper 
Nidderdale 
(Fountains 
Earth)

Fountains 
Earth

Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 81 5 76 Merge with HRYCS2SR 
and HRYCS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYCS2SR and HRYCS3SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGD HRYCS2SR Upper 
Nidderdale 
(Fountains 
Earth)

Fountains 
Earth

Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 49 6 43 Merge with HRYCS1SR 
and HRYCS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYCS1SR and HRYCS3SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGD HRYCS3SR Upper 
Nidderdale 
(Fountains 
Earth)

Fountains 
Earth

Middlesmoor 
Village Institute

Yes 13 3 10 Merge with HRYCS2SR 
and HRYCS1SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYCS2SR and HRYCS1SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGE HRYDSSR High & Low 
Bishopside 
(Glasshouses 
& Wilsill)

High and Low 
Bishopside 
(Pateley 
Bridge Town)

Broadbelt 
Community Hall, 
Glasshouses

Yes 457 77 380 Merge with HRYFSSR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYFSSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGE HRYFSSR High & Low 
Bishopside 
(Glasshouses 
& Wilsill)

High and Low 
Bishopside 
(Pateley 
Bridge Town)

Broadbelt 
Community Hall, 
Glasshouses

Yes 262 28 234 Merge with HRYDSSR. 
No change to polling 
station.

Merge with HRYDSSR. No change to 
polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGG HRYGS1SR Stonebeck 
Down

Stonebeck 
Down

Village Hall, 
Ramsgill

Yes 47 6 41 Merge with HRYGS2SR 
and HRYGS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYGS2SR and HRYGS3SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGG HRYGS2SR Stonebeck 
Down

Stonebeck 
Down

Village Hall, 
Ramsgill

Yes 62 13 49 Merge with HRYGS1SR 
and HRYGS3SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYGS1SR and HRYGS3SR. 
No change to polling station.

# OFFICIAL

P
age 82



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed 
Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling 
District at 1 
Dec 2022

Proposed 
Polling 
District Name 
1 February 
2024

Parish (if 
any)

Polling Place Disabled 
access

No of 
electors

No of Postal 
voters

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGG HRYGS3SR Stonebeck 
Down

Stonebeck 
Down

Village Hall, 
Ramsgill

Yes 33 9 24 Merge with HRYGS2SR 
and HRYGS1SR. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HRYGS2SR and HRYGS1SR. 
No change to polling station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Skipton and 
Ripon

Pateley 
Bridge & 
Nidderdale

SRGJ HRYJSSR Thruscross West End Outdoor 
Centre

Yes 88 26 62 Move polling station to 
Hookstone Memorial Hall.

Move polling station to Hookstone Memorial 
Hall.

Richmond 
(Yorks)

Thirsk and 
Malton

Aiskew & 
Leeming Bar

TMAB HBBE02R Aiskew and 
Leeming Bar 
(Leeming Bar 
Ward)

Aiskew and 
Leeming Bar 

Leeming Village 
Hall

Yes 841 123 718 No change to polling 
station.

Change polling station to The Reubans, 
Leeming Bar

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMME HBSO05T Sowerby Sowerby Sowerby Scout Hut Yes 4488 776 3712 No change to polling 
station.

Create new polling district to acoount for 
new homes build at Sowerby Gateway. No 
change to polling station until suitable 
venue for new polling district is identified.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Sowerby & 
Topcliffe

TMMF HBSO05T Sowerby 
Gateway

Sowerby Sowerby Scout Hut Yes No change to polling 
station.

Create new polling district to acoount for 
new homes build at Sowerby Gateway. No 
change to polling station until suitable 
venue for new polling district is identified.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Sheriff Hutton 
& Derwent

TMLB RYEBT Birdsall Birdsall The Middleton 
Arms, North 
Grimston 

Yes 102 20 82 Polling station no longer 
available. Change to 
Settrington Village Hall. 
Merge with RYECT. 

Polling station no longer available. Change 
to Settrington Village Hall. Merge with 
RYECT. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Sheriff Hutton 
& Derwent

TMLB RYECT Birdsall Birdsall 
(North 
Grimston) 

The Middleton 
Arms, North 
Grimston 

Yes 49 10 39 Polling station no longer 
available. Change to 
Settrington Village Hall. 
Merge with RYEBT. 

Polling station no longer available. Change 
to Settrington Village Hall. Merge with 
RYEBT. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Sheriff Hutton 
& Derwent

TMLD RYEET Burythorpe Burythorpe 
(Menethorpe) 

Menethorpe Hall Yes 47 13 34 Change to Burythorpe 
Church Hall. Merge with 
RYEDT

Change to Burythorpe Church Hall. Merge 
with RYEDT

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Sheriff Hutton 
& Derwent

TMLG RYEHT Langton Langton The Middleton 
Arms, North 
Grimston 

Yes 83 12 71 Polling station no longer 
available. Change to 
Burythorpe Church Hall. 

Polling station no longer available. Change 
to Burythorpe Church Hall. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEH RYFHT Pockley Pockley Pockley Village 
Hall

No 77 14 63 Change polling station to 
Helmsley Methodist 
Church.

Change polling station to Helmsley 
Methodist Church.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Helmsley & 
Sinnington

TMEI RYFJT Rievaulx Rievaulx Rievaulx Village 
Hall

No 55 6 49 Change polling station to 
Helmsley Methodist 
Church.

Change polling station to Helmsley 
Methodist Church.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thornton 
Dale & 
Wolds

TMOD RYNDT Scampston Scampston Scampston Village 
Hall 

Yes 109 16 93 Merge with RYNET. No 
change to polling station. 

Merge with RYNET. No change to polling 
station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thornton 
Dale & 
Wolds

TMOD RYNET Scampston Scampston Scampston Village 
Hall 

Yes 171 34 137 Merge with RYNDT. No 
change to polling station. 

Merge with RYNDT. No change to polling 
station. 

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Malton TMIA RYWAT Malton 1 Malton The Milton Rooms, 
Market Place, 
Malton

Yes 1502 209 1293 Merge with RYWDT. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with RYWDT. No change to polling 
station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Thirsk and 
Malton

Malton TMIA RYWDT Malton 1 Malton The Milton Rooms, 
Market Place, 
Malton

Yes 1340 355 985 Merge with RYWAT. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with RYWAT. No change to polling 
station.

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & 
Raskelf

WEDH HBRA08T Brafferton and 
Helperby

Brafferton 
and Helperby

Helperby 
Millennium Hall

Yes 399 51 348 Merge with HBRA09T. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HBRA09T. No change to polling 
station.

# OFFICIAL

P
age 83



Constituency Future 
Constituency

Division Proposed 
Polling 
District 
1 Feb 2024

Polling 
District at 1 
Dec 2022

Proposed 
Polling 
District Name 
1 February 
2024

Parish (if 
any)

Polling Place Disabled 
access

No of 
electors

No of Postal 
voters

Voting in 
person

(Acting) Returning 
Officer Initial 
Recommendation

(Acting) Returning Officer Final 
Recommendation

Thirsk and 
Malton

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Hillside & 
Raskelf

WEDH HBRA09T Brafferton and 
Helperby

Brafferton 
and Helperby

Helperby 
Millennium Hall

Yes 234 36 198 Merge with HBRA08T. No 
change to polling station.

Merge with HBRA08T. No change to polling 
station.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop 
Monkton

WEII HRWDS1SR Cundall with 
Leckby and 
Norton le Clay 
(Cundall with 
Leckby)

Cundall with 
Leckby *

Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 95 33 62 Change to Meeting 
Room, Whitegate Lane, 
Marton-Le-Moor.

Change to Meeting Room, Whitegate Lane, 
Marton-Le-Moor.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop 
Monkton

WEIJ HRWDS2SR Cundall with 
Leckby and 
Norton le Clay 
(Norton le 
Clay)

Norton le 
Clay*

Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 251 31 220 Change polling place to 
Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-
Le-Moor. Merge with 
HRWDS3SR.

Change polling place to Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-Le-Moor. Merge 
with HRWDS3SR.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop 
Monkton

WEIJ HRWDS3SR Cundall with 
Leckby and 
Norton le Clay 
(Norton le 
Clay)

Norton le 
Clay*

Dishforth Village 
Hall

Yes 53 13 40 Change polling place to 
Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-
Le-Moor. Merge with 
HRWDS2SR.

Change polling place to Meeting Room, 
Whitegate Lane, Marton-Le-Moor. Merge 
with HRWDS2SR.

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop 
Monkton

WEIK HRWES1SR Roecliffe and 
Westwick 
(Roecliffe)

Roecliffe* The Crown Inn, 
Roecliffe

Yes 187 56 131 Change polling place to 
Boroughbridge Methodist 
Church. 

Change polling place to Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church. 

Skipton and 
Ripon

Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Wathvale & 
Bishop 
Monkton

WEIL HRWES2SR Roecliffe and 
Westwick 
(Westwick)

Westwick* The Crown Inn, 
Roecliffe

Yes 6 1 5 Change polling place to 
Boroughbridge Methodist 
Church.

Change polling place to Boroughbridge 
Methodist Church.

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHA SETAKSA Newton Kyme 
cum Toulston

Newton 
Kyme cum 
Toulston

Riley Smith Hall, 
28 Westgate

Hard to 
access

451 125 326 Consider St Marys church 
as an alternative.

Change polling station to Tadcaster 
Methodist Church Community Room

Selby and Ainsty Wetherby and 
Easingwold

Tadcaster WEHF SETSSSA Tadcaster 
(West Ward)

Tadcaster Riley Smith Hall, 
28 Westgate

Hard to 
access

1328 277 1051 Consider St Marys church 
as an alternative.

Change polling station to Tadcaster 
Methodist Church Community Room

# OFFICIAL

P
age 84



 

 
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of equality to a proposal, and a 
decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate or proportionate.  
 

Directorate  Legal and Democratic 

Service area Electoral Services 

Proposal being screened Statutory Polling Districts and Polling Places Review 

Officer(s) carrying out screening  Ben Nattrass, Electoral Services Manager 

What are you proposing to do? Adopt of new schedule of polling districts and polling 

places which will determine where voters cast their 

ballots in person at elections taking place in North 

Yorkshire. 

Why are you proposing this? What are the 
desired outcomes? 

Conducting the review is a statutory requirement. Where 
changes to existing arrangements are proposed, the 
reasons are either that the existing location is no longer 
available or is not suitable for voters with a disability, or 
will improve access and convenience for voters. 

Does the proposal involve a significant 
commitment or removal of resources? 
Please give details. 

No, the proposals are broadly cost neutral. 

Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by the Equality 
Act 2010, or NYC’s additional agreed characteristics 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 

• To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected characteristics? 

• Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as important? 

• Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be an adverse impact or you have 
ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be carried out where this is 
proportionate. You are advised to speak to your directorate representative for advice if you are in 
any doubt. 
 

Protected characteristic Potential for adverse impact Don’t know/No 
info available 

Yes No 

Age  x  
Disability  x  
Sex   x  
Race  x  
Sexual orientation  x  
Gender reassignment  x  
Religion or belief  x  
Pregnancy or maternity  x  
Marriage or civil partnership  x  

 
People in rural areas  x  
People on a low income  x  
Carer (unpaid family or friend)  x  
Are from the Armed Forces Community  x  
Does the proposal relate to an area where 
there are known inequalities/probable 
impacts (for example, disabled people’s 
access to public transport)? Please give 
details. 

The proposals cover the entire North Yorkshire Council 
area. 

Page 85



 

 
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Will the proposal have a significant effect 
on how other organisations operate? (for 
example, partners, funding criteria, etc.). Do 
any of these organisations support people 
with protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this conclusion.  

 
No, the proposals relate only to where people will vote. 

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate:  

 
✓    

Continue to full 
EIA: 

 
X 

Reason for decision No equality implications 

Signed (Assistant Director or equivalent) Jennifer Norton 

Date 04/12/2023 

 

Page 86



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Initial Climate Change Impact Assessment (Form created August 2021) 

The intention of this document is to help the council to gain an initial understanding of the impact of a project or decision on the 

environment. This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. Dependent on this initial 

assessment you may need to go on to complete a full Climate Change Impact Assessment. The final document will be published as 

part of the decision-making process. 

If you have any additional queries, which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk 

Title of proposal Statutory Polling Districts and Polling Places Review 

Brief description of proposal Adopt a schedule of polling districts and polling places to be used to determine where 
people vote at future elections. 

Directorate  Legal & Democratic 

Service area Electoral Services 

Lead officer Kerry Russett, Head of Electoral Services 

Names and roles of other 
people involved in carrying out 
the impact assessment 

Ben Nattrass, Electoral Services Manager 

 

 

 

  

P
age 87

mailto:climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk


 

 

OFFICIAL 

The chart below contains the main environmental factors to consider in your initial assessment – choose the appropriate option 

from the drop-down list for each one. 

Remember to think about the following; 

• Travel 

• Construction 

• Data storage 

• Use of buildings 

• Change of land use 

• Opportunities for recycling and reuse 

Environmental factor to consider For the council For the county Overall 

Greenhouse gas emissions No effect on 
emissions 

No Effect on 
emissions 

No effect on 
emissions 

Waste No effect on waste No effect on waste No effect on waste 

Water use No effect on water 
usage 

No effect on water 
usage 

No effect on water 
usage 

Pollution (air, land, water, noise, light) No effect on 
pollution 

No effect on 
pollution 

No effect on pollution 

Resilience to adverse weather/climate events 
(flooding, drought etc) 

No effect on 
resilience 

No effect on 
resilience 

No effect on 
resilience 

Ecological effects (biodiversity, loss of habitat etc) No effect on 
ecology 

No effect on 
ecology 

No effect on ecology 

Heritage and landscape No effect on 
heritage and 
landscape 

No effect on 
heritage and 
landscape 

No effect on heritage 
and landscape 

 

P
age 88



 

 

OFFICIAL 

If any of these factors are likely to result in a negative or positive environmental impact then a full climate change impact 

assessment will be required. It is important that we capture information about both positive and negative impacts to aid the council 

in calculating its carbon footprint and environmental impact.  

Decision (Please tick one option) Full CCIA not 

relevant or 

proportionate:  

✓ Continue to full 

CCIA: 

X 

Reason for decision No climate impacts 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed (Assistant Director or 

equivalent) 

Jennifer Norton 

 

Date 4.12.23 

 

 

P
age 89



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

OFFICIAL 

 
North Yorkshire Council 

 
Standards and Governance Committee 

 
13 December 2023 

 
Schedule of election fees for elections and by-elections in North Yorkshire  

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 The Committee are asked to approve a schedule of election fees to be paid at future scheduled 

elections and unscheduled by-elections in North Yorkshire. 
 
 
 
2.0 BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 When an election is called, the Returning Officer is required to employ sufficient staff to carry 

out the processes necessary to conduct a poll, including staffing polling stations, vote counts 
and postal vote opening sessions. A schedule of fees is set in advance setting out the 
payment for each job role. In previous years, fee schedules were approved by agreement of 
District and Borough Chief Executives within North Yorkshire, and these were last agreed in 
2021. This committee approved an interim schedule of fees in May 2023, while awaiting 
expected written guidance on indicative fees from Central Government.  

 
2.2 Although Central Government do not provide funding for local elections, they do fund national 

elections such as Parliamentary General elections, so when setting a schedule of election 
fees, it is prudent to pay due regard to the guidance they issue in relation to the levels of fees 
that they will allow. Updated guidance from the Election Claims Unit (part of the Cabinet 
Office) outlining indicative rates of pay for each type of election job has now been published, 
which allows for a more comprehensive schedule of fees to be submitted to this committee 
for approval. 

 
2.3  What follows are recommendations for elections fees to take effect immediately, allowing 

fees to be adopted for the scheduled Combined Authority Mayoral election in May 2024 and 
any unscheduled by-elections arising before then. 

 
 
3.0 RECOMMENDED SCHEDULE OF ELECTIONS FEES  
 
 
3.1 The fees set out in Appendix A are recommended for approval and are based on written 

guidance received from the Election Claims Unit on indicative fees for elections. The 
recommended fees are based on adopting the interim fees already approved on a permanent 
basis where those fees sit within the newly published pay bands. In Appendix A, “out of hours” 
refers to hours worked on Saturdays and in the evening, while any hours worked on Sundays 
or bank holidays would be paid at double the day rate, as covered in the guidance document 
(Appendix B). 

 
3.2 It is further recommended that when the Election Claims Unit publishes updates to its 

indicative fees in future years, the North Yorkshire fee schedule is automatically updated in 
line with it e.g. if the pay bands were to be uplifted for 2024/25, the North Yorkshire fees 
would have the same uplift applied. . 

Page 91

Agenda Item 6



 

OFFICIAL 

 
4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
4.1 Setting fees at the bottom end of the ranges published in the indicative fees would cost less, 

but could make our fees uncompetitive with neighbouring councils, possibly leading to 
recruitment problems for scheduled elections. It would also represent a drop in the fees paid 
previously. Setting fees at or near the top of the range would make the roles attractive but 
would be costly.  

 
5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 Approving the proposed interim schedule would be broadly cost neutral as in most cases the 

new fees are equal to the interim fees already approved. In a small number of cases (senior 
roles at election counts), the new fee is lower than the interim fee, so there will be a slight 
saving on staff costs for election counts if this new schedule is approved. 

 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1 Adopting this fee schedule will ensure all roles exceed the national minimum wage.   
 
7.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 There are none. ￼ An Equalities Impact Assessment Screening Form is provided at 
 Appendix C 
 
8.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1 There are none. A Climate Change Impact Assessment Screening Form is provided at  

Appendix D. 
 
9.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
9.1 Approving a schedule of fees will enable a degree of certainty for those organising elections, 

providing a basis for them to recruit sufficient casual staff to work at elections taking place in 
the North Yorkshire council area. By paying due regard to the fees guidance provided by the 
Electoral Claims Unit, it ensures our fees will are in line with national expectations. Allowing 
fees to rise in line with future updates to national guidance provides greater certainty going 
forward by establishing a consistent approach. 

 
10.0 RECOMMENDATIONS   

 
 (i) That the Committee approves the recommended fee schedule shown Appendix A 

be used by the Returning Officer for the purposes of employing staff to work at 
elections taking place in North Yorkshire. 

(ii) That this fee schedule is amended in line with amendments made to the national 
indicative fee schedule in future years. 

  
 
 
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal & Democratic Services) 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
13.12.23 
 

Page 92



 

OFFICIAL 

Report Author – Ben Nattrass, Electoral Services Manager 
Presenter of Report – Kerry Russett, Head of Electoral Services 
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries or 
questions. 
 
Appendices – Appendix A – Proposed Schedule of Fees 2023/24 
  Appendix B – Election Claims Unit Pay Bands for Election Staff 2023/24 
  Appendix C – Equalities Impact Assessment Screening Form 
  Appendix D – Climate Change Impact Assessment Screening Form 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A – Proposed Schedule of Fees 2023/24

Role DLUHC Pay Band

Returning Officer's Fee

RO fees are paid 
according to an order 
published before each 

national poll

 Day rate (£)  Hourly rate (£) 
 Day rate 

(£) 
 Hourly 
rate (£) 

Poll Clerk £10.42-£14.18ph 172.00            10.75                 172 10.75    -    
Presiding Officer £14.70-£18.38ph 255.00            15.00                 255 15.00    -    
Polling Station Inspector £15.75-£27.30ph 277.00            18.46                 277 18.46    -    
Count Assistant (day) £10.42-£14.18ph 12.00                 12.00    -    
Count Assistant (overnight) £15.63-£21.27ph 17.50                 17.50    -    
Count Team Leader (day) £12.60-£16.80ph Not previously on schedule 14.21    
Count Team Leader (overnight) £18.90-£25.20ph Not previously on schedule 21.33    
Count Supervisor (day) £14.70-£18.38ph 22.00                 18.38    3.62-  
Count Supervisor (overnight) £22.05-£27.57ph 33.00                 27.57    5.43-  
Count Top Table Co-ordinator (day) £14.70-£18.38ph Not previously on schedule 18.38    
Count Top Table Co-ordinator (day) £22.05-£27.57ph Not previously on schedule 27.58    
Count Manager (day) £15.75-£27.30ph 27.50                 27.30    0.20-  
Count Manager (overnight) £23.63-£40.95ph 38.50                 38.50    -    
Postal Vote Opener (day) £10.42-£14.18ph 12.00                 12.00    -    
Postal Vote Opener (overnight) £15.63-£21.27ph 17.50                 17.50    -    
Postal Vote Supervisor (day) £12.60-£16.80ph 16.50                 16.50    -    
Postal Vote Supervisor (overnight) £18.90-£25.20 27.50                 25.20    2.30-  
Postal Vote PI Adjudicator (day) £14.70-£18.38ph 16.50                 16.50    -    

In
cr

ea
se

 /
 D

ec
re

as
e

NY Interim Fee 
Approved May '23 Proposed Fee

8p per elector or £56 
(whichever is greater)

8p per elector or £56 
(whichever is 

greater)

P
age 95



Role DLUHC Pay Band

Returning Officer's Fee

RO fees are paid 
according to an order 
published before each 

national poll

 Day rate (£)  Hourly rate (£) 
 Day rate 

(£) 
 Hourly 
rate (£) In

cr
ea

se
 /

 D
ec

re
as

e

NY Interim Fee 
Approved May '23 Proposed Fee

8p per elector or £56 
(whichever is greater)

8p per elector or £56 
(whichever is 

greater)

Postal Vote PI Adjudicator (overnight) £22.05-£27.57ph 27.50                 27.50    -    
Postal Vote Opening Session Manager (day) £15.75-£27.30ph 20.00                 20.00    -    
Postal Vote Opening Session Manager (night) £23.63-£40.95ph 30.00                 30.00    -    
Fee for attending training £40 (max) 16.50                 16.50    -    
Training Prep & Delivery (day) £100-£150 / session 22.00                 £100 per session
Training Prep & Delivery (night) £100-£150 / session 33.00                 £100 per session
Mileage Rate (per mile) £0.45 per mile 0.45                   0.45       -    
Poll Card (Hand) Delivery (per item) £0.15-£0.34 / item Not previously on schedule 0.25       
Ballot Box preparation/issuing assistant £10.42-£14.18ph Not previously on schedule 12.00    
Ballot Box preparation/issuing supervisor £12.60-£16.80ph Not previously on schedule 16.50    
Ballot Box receipt assistant (overnight) £15.63-£21.27ph Not previously on schedule 17.50    
Ballot Box receipt supervisor (overnight) £18.90-£25.20ph Not previously on schedule 21.33    
Clerical support assistant (day) £10.42-£14.18ph 12.00                 12.00    -    
Clerical support assistant (out of hours) £15.63-£21.27ph 17.50                 17.50    -    
Clerical support supervisor (day) £10.42-£14.18ph 22.00                 14.18    7.82-  
Clerical support supervisor (out of hours) £15.63-£21.27ph 33.00                 21.27    #####

P
age 96



Pay Bands for Elections Staff 2023/24  

 

This document sets out the pay bands for staff working on polls funded from the Consolidated Fund 

(UK Parliamentary and Police and Crime Commissioner elections). The rates are applicable across 

Great Britain and will apply to any UK Parliamentary or PCC elections, including relevant by-

elections, that take place during the financial year of 2023/24.  

A brief guide to the pay bands has been included. However, there will be a comprehensive set of 

guidance issued for staff payments which Returning Officers should read before setting rates of pay 

for election staff. 

• The pay bands set out an hourly day rate for election roles. 

• Work that takes place during evenings, nights and Saturdays can be paid at an uplifted rate 

of up to a maximum of 1.5x the day rate. 

• Work that takes place during Sundays and Bank Holidays can be paid at an uplifted rate of 

up to a maximum of 2x the day rate. 

• Staff working at the count can receive a guaranteed minimum payment equivalent to four 

hours of pay at the relevant rate for the role. This covers the first four hours of work and is 

payable even if the count concludes sooner than this.  

• If additional hours are worked at the count, these will then be paid at the relevant hourly 

rate, in addition to the guaranteed minimum payment.  

• The night rate can be paid between the hours of 10pm-8am for members of staff working at 

the count. There will be additional flexibility to allow for an earlier start of 9:30pm if count 

staff are required to attend the count venue for briefing. Starts earlier than 9:30pm, 

however, will need to be paid at the day rate up until 10pm. 

• Any work undertaken outside of the hours mentioned above must be paid at the day rate. 

• Different roles cannot all be paid at the top end of each pay band. 

• Rates paid to roles in the same pay band should follow a sliding scale, proportionate to the 

tasks undertaken. The order of the roles in each pay band should provide an indication as to 

where they fit within the pay band. 

• Elections or core services teams can be paid their contracted rate for overtime work they 

undertake that falls under their contracted responsibilities. Work undertaken during normal 

office hours cannot be reimbursed from the Consolidated Fund. 

• If elections or core services teams are undertaking work that falls outside of their contracted 

responsibilities, such as managing the count, they should be paid at a rate proportionate to 

the task, rather than a rate proportionate to the seniority or the grade of the officer 

undertaking the role.  

• If there are roles not listed below for which you are seeking a rate of pay, please contact ECU 

and we will try to provide further advice on this. 

• All roles should be necessary for the conduct of the elections, and the corresponding rates 

should be reasonable and proportionate to the tasks undertaken.  

 

 

 

 

Page 97



 

 

Pay Band A 

Roles Pay Band 23/24 

Casual admin support    

£10.42-£14.18 

Polling Station - Ballot Box/Equipment Issuing 
Assistants  

Postal Vote - Prep and Issue Assistant    

Postal Vote - Opening and Checking Assistant    

Ballot box receipt assistant     

Poll Card - Prep and Issue Assistant    

Poll Clerks    

Count setup/take down assistant    

Count and verification assistants    

Count Security*    

Postal Vote Security*    

Reception staff    

Poll Card - Printing    

Letters Printing    
 

*Does not apply to security company staff if this service is outsourced. This only applies to staff 

employed by the RO directly. For security staff who are outsourced, ECU will consider rates that are 

reasonable. These should be supported by evidence of value for money, for example, by obtaining 

multiple quotes from two or more security firms.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



 

 

Pay Band B 

Roles Pay Band 23/24 
Polling Station - Ballot Box/Equipment Issuing 
Supervisors  

£12.60-£16.80 

Postal Vote - Prep and Issue Supervisor  

Postal Vote - Opening and Checking Supervisor  

Ballot box receipt supervisor  

Poll Card - Prep and Issue Supervisor  

Postal Vote opening supervisor at the count  

Count Staff - IT support  

Postal Vote - IT Support (Signature Verification)  

Count setup/take down supervisor  

Count and verification team leader  

Unused ballot papers checking and verification 

Collection and prep of equipment 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



 

 

Pay Band C 

Roles Pay Band 23/24 

Presiding Officer*  

 
£14.70-£18.38 

Count and verification supervisor    

Staff payments/pay roll  

Poll Card - Running Data, Checking and Proofing  

Postal Vote - Signature Adjudicators  

Top table assistant/data officer  

Media handling/comms 
 

*Presiding Officers taking on additional responsibilities can be paid an additional £25 on top of the 

overall PO fee for the day. These responsibilities can include managing common areas in polling 

places with more than one polling station. Such staff are often referred to as Senior Presiding 

Officers.  

Pay Band D 
Roles Pay Band 23/24 

Count Manager* 
£15.75-£27.30 Polling Station Inspector 

Postal Vote - Opening Session Manager 
 

*ECU will generally accept one count manager per venue. However, should there be particular 

circumstances that warrant more than one count manager in your constituency or voting area this 

should be discussed and agreed in advance with ECU.  

 

 

 

Page 100



 

Other Rates  

Type   Rates 23/24 

Poll card (hand) delivery  £0.15-£0.34 

Travel up to 20 miles (Public Transport)*  
£10  

Travel more than 20 miles (Public Transport)*  
£20  

Mileage rate  £0.45 

Training per member of staff (up to a maximum)  £40 

Training Prep & Delivery (per session) £100-£150  

Bookkeeping (capped at a maximum)  £400  

Stage and audio equipment at the count (per venue)  N/A** 

 

*Fees for travel can be paid to polling station inspectors and presiding officers only, and only for 

travel necessary for the conduct of the poll. Please contact ECU should there be circumstances 

particular to your area that would require other staff to be paid for necessary travel.  

**There is no formal limit set for staging and audio equipment. This is on the basis that these items 

should be obtained at a rate that is reasonable and that this should be supported by evidence. When 

claiming for stage and audio equipment, ROs should provide multiple quotes from suppliers to 

demonstrate that they have sought value for money. Where stage and audio equipment is provided 

by the venue, any costs claimed should be clearly itemised so that they can be properly scrutinised 

by ECU. Failure to provide a detailed breakdown of the costs may result in the costs being challenged 

or removed.  

Page 101



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

Initial equality impact assessment screening form 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of equality to a proposal, and a 
decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate or proportionate.  
 

Directorate  Legal and Democratic 

Service area Electoral Services 

Proposal being screened Election Fees Schedule 

Officer(s) carrying out screening  Ben Nattrass 

What are you proposing to do? Adopt a schedule of fees for paying casual elections staff 

at polls taking place in the North Yorkshire Council area. 

Why are you proposing this? What are the 
desired outcomes? 

To enable staff to be appointed to casual election roles for 
future polls. 

Does the proposal involve a significant 
commitment or removal of resources? 
Please give details. 

Not over and above what is already committed. 

Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by the Equality 
Act 2010, or NYC’s additional agreed characteristics 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 

• To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected characteristics? 

• Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as important? 

• Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be an adverse impact or you have 
ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be carried out where this is 
proportionate. You are advised to speak to your directorate representative for advice if you are in 
any doubt. 
 

Protected characteristic Potential for adverse impact Don’t know/No 
info available 

Yes No 

Age  x  
Disability  x  
Sex   x  
Race  x  
Sexual orientation  x  
Gender reassignment  x  
Religion or belief  x  
Pregnancy or maternity  x  
Marriage or civil partnership  x  

 
People in rural areas  x  
People on a low income  x  
Carer (unpaid family or friend)  x  
Are from the Armed Forces Community  x  
Does the proposal relate to an area where 
there are known inequalities/probable 
impacts (for example, disabled people’s 
access to public transport)? Please give 
details. 

No 

Will the proposal have a significant effect 
on how other organisations operate? (for 
example, partners, funding criteria, etc.). Do 
any of these organisations support people 

 
No 

Page 103



 

 
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

 

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE 

with protected characteristics? Please 
explain why you have reached this conclusion.  

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate:  

 
✓ 

    

Continue to full 
EIA: 

 
 

Reason for decision No equality implications 

Signed (Assistant Director or equivalent) Jennifer Norton 

Date 4.12.23 

 

Page 104



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Initial Climate Change Impact Assessment (Form created August 2021) 

The intention of this document is to help the council to gain an initial understanding of the impact of a project or decision on the 

environment. This document should be completed in consultation with the supporting guidance. Dependent on this initial 

assessment you may need to go on to complete a full Climate Change Impact Assessment. The final document will be published as 

part of the decision-making process. 

If you have any additional queries, which are not covered by the guidance please email climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk 

Title of proposal Election Fees Schedule 

Brief description of proposal Adopt a schedule of fees to be paid for roles required to deliver elections e.g. polling 
station workers, vote counters. 

Directorate  Legal & Democratic 

Service area Electoral Services 

Lead officer Kerry Russett, Head of Electoral Services 

Names and roles of other 
people involved in carrying out 
the impact assessment 

Ben Nattrass, Electoral Services Manager 

 

 

 

  

P
age 105

mailto:climatechange@northyorks.gov.uk


 

 

OFFICIAL 

The chart below contains the main environmental factors to consider in your initial assessment – choose the appropriate option 

from the drop-down list for each one. 

Remember to think about the following; 

• Travel 

• Construction 

• Data storage 

• Use of buildings 

• Change of land use 

• Opportunities for recycling and reuse 

Environmental factor to consider For the council For the county Overall 

Greenhouse gas emissions No effect on 
emissions 

No Effect on 
emissions 

No effect on 
emissions 

Waste No effect on waste No effect on waste No effect on waste 

Water use No effect on water 
usage 

No effect on water 
usage 

No effect on water 
usage 

Pollution (air, land, water, noise, light) No effect on 
pollution 

No effect on 
pollution 

No effect on pollution 

Resilience to adverse weather/climate events 
(flooding, drought etc) 

No effect on 
resilience 

No effect on 
resilience 

No effect on 
resilience 

Ecological effects (biodiversity, loss of habitat etc) No effect on 
ecology 

No effect on 
ecology 

No effect on ecology 

Heritage and landscape No effect on 
heritage and 
landscape 

No effect on 
heritage and 
landscape 

No effect on heritage 
and landscape 

 

P
age 106



 

 

OFFICIAL 

If any of these factors are likely to result in a negative or positive environmental impact then a full climate change impact 

assessment will be required. It is important that we capture information about both positive and negative impacts to aid the council 

in calculating its carbon footprint and environmental impact.  

Decision (Please tick one option) Full CCIA not 

relevant or 

proportionate:  

✓ Continue to full 

CCIA: 

X 

Reason for decision No climate impacts 

 

 

 

 

 

Signed (Assistant Director or 

equivalent) 

Jennifer Norton 

 

Date 4.12.23 

 

 

P
age 107



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

Standards and Governance Committee 
 

13 December 2023 
 

Temporary Appointments to Aldbrough St. John Parish Council  
 

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive Legal and Democratic Services 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To inform the Committee of the situation of Aldbrough St. John Parish Council and to seek 

approval to invoke the power to temporarily appoint named persons to sit on the Parish 
Council. 
 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND  
 
2.1  In order for a town and parish council to operate, they need to be quorate. There are 

occasions where, due to resignations or a lack of nominations for vacancies at elections, a 

town or parish council is not able to operate for this reason. 

2.2  Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that the principal authority (North 

Yorkshire Council) can make an order to appoint to a town or parish council until such time 

as the vacancies on the Parish Council have been filled by either election or co-option. 

 

3.0 REQUIREMENT TO APPOINT PERSONS TO ALDBROUGH ST. JOHN PARISH 
COUNCIL  

 
3.1  Aldbrough St. John Parish Council comprises of 5 seats and requires a minimum of 3 seats 

to be filled to be considered quorate. Following resignations of the 3 remaining councillors, 
the casual vacancy procedures were followed, and following expiration of the notices, the 
Council was notified that the Parish Council was inquorate.   

 
3.2 As the Parish Council is now no longer quorate, it cannot meet or conduct any business. 

The only option left is to invoke the power to make appointments so that business can 

continue. Once appointed, the parish will be quorate and the vacant seats can be filled via 

co-option. A number of parishioners have expressed an interest in being co-opted to the 

Council and have also agreed to be appointed on a temporary basis. 

3.3 Once the vacant seats have been filled, any appointee can then resign from the Parish 

Council if they wish to do so. 

 

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
4.1  None. 
  

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
5.1 There are no financial implications. 
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 7



 

 

OFFICIAL 

6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1  This report has been prepared with the benefit of legal advice as to the process for 

appointing temporary members to a parish council. 

 

7.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 There are none. 
 
8.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1 There are none. 
 
9.0 CONCLUSIONS  
 
9.1  By invoking Section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972, Aldbrough St John Parish 

Council can co-opt to the vacant seats and the appointees can resign from the Parish once 

the other seats are filled.   

 
10.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
10.1  Aldbrough St John Parish Council comprises of 5 seats and requires a minimum of 3 seats 

to be filled to be considered quorate. Following recent resignations there are no Councillors 

currently leaving the Parish Council inquorate and unable to meet or conduct business. By 

placing a division member appointee and four parishioners on the Parish Council, it will be 

quorate and can co-opt to the vacant seats allowing business to continue.  

 

10.2  Whilst legislation does not specify who may be appointed as temporary parish councillors, it 

is common practice for the elected member of the relevant division of the principal council 

to be approached in the first instance to fulfil this role and seeking other appointees as 

required.   

 

11.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 i) That the Council appoints the following under Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 
1972 to Aldbrough St John (Richmondshire) Parish Council in order to make it quorate, 
unless or until either sufficient vacancies on Aldbrough St John Parish Council have been 
filled by way of co-option or election so that the Parish Council is able to act lawfully, or the 
Order made under Section 91 (1) is revoked.   

• Division member for North Richmondshire – Angus Thompson 

• Mr Mike Banks 

• Mr Stephen Baddon 

• Mr Stuart Reed 

• Ms Kirstie Thornton 
 

ii) That the Assistant Chief Executive Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to make 
the required order as attached at Appendix A. 
 

 
 APPENDICES: 
 
 Appendix A – Order  
 
  

Page 110



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive Legal and Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
5 December 2023 
 
Report Author – Jennifer Norton, Assistant Director Legal  
  
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries 
or questions. 

Page 111



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 
OFFICIAL 

Order Made Under Section 91 (1) Of The Local Government Act 1972 

Aldbrough St John Parish Council (Temporary Appointment of Members) Order 2023 

THIS ORDER is made on the thirteenth day of December two thousand and twenty three by 

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNCIL (“THE COUNCIL”). 

1. WHEREAS following the recent resignation of parish councillors to Aldbrough Parish Council, three 

persons are required to give a minimum number required for a quorum. 

2. Under Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972, where there are so many vacancies in the 

office of Parish Councillor that the Parish Council is no longer able to act, North Yorkshire Council 

may, by order, appoint persons to fill all or any of the vacancies until other Councillors are co-opted 

or elected to take office. 

NOW in pursuance of the Power conferred upon it by Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 

1972, the Council hereby appoints the following persons to act as Members of Aldbrough St John 

Parish Council until an election has been held or new Councillors have been co-opted to fill such 

vacancies as shall constitute and re-establish a quorum on the Parish Council whereupon such 

appointments and this Order shall cease: 

• Councillor Angus Thompson (Councillor for North Richmondshire Division) 

• Mr Mike Banks 

• Mr Stephen Baddon 

• Mr Stuart Reed 

• Ms Kirstie Thornton 

The COMMON SEAL of North Yorkshire Council was hereunto affixed in the presence of: 

 

 

……………………………………………… 

Authorised Signatory 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

Standards and Governance Committee 
 

13 December 2023 
 

Temporary Appointment to Irton Parish Council  
 

Report of the Assistant Chief Executive Legal and Democratic Services 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To inform the Committee of the situation of Irton Parish Council and to seek approval to invoke 

the power to temporarily appoint a North Yorkshire Council division member to sit on the Parish 
Council. 
 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND  
 
2.1  In order for a town and parish council to operate, they need to be quorate. There are 

occasions where, due to resignations or a lack of nominations for vacancies at elections, a 

town or parish council is not able to operate for this reason. 

2.2  Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that the principal authority (North 

Yorkshire Council) can make an order to appoint to a town or parish council until such time 

as the vacancies on the Parish Council have been filled by either election or co-option. 

 

3.0 REQUIREMENT TO APPOINT A MEMBER TO IRTON PARISH COUNCIL  
 
3.1  Irton Parish Council comprises of 5 seats and requires a minimum of 3 seats to be filled to 

be considered quorate. Following 2 resignations, the casual vacancy procedures were 

followed, and the Parish Council were advised on 12 October 2023 that they could proceed 

to fill the vacant seats via co-option. On 30 October 2023, Councillor Peter Morrell resigned 

from Irton Parish Council leaving only 2 remaining councillors. 

3.2 As the Parish Council is now no longer quorate, the council cannot meet or conduct any 

business. The only option left is to invoke the power to make an appointment so that 

business can continue. Once appointed, the parish will be quorate and the vacant seats 

can be filled via co-option. Officers understand that there is interest within the parish from 

parishioners who wish to sit on the Council. 

3.3 Once the vacant seats have been filled, any appointee can then resign from the Parish 

Council if they wish to do so. 

 

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED  
 
4.1  To conduct a Community Governance Review and dissolve the Parish Council. This 

Council covers an electorate of 283 and a Community Governance Review can take up to 

12 months to complete. 

  

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  
 

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



 

 

OFFICIAL 

5.1 There are no financial implications. 
 
6.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
6.1  This report has been prepared with the benefit of legal advice as to the process for 

appointing a temporary member to a parish council. 

 

7.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS  
 
7.1 There are none. 
 
8.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS  
 
8.1 There are none. 
 
9.0 CONCLUSIONS  
 
9.1  By invoking Section 91 of the Local Government Act 1972, Irton Parish Council can co-opt 

the vacant seats and the appointee can resign from the Parish once the other seats are 

filled if she wishes to do so. 

 
10.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
10.1  Irton Parish Council comprises of 5 seats and requires a minimum of 3 seats to be filled to 

be considered quorate. Following a recent resignation, there are only two parish councillors 

left. The Parish Council is now inquorate and as such cannot meet or conduct business. By 

placing a division member appointee on the Parish Council, it will be quorate and can co-

opt the vacant seats and business can continue.  

 

10.2  Whilst legislation does not specify who may be appointed as temporary parish councillors, it 

is common practice for the elected member of the relevant division of the principal council 

to fulfil this role.  

 

11.0 RECOMMENDATIONS   
 

 i) That the Council appoints the division member for Seamer, Councillor Heather Phillips, 
under Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972 to Irton Parish Council in order to 
make it quorate, unless or until either sufficient vacancies on Irton Parish Council have 
been filled by way of co-option or election so that the Parish Council is able to act lawfully, 
or the Order made under Section 91 (1) is revoked. 
 
ii) That the Assistant Chief Executive Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to make 
the required order as attached at Appendix A. 
 

 
 APPENDICES: 
 
 Appendix A – Order  
 
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive Legal and Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
5 December 2023 

Page 116



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 
Report Author – Jennifer Norton, Assistant Director Legal  
  
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries 
or questions. 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A 

 
OFFICIAL 

Order Made Under Section 91 (1) Of The Local Government Act 1972 

Irton Parish Council (Temporary Appointment of Members) Order 2023 

THIS ORDER is made on the thirteenth day of December two thousand and twenty three by 

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNCIL (“THE COUNCIL”). 

1. WHEREAS following the recent resignation of a parish councillor to Irton Parish Council, one 

councillor is required to give a minimum number required for a quorum. 

2. Under Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 1972, where there are so many vacancies in the 

office of Parish Councillor that the Parish Council is no longer able to act, North Yorkshire Council 

may, by order, appoint persons to fill all or any of the vacancies until other Councillors are co-opted 

or elected to take office. 

NOW in pursuance of the Power conferred upon it by Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 

1972, the Council hereby appoints the following persons to act as a Member of Irton Parish Council 

until an election has been held or new Councillors have been co-opted to fill such vacancies as shall 

constitute and re-establish a quorum on the Parish Council whereupon such appointments and this 

Order shall cease: 

• Councillor Heather Phillips (Councillor for Seamer Division) 

 

The COMMON SEAL of North Yorkshire Council was hereunto affixed in the presence of: 

 

 

 

……………………………………………… 

Authorised Signatory 

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

OFFICIAL 

 

North Yorkshire Council 
 

Standards and Governance Committee 
 

13 December 2023 
 

Decision on whether to proceed with a Community Governance Review of 
Dishforth Parish 

 
Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 

 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider a request from Dishforth Parish Council for a community governance review to 
 increase the number of parish councillors on the parish council. 
 
1.2 If the Committee support the request of the parish council for a community governance review, 
 to make recommendation to Council that the draft Terms of Reference (Appendix 1) be 
 approved. 
 

 
2.0 THE REPORT 
 
2.1 North Yorkshire Council has received a request from Dishforth Parish Council that it 

undertakes a Community Governance Review (CGR) of Dishforth parish to increase the 
number of parish councillors.  The matter was discussed at a meeting of the Parish Council 
and the relevant extract from the minutes is below:  

 
Extract from the minutes of the meeting of Dishforth Parish Council held on 25 July 2023: 
 

8.f To inform the members concerning the increase in parish councillors. The 
request is hoping to be considered at NYC’s Standard and Governance meeting 
in September.  
Cllr Sturzaker requested an increase in parish councillors. Cllr Sturzaker highlighted 
the increase in parishioners due to the new developments and also with having only 
5 councillors at present due to holidays, etc. there could be times when the council 
maybe inquorate. Cllr Sturzaker suggested an increase to either 7 or 8 councillors.  
Resolved -The council approved the request for Dishforth Parish Council to be 
increased to 8 councillors. The clerk to contact NYC to request the increase.  
 

2.2 Under the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (“the 2007 Act”) the 
Council has the responsibility for undertaking community government reviews of the parish 
tier of local government.  In undertaking a review the Council must have regard of the need  
to ensure that the community governance arrangements in place are effective and convenient 
and reflect the identities and interests of the community. 
 

2.3 Under the 2007 Act the Council is statutorily obliged to undertake CGRs in response to a 
“Community Governance Petition” or “Community Governance Application”.  For all other 
requests, such as this request from Dishforth Parish Council, and also requests from division 
Members or local electors, there is a “may undertake” power to conduct a CGR.   
 

2.4 At the meeting of the Committee held on 15 September 2023 a protocol was approved which 
set out how the Council would respond to such requests for community governance reviews 

Page 121

Agenda Item 9



 

 

OFFICIAL 

in the period from now until the conclusion of the Local Government Boundary Commission 
for England’s (LGBCE) review of division boundaries for the county, expected to conclude in 
mid-2025.  Following the LGBCE review it is intended to undertake a whole-county CGR.  
Where requests are received before mid-2025 a decision will need to be taken as to whether 
they are to be treated as urgent.   
 

2.5 On 15 September the Committee agreed to delegate authority to the Assistant Chief 
Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Corporate Services to determine if requests for CGRs should be treated as urgent. At a 
meeting held on 6 November to consider such requests it was agreed that the request from 
Dishforth Parish Council could be treated as urgent and brought forward to the Standards 
and Governance Committee. 

 
2.6 Attached at Appendix 1 to this report are draft Terms of Reference for a review of Dishforth 

parish, setting out the issues to be considered, how a review would be undertaken and a 
proposed timetable for a review.   

 
3.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
3.1 There is no budget within Legal and Democratic Services for carrying out Community 

Governance Reviews.  Any expenses incurred are likely to be in relation to the consultation 
process.   

 
3.2 Should a CGR conclude that there be changes to the electoral arrangements a by-election 

would need to take place for the parish council in May 2025.  The by-election would cost 
approximately £3,200 and would be recharged to the parish council. 

 
4.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
4.1 The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 gives principal councils 

the responsibility for carrying out Community Governance Reviews in their areas.  The Act 
gives councils the powers in relation to the following: 

 

• Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes;  

• The naming of parishes;  

• The electoral arrangement for parishes (including the ordinary year of election; council 
size; the number of councillors to be elected to the Council and parish warding);  

• Grouping or de-grouping parishes 
 
5.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
5.1 The public consultation will be undertaken in such a way as to ensure that a broad range of 

responses are obtained and no groups are excluded. An Equality Impact Assessment 
screening form is attached at Appendix 2. 

 
6.0 CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 None 
 
7.0 CONCLUSIONS 
 
7.1 If the Committee resolve to support the request from Dishforth Parish Council for a 

Community Governance Review it will need to make recommendation to Council that the 
attached Terms of Reference be approved, at which point the CGR would formally 
commence.     

 

Page 122



 

 

OFFICIAL 

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS   
 

 That Standards and Governance Committee support the request from Dishforth Parish 
Council for a Community Governance Review and make recommendation to Council that 
the draft Terms of Reference for a Community Governance Review of Dishforth parish, 
attached at Appendix 1, be approved. 
 

 
APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 – Draft Terms of Reference 
Appendix 2 – Equalities impact assessment 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
None 
 
 
Barry Khan 
Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services) 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
5 December 2023 
 
Report Author – Elizabeth Jackson, Democratic Services Manager 
 
 
Note: Members are invited to contact the author in advance of the meeting with any detailed queries 
or questions. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



 

OFFICIAL 

Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
 

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW OF DISHFORTH  
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
1 Introduction 
  
1.1 North Yorkshire Council has been asked by Dishforth Parish Council to undertake 

a Community Governance Review of the parish of Dishforth.   
  
1.2 In undertaking the Review the Council will be guided by  

• Part 4 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 
(“the 2007 Act”)  

• the relevant parts of the Local Government Act 1972 

• Guidance on Community Governance Reviews issued in accordance with 
Section 100(4) of the 2007 Act by the Department of Communities and 
Local Government and the Local Government Boundary Commission for 
England in March 2010. 

 
The review will comply with the legislative requirements, have regard for the 
associated statutory guidance and will be conducted in accordance with these 
terms of reference. 

  
1.3 This document is being published on the North Yorkshire Council website and will 

set out what the review will focus on. 
  
2 Reason for a Community Governance Review 
  
2.1 The Council is undertaking a community governance review following a request 

from Dishforth Parish Council.  On 25 July 2023 the parish council resolved to 
contact North Yorkshire Council to request an increase in the number of parish 
councillors from 5 to 8.  The request arose from concerns that the parish council 
may struggle to be quorate at times of holidays or illness and an increase in the 
number of parish councillors would ensure meetings could continue to take place.  
An increase was also felt appropriate as the number of residents had increased 
following a number of housing developments in the village.  

  
3 What is a community governance review? 
  
3.1 A community governance review is the process used to consider parish 

arrangements.  It is a review of the whole or part of the county area to consider 
one or more of the following: 

• Creating, merging, altering or abolishing parishes; 

• The naming of parishes and the style of new parishes; 

Page 125



 

OFFICIAL 

• The electoral arrangements for parishes (the ordinary year of election; 
Council size, the number of Councillors to be elected to the Council and 
parish warding); and 

• Grouping parishes under a common Parish Council or de-grouping parishes 

  
3.2 The Council wants to ensure that parish governance in the county continues to be 

robust, representative and enabled to meet challenges that lie before it.  
Furthermore, it wants to ensure that there is clarity and transparency to the areas 
that parish councils represent and that the electoral arrangements of parishes are 
appropriate, equitable and readily understood by the electorate.   

  
4 What will the Review consider? 
  
4.1 Where existing parishes are under review a Community Governance Review is 

obliged under legislation to make recommendations as detailed below:  
 
(a) Recommendations as to whether a parish should be abolished – the council will 

be making a firm recommendation to retain Dishforth Parish and that it’s 
external boundaries should not be altered 
 

(b) Recommendations as to whether the name of a parish should be changed – the 
council will be making a firm recommendation to retain the name of Dishforth  

 
(c) Recommendations whether a parish with a council should continue to have a 

council – the council will be making a firm recommendation to retain the parish 
council of Dishforth Parish Council 

  
4.2 Where a Review recommends to retain a parish council, the Review must also 

make recommendations as to what changes (if any) should be made to the 
electoral arrangements that apply to the Council.  The electoral arrangements are: 

  
 1. The ordinary year in which elections will be held 

2. The number of councillors to be elected to the council 
3. The division of the parish into wards  
4. The number and boundaries of such wards 
5. The number of councillors to be elected for any such wards 
6. The names of any such wards 

  
4.3 The review must take into account: 
 • The impact of community governance arrangements on community 

cohesion; and 
• The size, population and boundaries of a local community or parish 

  
4.4 The legislation requires that the Council must have regard to the need to secure 

that community governance within the area under review: 
 • Reflects the identities and interests of the community in that area; 

• Is effective and convenient; and 
• Takes into account any other arrangements for the purposes of community 

representation or community engagement in the area. 

Page 126



 

OFFICIAL 

  
5 Who undertakes the Review? 
  
5.1 North Yorkshire Council is statutorily responsible for carrying out the review.  The 

Standards and Governance Committee will make recommendations in respect of 
the review to Council following the review for its consideration and approval.  This 
includes approval of the terms of reference and the final recommendations before 
a community governance order is made. 

  
5.2 The lead officer with regard to this review is Barry Khan, Assistant Chief Executive 

(Legal and Democratic Services) at North Yorkshire Council.   
  
6 Consultation 
  
6.1 Before making or publicising the recommendations, the Council will take account of 

the views of local people.  The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act 2007 requires the Council to consult the local government electors for the area 
under review and any other person or body who appears to have an interest in the 
review.   The Council must take the representations into account by judging them 
against the criteria in the 2007 Act. 

  
6.2 The review will be guided by best practice in relation to consultation and 

engagement.  The information provided will be clear and concise and use plain 
English and will be available in different formats where requested.  

  
6.3 The review will include two stages of consultation.  At Stage 1 initial submissions 

will be sought in relation to the request by the parish council, which will be 
considered and used to formulate draft recommendations.  The second phase of 
consultation will seek views on the draft recommendations to allow final 
recommendations to be developed. 

  
6.4 The Council will: 

• Consult the Parish Council 
• Consult the Division Councillor 
• Publish a Notice and these Terms of Reference on the council’s website 

and arrange for copies to be available for public inspection at the Council’s 
offices 

• send a copy of the Notice and these Terms of Reference to the parish clerk  
• seek to arrange for the notice to be published on parish council websites 

and notice boards 
• send a copy of the Notice and these Terms of Reference to the local 

Member of Parliament 
• Welcome comments from any other person or body that wishes to make 

representation 
• Take into account any representations received in connection with the 

review 
  
6.5 Information relating to the review will be available on the Council’s website under 

the ‘Your Council’ tab.   
  

Page 127



 

OFFICIAL 

6.6 The Council will provide feedback to the community after each stage and will notify 
consultees by publishing the outcome on the website and paper copies will be 
available at the Dishforth Village Hall.  Decisions made and the reasons for those 
decisions will also be published following the review. 

  
7 Timetable for the review 
  

Stage Action Timescale 
Commencement Terms of Reference approved 

by full Council 
 

21 February 2024 

Stage 1 Initial submissions invited at 
phase 1 consultation 

26 February – 22 March 
2024 
 

Stage 2  Initial Submissions considered 
and draft recommendations 
prepared for consultation 
 

April 2024 
 
(Council on 15 May) 
 
 

Stage 3 Draft recommendations 
published and phase 2 
consultation takes place 
 

10 June – 19 July 2024 

Stage 4 Consideration of submissions 
received and preparation of final 
recommendations 
 

August – September 
2024 

 Council resolves to give effect to 
the final recommendations 
 

13 November 2024 

 Reorganisation Order 
 

January 2025 

 First elections under new 
arrangements 

1 May 2025 

 
Please note the timetable is subject to minor alteration. 

  
8 Electorate Forecasts 
  
8.1 On 1 November 2023 the electoral register shows the following number of electors 

within the areas subject to the review: 
 
 1 November 2023 2028 forecast 
Area No. of electors No. of households No. of electors 
Dishforth parish 758 436 443 

  
8.2 When the Council comes to consider the electoral arrangements of the parishes in 

its area, it is good practice to consider any change in the number or distribution of 
the electors which is likely to occur in the period of five years beginning with the 

Page 128



 

OFFICIAL 

day when the review starts.  This means that any proposals should remain fit for 
purpose for future years. 

  
8.3 The electorate forecast has been prepared using current planning permissions. 
  
9 Electoral arrangements 
  
9.1 Dishforth parish comprises a single ward.  The current number of parish councillors 

is 5.  Ordinarily it has elections every 4 years, the next scheduled elections will be 
held in 2027 and every four years thereafter. 

  
9.2 A copy of a map showing the extent of the parish is attached at Appendix A. 
  
9.3 Dishforth Parish Council has resolved to request an increase to the number of 

parish councillors from 5 to 8.  This constitutes a review of the ‘electoral 
arrangements’ of the parish, and as such this review will consider and make 
recommendations as below. 

  
9.4 The ordinary year in which elections are held: 

If the review concludes that there will be changes to the electoral arrangements of 
the parish a by-election will be held in 2025.  The government has indicated that it 
would want parish electoral cycles to coincide with the cycle for the principal 
council so the costs of elections can be shared.  The election in 2025 would be for 
a reduced term of 2 years to enable the electoral cycle to revert to the normal cycle 
in 2027 at the next ordinary elections. 

  
9.5 The number of councillors to be elected to the council: 

The Council notes that the number of Parish Councillors for each parish council 
shall not be less than five. There is no maximum number and there are no rules 
relating to the allocation of Councillors between parish wards.  Research 
conducted by the Aston Business School and published in 1992 found the 
following pattern of council size to electorate in England: 

  
Electorate Councillor 

allocation 

Less than 500 5 – 8 

501-2,500 6 – 12 

2,501 – 10,000 9 – 16 

10,001 – 20,000 13 – 27 

Greater than 20,000 13 - 31 

 
 

9.6 The National Association of Local Councils published guidance in 1998 which 
suggested that the minimum number of councillors for a parish with less than 900 
electors should be 7.   

  

Page 129



 

OFFICIAL 

9.7 The Yorkshire Local Councils Association published guidance in 2010 which stated 
that “no council should ever be composed of an even number of councillors, as this 
increases the risk of matters having to be constantly decided by casting vote.” 

  
9.8 The Government’s guidance is that “each area should be considered on its own 

merits, having regard to its population, geography and the pattern of communities.”  
Therefore the Council is prepared to pay attention to existing levels of 
representation, the broad pattern of existing council sizes and the take up of seats 
at election time. 

  
9.9 In parishes where there has been a history of uncontested elections and/or the 

need to co-opt members to fill vacancies, the Council will consider whether the 
present levels of representation are appropriate or whether there is a “democratic 
surplus” in the parish.  The government has stated that the conduct of parish 
council business does not usually require a large body of councillors. 

  
9.10 By law, the principal council must have regard to the following factors when 

considering the number of councillors to be elected for the parish: 
 • The number of local government electors for the parish 
 • Any change in that number which is likely to occur in the period of five years 

beginning with the day when the review starts 
 • To ensure that the allocation of councillors to parishes is broadly equitable 

across the district / borough, while acknowledging that local circumstances 
may occasionally merit variation 

  
9.11 Parish Warding:   

The Act requires that in considering whether a parish should be divided into wards 
for the purposes of elections of the parish council the following should be 
considered: 

  
 • Whether the number or distribution of the local government electors would 

make a single election of councillors impracticable or inconvenient 
 • Whether it is desirable that any areas should be separately represented on 

the parish council 
  
9.12 Government guidance states that the warding of parishes in largely rural areas that 

are based predominantly on a single centrally located village may not be justified. 
  
10 Reorganisation of Community Governance Orders 
  
10.1 The Review will be completed when the Council adopts the Reorganisation of 

Community Governance Order.  Copies of this order, the maps that show the 
effects of the order in detail, and the documents which set out the reasons for the 
decisions that the Council has taken (including where it has decided to make no 
change following a review) will be deposited at the Dishforth Village Hall and on 
the Council’s website. 

  
10.2 In accordance with the guidance the Council will also issue maps to illustrate each 

recommendation which will be deposited with the Secretary of State at the 

Page 130



 

OFFICIAL 

Department of Levelling Up, Housing and Communities and also at the Dishforth 
Village Hall. 

  
11 How to contact us 
  
11.1 Contact details at the Council for the duration of the review are as follows:- 

 
Elizabeth Jackson 
01423 556409 
cgr@northyorks.gov.uk  

  
12 How to submit your views 
  
11.2 Once the Consultation commences you can submit your views online at 

www.northyorks.gov.uk (by searching for “current consultations”) or in writing to: 
 
Elizabeth Jackson 
North Yorkshire Council 
County Hall 
Northallerton 
DL7 8AD 
 
Or by email cgr@northyorks.gov.uk  
 

12 Publication of terms of reference 
  
 The Terms of Reference will be published on the Council’s website 

www.northyorks.gov.uk  and will be available for public inspection at the Council’s 
Offices. 

  
 Date of publication:  22 February 2024 

 
 
 
Appendix A – map of parish of Dishforth 

Page 131

mailto:cgr@northyorks.gov.uk
mailto:cgr@northyorks.gov.uk


Parish of Dishforth
© Crown Copyright and Database

Rights [2023] Ordnance Survey 100017946
16/11/2023

P
age 132



 

 

OFFICIAL 

Appendix 2 - Equality impact assessment screening form 
 

 
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of equality to a proposal, and a 
decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate or proportionate.  
 

Directorate  Central Services 
Service area Democratic/Electoral services 
Proposal being screened Decision on whether to proceed with a Community 

Governance Review of Dishforth parish 
 

Officer(s) carrying out screening  Barry Khan – Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and 
Democratic) 

What are you proposing to do? To consider commencing a Community Governance 
Review which would involve consulting with the public 
  

Why are you proposing this? What are the 
desired outcomes? 

Dishforth Parish Council has requested a Community 
Governance Review to increase the number of parish 
councillors.  The views of the public would be sought 
on this proposal. 
 

Does the proposal involve a significant 
commitment or removal of resources? 
Please give details. 

It involves consultation with the residents of the 
parish 
 
 

Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by the Equality 
Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed characteristics 
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions: 

• To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected characteristics? 

• Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as important? 

• Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates to? 
 

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be an adverse impact or you have 
ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be carried out where this is 
proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep for advice if you are in any doubt. 
 

Protected characteristic Potential for adverse impact Don’t know/No 
info available 

Yes No 

Age  No  
Disability  No  
Sex   No  
Race  No  
Sexual orientation  No  
Gender reassignment  No  
Religion or belief  No  
Pregnancy or maternity  No  
Marriage or civil partnership  No  
NYCC additional characteristics 

People in rural areas  No  
People on a low income  No  
Carer (unpaid family or friend)  No  

Page 133

http://nyccintranet/content/equalities-contacts


 

 

OFFICIAL 

Does the proposal relate to an area where 
there are known inequalities/probable 
impacts (e.g. disabled people’s access to 
public transport)? Please give details. 

No 
 

Will the proposal have a significant effect 
on how other organisations operate? (e.g. 
partners, funding criteria, etc.). Do any of 
these organisations support people with 
protected characteristics? Please explain 
why you have reached this conclusion.  

No 
 

Decision (Please tick one option) EIA not 
relevant or 
proportionate:  

 

✓ 
Continue to full 
EIA: 

 

Reason for decision It is not considered that the proposals to increase 
the number of parish councillors on Dishforth Parish 
Council will exclude any groups.   
The consultation will be undertaken in such a way 
as to ensure that no groups are excluded and a 
broad range of responses is obtained. 
 

Signed (Assistant Director or equivalent) Barry Khan 
 

Date 5 December 2023 
 

 

Page 134


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Meeting held on 15th September 2023
	5 North Yorkshire Polling District and Polling Place review - Final proposals - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
	APPENDIX A - List of Consultees
	APPENDIX B - Summary of Consultation Responses Received
	APPENDIX C - Full Schedule of Final Proposals
	APPENDIX D - Final Recommendations, Changes only
	APPENDIX E -EIA screening form Polling District Review
	APPENDIX F - Climate change impact assessment - initial screening form

	6 Schedule of Election Fees for Elections and By-elections in North Yorkshire - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
	APPENDIX A - Proposed Schedule of Fees 2023-2024
	APPENDIX B - Election Claims Unit Pay Bands for Election Staff 2023-2024
	APPENDIX C - EIA screening form Election fees schedule
	APPENDIX D - Climate change impact assessment - initial screening form

	7 Temporary Appointments - Aldbrough St John Parish Council - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
	231213 Appendix AldbroughPC-TempAppointment-Appendix-Order

	8 Temporary Appointments - Irton Parish Council - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
	IrtonPC-TempAppointment-Appendix-Order

	9 Decision on whether to proceed with a Community Governance Review - Dishforth Parish Council - Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal and Democratic Services)
	Dishforth CGR - Appendix 1 - Terms of Reference
	DRAFT Terms of Reference - Dishforth (002)
	Parish of Dishforth A4

	Dishforth CGR - Appendix 2 - EIA Screening Form




